COMMITTEE Guélph
AGENDA P2

Making a Difference

TO Audit Committee
DATE June 11, 2012

LOCATION  Council Chambers
TIME 6:30 p.m.

DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE
THEREOF

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES - May 14, 2012
PRESENTATIONS (Items with no accompanying report)

a)

CONSENT AGENDA

The following resolutions have been prepared to facilitate the Committee’s
consideration of the various matters and are suggested for consideration. If the
Committee wishes to address a specific report in isolation of the Consent Agenda,
please identify the item. The item will be extracted and dealt with separately. The
balance of the Audit Committee Consent Agenda will be approved in one resolution.

ITEM CITY DELEGATIONS TosE
PRESENTATION
AUD-7 2011 Draft Audited » Evan McDade, s Trevor Lee, CEO, Vv
Consolidated Partner, Deloitte & The Elliott
Financial Statements Touche
and External Post-
Audit Report
AUD-8 2011 Unconsolidated | Tara Johnston, v
Financial Statement Senior Corporate
Review Analyst, Financial
Reporting

Resolution to adopt the balance of the Audit Committee Consent Agenda.

ITEMS EXTRACTED FROM CONSENT AGENDA

Once extracted items are identified, they will be dealt with in the following order:
1) delegations (may include presentations)
2) staff presentations only
3) all others.
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CLOSED MEETING
THAT the Audit Committee now hold a meeting that is closed to the public with
respect to:

1. Letter of Recommendation — 2011 Audit Results
S. 239 (2) (a) Security of the Property of the Municipality

2. 2011 Unconsolidated Financial Statements and City Financial
Highlights
S. 239 (2) (a) Security of the Property of the Municipality

3. Consultation with External Auditor
S. 239 (2) (a) Security of the Property of the Municipality

ADIJOURNMENT

NEXT MEETING —- To Be Determined
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Distribution Minutes

The Corporation of the City of Guelph
Audit Committee
Monday, May 14, 2012, 4:00 p.m.

A meeting of the Audit Committee was held on Monday, May 14, 2012
in the Council Chambers at 4:00 p.m.

Present: Councillors Furfaro, Guthrie, Kovach (arrived at 4:06 p.m.),
Wettstein and Mayor Farbridge

Also Present: Councillors Bell and Hofland
Staff Present: Ms. S. Aram, Acting City Treasurer; Ms. T. Johnston,
Senior Financial Analyst, Financial Reporting; Mr. B. Labelle, City
Clerk; and Ms. D. Black, Council Committee Co-ordinator
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof
There was no disclosure of pecuniary interest.
1. Moved by Councillor Furfaro

Seconded by Mayor Farbridge
THAT the minutes of the Audit Committee meeting held on April 11,

2012 be confirmed as recorded and without being read.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Guthrie, Furfaro, Wettstein and
Mayor Farbridge (4)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)

Carried
Consent Agenda
The following items were extracted from the Consent Agenda to be
dealt with separately:
AUD-2012 A5 Audit Committee Mandate and Charter Review
AUD-2012 A.6 2012 Audit Committee Workplan & Schedule

Audit Committee Mandate and Charter Review

Staff clarified that the Charter will be determined once the Internal
Auditor has been hired.

2. Moved by Councillor Wettstein
Seconded by Mayor Farbridge
Ms. S. Aram THAT report FIN 12-19 “Audit Committee Mandate and Charter

Review” be approved.




Distribution

Minutes

May 14, 2012

Ms. S. Aram

Audit Committee Page 2

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Guthrie, Furfaro, Wettstein and
Mayor Farbridge (4)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried

2012 Audit Committee Work Plan & Schedule
Councillor Kovach arrived at the meeting (4:06 p.m.)
Staff clarified the role of the Audit Committee regarding the review of
management and program performance, management reporting
systems and progress results of the Internal Auditor work plan. It
was noted that further clarification will be provided when the Internal
Auditor is hired and has had an opportunity to assess the work plan.
3. Moved by Councillor Wettstein

Seconded by Councillor Kovach
THAT report FIN 12-06 “2012 Audit Committee Work Plan and
Schedule” be approved.

VOTING IN FAVOUR: Councillors Guthrie, Furfaro, Kovach, Wettstein
and Mayor Farbridge (5)

VOTING AGAINST: (0)
Carried
Adjournment
4, Moved by Councillor Wettstein
Seconded by Mayor Farbridge
THAT the Audit Committee meeting of May 14, 2012 be adjourned.

Carried

The meeting adjourned at 4:09 p.m.

Chairperson



AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONSENT AGENDA

June 11, 2012

Members of the Audit Committee.

SUMMARY OF REPORTS:

The following resolutions have been prepared to facilitate the Committee’s consideration of
the various matters and are suggested for consideration. If the Committee wishes to address
a specific report in isolation of the Consent Agenda, please identify the item. The item will be
extracted and dealt with immediately. The balance of the Audit Committee Consent Agenda

will be approved in one resolution.
A Reports from Administrative Staff

REPORT

DIRECTION

AUD-2012 A.8) 2011 DRAFT AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND EXTERNAL POST-AUDIT
REPORT

THAT the report FIN 12-28 dated June 11, 2012 entitled “2011 Draft
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and External Post-Audit
Report” be received;

AND THAT the 2011 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements be
approved.

AUD-2012 A.7) 2011 UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
REVIEW

THAT the report FIN 12-27 dated June 11, 2012 entitled “2011
Unconsolidated Financial Statement Review ” be received.

attach.

Approve

Receive



Deloitte.

City of Guelph
Y ear-end communication
for the year ending December 31, 2011

June 11, 2012



Agenda

« Executive summary
 Audit risks and conclusions
« Communication requirements
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Audit scope and findings

Audit strategy and scope  The audit planning and the preliminary risk assessment activities we conduct
enable us to set the scope of our audit and to design procedures tailored to that
scope. Referto our audit plan communicated on November 14, 2011.

Materiality Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements, including omissions, in the financial
statements that, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of the financial statement users. Judgments about
materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances, and are affected by
our perception of the information needs of the financial statement users, and by the
size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. We are responsible for
providing reasonable assurance that your financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement.

Materiality levels are determined on the basis of consolidated results of operations.
Our materiality for the year ending December 31, 2011 was $6,000,000 (2010 —
$5,800,000).

Audit risks In accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the following
significant risks:

» Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

e Actuarially determined liabilities

» Contingencies

» Council and senior management expenses
» Estimates

* |nfrastructure stimulus fund
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

Audit scope matters

Audit risks (continued) » Payroll
* Procurement process
* Reserves and reserve funds
* Revenue/deferred revenue
» Taxation revenue
» Tangible capital asset disposals

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these risk
areas later on in the presentation.

Group audit We are auditors of all entities within the group with the exception of Guelph Hydro
and The Elliott, where the audit work is completed by KPMG. No restrictions have
been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing the audit, we were given full
and complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation and
other information requested.

Use of the work of experts As planned, Deloitte and external experts assisted in the audit to the extent we
considered necessary:

IT specialists Participated in evaluating internal controls and in using our computerized audit
applications.

Commodity Tax Helped assess the adequacy of the City’s accounting for commodity taxes and

experts related balance sheet accounts.

Actuarial experts Helped assess the adequacy of the employee future benefit liability.
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

Audit scope matters

Significant difficulties None noted.

encountered in

performing the audit

Audit results In accordance with Canadian GAAS, our audit is designed to enable us to express
an opinion on the fairness of the presentation of the City of Guelph’s annual financial
statements prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards.

Status of our audit We expect to be in a position to render our audit opinion dated June 25, 2012 on the
financial statements of the City of Guelph following approval of the financial
statements by Council and the completion of the following outstanding procedures:

* Receipt of documentation from KPMG relating to the audit of Guelph Hydro Inc.
» Receipt of signed management representations letter

* Receipt of actuarial confirmation

* Receipt of legal update to audit report date

» Completion of the Engagement Quality Control review

Fraud and illegal acts Based on the procedures we performed as recommended by CAS 240, The
Auditor’s Responsibilities Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements, we
are not aware of any illegal acts or fraudulent events with respect to City of Guelph
during the year.

Significant events As part of our audit process, we did not identify any significant events.
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

5

Audit scope matters
Significant accounting
policies

Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices have been discussed
with management during the current audit period.

We believe management’s selection of accounting policies to be appropriate under
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

City of Guelph’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 1 to December
31, 2011 financial statements.

Management judgment
and accounting estimates

Significant accounting estimates are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

Audit adjustments and
uncorrected
misstatements

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all misstatements be
corrected.

Audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements are summarized in appendices
attached to the management representation letter.

Adjusted and unadjusted
disclosure deficiencies

In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all disclosure deficiencies be
corrected.

There were no disclosure deficiencies aggregated by us during the current
engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented, as all disclosure
deficiencies detected in our audit have been corrected by management.

Disagreements with
management

No disagreements with management.

Consultation with other
accountants

There were no consultations with other accountants relating to accounting to
auditing matters that relate to the December 31, 2011 financial statements.

City of Guelph — Year-end communication
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

Audit scope matters

Legal and regulatory Our limited procedures did not identify any areas of material non-compliance with

compliance the laws and regulations by the City of Guelph.

Representations letter A draft version of the representations letter to be signed by management is included
in Appendix 3.

Conclusion No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing the audit,

we were given full and complete access to the accounting records, supporting
documentation and other information requested.

We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the financial statements of the City
of Guelph for the year ended December 31, 2011 once the outstanding items
referred to above are satisfactorily completed and the financial statements are
approved by Council.

A draft version of our Auditor’s report is included in Appendix 1.
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Audit scope and findings (continued)

Other matters

Independence We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate threats to
our independence or to reduce them to an acceptable level.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other relevant
matters that, in our professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and confirmed our independence to the Audit Committee for the
year ended December 31, 2011 in Appendix 2.

Quality control Our firm’s quality control process embraces each of the elements identified in the
Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA”) Handbook sections covering
Canadian standards of quality control for firms that perform audits and reviews of
financial statements and other assurance engagements.

A detailed description of our Quality Control process is included in the appendices to
our independence confirmation.

Communications As a part of our audit plan, we committed to communicate certain matters to the
Audit Committee.

A summary of our communications is provided in appendix 4.
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Audit risks and conclusions

Areas of risk
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

Our audit response
» Tested disbursements subsequent to year-end to

determine the reasonableness of accounts
payable and accrued liabilities.

Tested the supporting assumptions for accruals.

Reviewed the outcome of prior year estimates
and accruals.

Our conclusion

No material
misstatements noted.
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities are
reasonable as at
December 31, 2011.

Actuarially determined liabilities

Reviewed actuary report, including related
assumptions.

Ensured appropriate accounting treatment has
been applied.

Reviewed related financial statement note
disclosure for accuracy and completeness.

Communicated with actuary regarding our
reliance on their report for audit purposes.

No material
misstatements noted.
Actuarially determined
liabilities are reasonable
as at December 31, 2011.

Contingencies

We were in contact with the Municipality’s
external law firms to obtain the status of any
outstanding claims and we reviewed the

evaluation of claims to ensure proper recognition.

No material
misstatements noted.
Disclosure is complete
and accurate.

Council and senior management
expenses

Reviewed a sample of expense reports for
validity and proper approval.

Expenses tested were in
line with the City’s
expense policies.
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Audit risks and conclusions (continued)

Areas of risk Our audit response Our conclusion

Estimates » Tested the supporting assumptions for estimates. e

* Reviewed the outcome of prior year estimates
and accruals.

Management estimates
were determined to be
reasonable for the year
ending December 31,
2011.

Infrastructure stimulus fund * Tested deferred revenue schedule to determine if e
monies received should be reported as revenue
or deferred revenue.

» Substantive testing performed on capital
expenditures.

» Perform compliance testing on procurement
policy.

Funding spent on projects
under ISF is in line with
City of Guelph’s
procurement policy.

Payroll » Focused detail testing on payroll expenditures .
and accruals.

» Substantive testing performed on variances.

No material
misstatements noted.
Payroll expense is
reasonable for the year
ending December 31,
2011.

Procurement process » Performed compliance testing on procurement .
policy.

Expenses subject to
testing for the 2011 fiscal
year were reasonable and
in line with the City’s
procurement policy.
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Audit risks and conclusions (continued)

Areas of risk

Our conclusion

Reserves and reserve funds

Our audit response
» Reviewed approval of transfers to and from
reserves and reserve funds.

No material
misstatements noted.
Reserve and Reserve
Funds balance are
reasonable as at
December 31, 2011.

Revenue/deferred revenue

Reviewed the recording of grants, charges,
contributions and other monies received.

No material
misstatements noted.

Taxation revenue

Reviewed the City’s calculation of taxation for
municipal purposes. Received confirmation of
assessment roll from the Municipal Property
Assessment Corporation (MPAC).

Ensured that Management’s estimate of
allowance for doubtful accounts is reasonable.

No material
misstatements noted.
Taxation revenue is
reasonable for the year
ending December 31,
2011.

Tangible capital asset disposals

Reviewed new Finance policies and procedures
related to disposals.

Reviewed disposal schedule prepared by
management for reasonability.

Reporting on tangible
capital asset disposals
has improved at the City
for the year ending
December 31, 2011. The
Finance department has
instituted a new
procedure to enhance
communication amongst
City departments.

10
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Communication requirements

Required communication Comments
1. Our responsibilities under GAAS. See our audit plan which was
communicated on November 14, 2011.

2. Our audit strategy and scope, including approach to auditing financial See our audit plan which was
information of components of the group audit and our planned communicated on November 14, 2011.
involvement in work performed by component auditors.

3. Management judgment and accounting estimates. No issues noted — see comments on page
2.

4. Financial statement adjustments. There were no audit adjustments and no
uncorrected misstatements.

5. Uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies. There were no audit adjustments and no
uncorrected misstatements.

6. Significant accounting policies. See note 1 to the 2011 Financial
statements.

7. Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices that have No alternative significant accounting
been discussed with management during the current audit period. policies noted

8. Our views about significant qualitative aspects of the City of Guelph’s Significant accounting practices — see
accounting practices, including accounting policies, accounting page 2 of this report.
estimates and financial statement disclosures.

9. Our responsibility for other information in documents containing We will review the annual report when
audited financial statements (e.g., MD&A), any procedures performed, | provided by management.
and the results.

10. Disagreements with management. None.
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Communication requirements (continued)

Required communication

11. Our views about significant matters that were the subject of
consultation with other accountants.

12. Major issues discussed with management prior to our retention.

13. Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit.

Comments

There were no consultations with other
accountants relating to accounting or
auditing matters affecting the December
31, 2011 financial statements.

None.

None.

14. Material written communications between management and us.

Engagement letter dated October 31,
2011.

15. All relationships between the City of Guelph and us that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on
independence.

See Independence letter — Appendix 2

16. A statement that, in our judgment, our engagement team and others in
our firm as appropriate, our firm itself and, when applicable, network
firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence.

See Independence letter — Appendix 2

17. lllegal or possibly illegal acts.

No fraud, errors or illegal acts noted.

18. Fraud or possible fraud identified through the audit process.

None noted.

19. Significant transactions inconsistent with normal course of business,
including related party transactions.

To be discussed during in-camera session.

12
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Communication requirements (continued)

20. Non-compliance with laws and regulations that come to the auditor’s None noted.
attention.
21. Limitations placed on our scope. None.
22.Written representations the auditor is requesting. Draft management’s representations letter
— Appendix 3.
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COMMITTEE Guelph
REPORT 2

Making a Difference

TO Audit Committee

SERVICE AREA Finance and Enterprise
DATE June 11, 2012

SUBJECT 2011 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements
and External Post-Audit Report
REPORT NUMBER FIN-12-28

SUMMARY

Purpose of Report:
The purpose of this report is to:
a) To present and review the 2011 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements
b) To review the City’s consolidated entity’s audited financial statements
¢) To review the City’s external audit results as reported in Deloitte’s 2011 Post-
Audit Report

Committee Action:
THAT the Report FIN-12-28 dated June 11, 2012 entitled “2011 Draft Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and External Post-Audit Report” be received; and

THAT the 2011 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements be approved;

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Report FIN-12-28 dated June 11, 2012 entitled 2011 Draft Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements and External Post-Audit Report” be received; and

THAT the 2011 Draft Audited Consolidated Financial Statements be approved;

BACKGROUND

Annually, City Council is required to review and approve the City of Guelph Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements as required by the Municipal Act. Historically,
the financial statement review was performed at Audit Committee on these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Page 1 of 7 CITY OF GUELPH COMMITTEE REPORT




During the presentation of the 2010 Audited Financial Statements in June 2011,
Audit Committee members requested through resolution that starting for the 2011
financial year, the unconsolidated financial statements be presented in addition to
the consolidated financial statements as it would provide more transparent and
relevant information for Council members.

The unconsolidated statements exclude the operations of the The Elliot, The Guelph
Downtown BIA and 46.2% of the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit.

Given this direction, staff have prepared three reports for the current year:

1) FIN-12-27 - Review of the City 2011 unconsolidated financial statements
and financial position

2) FIN-12-28 -~ 2011 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and
External Post Audit Report

3) FIN-12-29 - Closed Meeting Report - Deloitte Letter of Recommendation
- 2011 Audit Results

The first report on the unconsolidated financial statements provides a year end
summary of only the City of Guelph operations.

The second and third reports for the audited consolidated financial statements are
focused on the external audit results and financial items affecting the consolidated
reporting entity.

The review and approval of the audited 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements
and the review of Deloitte’s Post-Audit Report satisfies the following Audit
Committee responsibilities as found in the 2012 Work Plan:

e Understand the scope of the external auditor’s review of internal financial
control over financial reporting and obtain reports on significant findings and
recommendations, together with management’s responses and the timing of
the disposition of significant findings

« After consultation with the Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer and the external
auditors, gain a reasonable assurance, at least annually, of the quality and
sufficiency of the City’s accounting and financial personnel and other
resources

+ Review with staff and the external auditors the result of the audit including
any difficulties encountered and all other matters required to be
communicated to the Committee under Generally Accepted Auditing
standards

¢ At the conclusion of the audit, consult with the external auditors, without the
presence of staff, regarding internal financial controls, compliance and the
fullness and accuracy of the City's consolidated financial statements

+ Ensure the timely presentation of the external auditor's annual audit report
to Council

» Review significant accounting and reporting issues, including complex or
unusual transactions, highly judgmental areas and recent professional and
regulatory pronouncements and understand their impact on the financial
statements

¢ Review the representation letter provided by staff to the external auditors
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« Prior to the presentation of the annual financial statements to Council,
review the financial statements and consider whether they are complete,
consistent with information known to committee members and reflect
appropriate accounting principles

e Recommend to Council the approval and distribution of the annual
consolidated financial statements

REPORT

Throughout this report, please refer to Appendix A to this report for references to
the Draft Consolidated Financial Statements.

Overview of the Reporting Entity - These Consolidated Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) Standards.
This reporting basis requires that in addition to the City's departments (including
Guelph Public Library Board and Guelph Police Services Board), the following
entities are also included:

a) The Elliot - fully consolidated

b) The Downtown Guelph Business Association ("The BIA”) - fully consolidated

c) Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit ("The Health Unit”")- 46.2% -
proportionate consolidation

d) Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. ("GMHI")(which wholly owns Guelph Hydro
Inc.) - modified equity basis

e) Guelph Junction Railway Company (“"GJR")- modified equity basis

Fully consolidated means that the full financial statements of those entities have
been combined into the City’s statements and all inter-organizational transactions
have been eliminated. Proportionate consolidation means that only the City’s share
(46.2%) of the Health Unit’s operations have been combined into the City’s
statements and all inter-organization transactions were eliminated. Modified equity
basis means that the carrying value of the net assets of the investees are shown on
the face of the City’s Statement of Financial Position as an investment and any gain
or loss is shown on the income statement. There are no inter-organizational
eliminations.

Review of the Consolidated Entities’ Financial Statements - In the preparation of
the Consolidated Financial Statements, staff has reviewed in detail each of the
financial statements of the consolidated entities. The following is a summary of
financial highlights of these entities and any relevant information that resulted from
each of their entity’s audits (with the exception of GJR and GMHI as the City
already has a formal process of presenting their financial results directly to
Council).

a) The Elliot - The Elliot is required to be consolidated into the City of Guelph
financial statements due to their financial reliance on the City. The Elliot’s
financial statements are audited by KPMG LLP and have a year end date of
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March 31 (rather than the City's reporting date of December 31). The
financial statements of this entity are included in Appendix C.

+« The City issued debentures in 2001 and 2004 on behalf of the Elliot
and currently have an outstanding balance of $13.9M as at December
31, 2011. The City refinanced the 2001 debenture that matured this
year through the debt issuance in late 2011. Additionally, the City
guarantees other debt that the Elliot has with a financial institution
totaling $1.2M as at December 31, 2011.

¢ During 2011, the Elliot also entered into a capital lease to finance the
purchase of phone equipment totaling $162k of which $134k is
showing as an obligation as at December 31, 2011.

e In addition to these obligations, the Elliot also has a bankers
acceptance interest rate swap type loan with an outstanding balance of
$2.57M,

e The Elliot had a net deficit of $1.2M (2010 - deficit of $971k) that is
shown on the City’s Consolidated Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surplus

+ Upon review of the Elliot’s external audit findings report as included in
Appendix D, it was noted that KPMG identified Going Concern as a
potential risk that they are monitoring annually due to the net liability
position and the increased deficit year over year. This risk has not
been considered significant enough to include in the notes to the
financial statements at this time.

b) The Health Unit - The Health Unit is audited by Deloitte and Touche and the
City consolidates it's 46.2% proportionate share of this entity. Please refer
to Note 18 of the financial statements for a summary of this entity’s financial
statements. The complete financial statements of this entity are included in
Appendix E. Highlights from these statements include:

e The Health Unit has reported a net surplus of $1.5M in 2011 (2010 -
$1.4M)

« During 2011, the Health Unit has spent $2.27M on capital spending
which is an increase over 2010 by $1.2M

c) The BIA - The Downtown Guelph Business Association is a “business
improvement area” of the City and is consolidated because it is financially
dependent on the City for funding its operations. The financial statements of
this entity are included in Appendix F. Highlights from these statements
include:

e The BIA has reported a net deficit of $3,594 in 2011 (2010 - net
deficit of $7,835)

o Reported revenues and expenditures were significantly higher than in
2010 due to the Carden Street promotion program that was managed
through the BIA in 2011 on behalf of the City. Additionally there were
grants, partner contributions and special events income reported in
2011 that were new over 2010 totaling $111,826. This additional
income was offset by increased wages, advertising and special event
expenses.
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d)

GMHI and GJR - both of these entities have a formal process for reporting

their financial statements to Council in accordance with each Corporation’s

shareholder agreement. For this reason, their financial statements have not

been included in the attached appendices although a summary of each of

these entity’s financial results can be found in Notes 6 and 7 to the

consolidated financial statements. GJR'’s financial statements are audited by

Deloitte and Touche and Guelph Hydro Inc. (100% owned by GMHI) is

audited by KPMG LLP. Highlights relating to these two entities include:

» Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”) by
Government Business Enterprises (GBE’s) - During 2011, the City's
GBE’s (GJR and GMHI) were required to adopt IFRS standards for the
first time. This change in standards was a significant undertaking and
required external consultation by both entities in order to become
compliant. For GIR, the financial statement impact was minimal and
focused more on note disclosure and presentation. For GMHI, this
change was quite significant and required a full restatement of the
previous year’s results. The impact of this restatement was an
increase to the 2010 Investment in GMHI of $11.1M, an increase to
2010 net surplus of $2M, and an increase in opening accumulated
surplus of $9.1M. More details can be found in Note 3 and Note 7 to
the financial statements.
e Incorporation of GMHI - During 2011, the City incorporated a new

company called Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc., of which the City owns
100% of its shares. As of December 31, 2011, the City rolled its
shares of Guelph Hydro Inc. into GMHI at a value of $66,753 which
approximates fair value.

Other Financial Statement Highlights - Please refer to Report FIN-12-27 for a

detailed analysis of the City of Guelph unconsolidated financial position for 2011.
The following comments are focused on the consolidated financial position of the
City for 2011 and any significant changes from 2010.

a)

b)

Adoption of PSAB Section 3510 - Tax Revenue - The City adopted section
3510 during 2011 as described in Note 2 to the financial statements. This
adoption resulted in a reclassification of tax appeal and rebate costs to be
shown net of tax revenue rather than as an expenditure. Also, further note
disclosure of taxation revenue by major class has been added in Note 4 of
the financial statements.

Subsequent event - Subsequent to year end, the City settled an outstanding
dispute with the County of Wellington and this has been disclosed in Note 22
to the financial statements.

External Auditor Report —~ Please refer to Appendix B for the external audit results

as prepared by Deloitte and Touche. Specific audit findings related to the City’s
financial reporting controls and processes along with recommended solutions have
been included in a closed meeting report FIN-12-29 as they covered by the
Municipal Act Section 239(a) - “Protection of City Property”.
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The external audit is substantially complete except for the items as listed in on
page 2 of Appendix B “Status of our Audit”. Given the timing that is required by
the Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, these items are required to be
completed as at the audit report date, which is the date Council approves the
statements (expected to be June 25, 2012). These outstanding items include
obtaining external legal confirmation of outstanding claims as disclosed in Note 20
to the financial statements, obtaining management’s representation with respect to
the financial statements, as well as receiving back certain confirmations from the
City’s actuary and KPMG LLP.

Reserve and Reserve Fund Transfers - Included in these consolidated financial
statements are a number of reserve and reserve fund transfers that have yet to be
approved by Council. If Council does not approve these transfers as recommended
in reports FIN-12-25, FIN-12-26 and FIN-12-32, the City of Guelph consolidated
financial statements will change from the current presentation.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN
5.3 Open, accountable and transparent conduct of municipal business

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

An unqualified opinion on the City’s Consolidated Financial Statements will assist
the City in obtaining a fair credit rating, are used to support grant funding from
certain organizations and are used in making financial decisions.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION

Many of the City’s departments were consulted and asked to provide support for
certain transactions throughout the financial statement audit. Most notably Human
Resources and Information Technology were heavily involved in certain audit
procedures performed by Deloitte.

COMMUNICATIONS

A copy of the 2011 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with the
annual “"Making A Difference” report will be available on the City’s web site after
approval by Council.

ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A: 2011 Draft City of Guelph Consolidated Financial Statements
Appendix B: 2011 External Audit Findings Report

Appendix C: The Elliot 2011 Audited Financial Statements

Appendix D: The Elliot 2011 Audit Findings Report

Appendix E: Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit 2011 Audited Financial
Statements

Appendix F: The Downtown Guelph Business Association 2011 Audited Financial
Statements
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LE I Deloitte & Touche LLP
e Ol e 4210 King Street East
! N & Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada
Tel: 519-650-7600

Fax: 519-650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of
City of Guelph

We have audited the accompanying consolidated fi al statements of Cl y of Guelph, which comprise

Management is responsible for the preparat
statements in accordance with Canachan pu

ated financial statements based on our audit.
ally accepted auditing standards. Those

ical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
solidated financial statements are free from material

es to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
he procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,

f material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or e ng those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's prepar and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

including the assessme

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsit Limited



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of City of Guelph as at December 31, 2011 and the results of its operations, its changes in net
financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
DATE
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City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2011
('000's)
2011 2010
$ $
Financial assets
Cash 33,096 43,727
Investments (Note 5) 115,234 73,135
Taxes receivable 7,940 7,481
Accounts receivable 34,505 39,941
Developer agreement receivables 88 1,004
Loans and notes receivable 1,315 1,312
Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company (Note 6) 5,950 5,722
Investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. (Note 7) 78,260 77,871
276,388 250,193
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 41,543 43,507
Accrued interest payable 794 777
Vacation and other employee benefits payable 5,575 5,421
Other deferred revenue 11,069 10,336
Deferred contributions (Note 8) 24,500 23,294
Employee future benefits (Note 10) 27,546 25,856
Net debt (Note 11) 121,355 97,279
Obligation under capital lease (Note 12) 134 -
Landfill post-closure liability (Note 13) 5,700 8,000
238,216 212,470
Net financial assets 38,172 37,723
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 14) 937,545 873,419
Inventory 2,162 2,452
Prepaid expenses 565 481
940,272 876,352
Contingencies (Note 20)
Commitments and guarantees (Note 21)
Subsequent event (Note 22)
Accumulated surpius (Note 15) 978,444 914,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus ,

year ended December 31, 2011

('000's)
2011 2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual
{Note 24)
$ $ $
Revenues
Taxation
Property taxation (Note 4) 175,980 174,286 168,388
Property taxation - Downtown Guelph Business Association 412 412 412
Penalties and interest on taxes 1,428 1,590 1,480
177,820 176,288 170,280
User charges 71,438 74,339 68,364
Contributed subdivision assets - 9,901 -
Contributions
Government of Canada 6,681 13,540 20,444
Province of Ontario 44,164 54,816 57,217
Municipal 3,065 3,346 7,319
Developers 13,688 16,556 17,873
Other 3,148 4,661 760
142,184 177,159 171,877
Other
Investment income 1,435 2,567 4,184
Donations 221 578 890
Sales of equipment, publications 3,358 5,210 4,073
Recoveries - 2,833 4,164 4,728
Licences and permits 3,022 3,048 3,107
Provincial Offenses Act revenues 3,565 3,652 3,675
Other fines 800 745 752
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 5,149 5,853 (442)
Income from Government Business Enterprises - 617 3,459
20,383 26,435 24,426
Total revenues 340,387 379,882 366,683
Expenses (Note 17)
General government 20,447 19,787 23,979
Protection services 62,497 62,882 58,286
Transportation services 50,458 53,800 49,759
Environmental services 59,924 63,266 59,961
Heailth services 21,545 21,174 18,823
Social and family services 41,377 40,213 44,014
Social housing 18,013 17,235 16,753
Recreation and cultural services 32,342 33,247 28,673
Planning and development 5,338 6,120 5,434
Total expenses 311,941 317,724 305,482
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 28,446 62,158 61,201
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 914,075 914,075 843,307
Adjustments (Note 3) 9,107
Add: Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 1,340 2,493 821
Less: Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital assets (282) (361)
Accumulated surplus, end of year 943,861 978,444 914,075

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

Page 4



City of Guelph

Consolidated statement of changes in net financial asset

year ended December 31, 2011

(1000's)

2011 2011 2010

Budget Actual Actual

{Note 24)

$ $

Excess of revenue over expenses for the year 28,446 62,158 61,201
Amortization of tangible capital assets 39,062 37,467 40,811
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (66,087) {95,743) (119,742)
(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - (5,853) 442
Contributed subdivision assets - (9,901) -
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 5,149 10,066 298
Obligation under capital lease - (162) -
Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital assets - (282) (361)
Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 1,340 2,493 821
Change in inventory - 290 237
Change in prepaid expenses - (84) 8
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets for the year 7,910 449 (16,285)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 37,723 37,723 54,008
Net financial assets, end of year 45,633 38,172 37,723

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph
Consolidated statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2011

(000's)
2011 2010
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 62,158 61,201
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital asseis 37,467 40,811
{Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets {5,853) 442
Contributed subdivision assets (9,901) -
Aliowance on asset backed investment (155) 565
Loss (gain) on interest rate swap contracts 414 (139)
Income from Government Business Enterprises (617) (3,459)
Employee future benefit expenses 1,690 2,406
Landfill post-closure recovery (300) (600)
Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 2,493 821
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Taxes receivable (459) 167
Accounts receivable 5,436 (18,869)
Developer agreement receivables 916 {546)
Inventory 290 237
Prepaid expenses (84) 8
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,378) 12,430
Accrued interest payable 17 (64)
Vacation and other employee benefits payable 154 (216)
Other deferred revenue 733 1,449
Cash provided by operating 92,021 96,644
Capital and investing activities
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (95,743) (119,742)
Minority interest in Health Unit tangible capital assets (282) (361)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 10,066 298
Change in loans and notes receivable (3) 29,046
Net investment acquisitions (41,944) (14,804)
Cash used by capital and investing (127,906) (105,563)
Financing activities
Proceeds from debt issuance 47,500 379
Repayment of debt principal (23,424) (9,878)
Repayment of obligation under capital lease (28) -
Net change in deferred contributions 1,206 5,502
Cash provided (used) by financing 25,254 (3,997)
Decrease in cash for the year (10,631) (12,916)
Cash, beginning of year 43,727 56,643
Cash, end of year 33,006 43,727

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

1. Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph (the “City”) have been prepared by
management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the City are as follows:

Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and
expenses and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the reporting entity. The reporting
entity is comprised of those City functions or entities which have been determined to comprise a part of
the aggregate City operations based upon control exercised by i ity, except for the City’s
government businesses which are accounted for on the modif ity basis of accounting.

Consolidated entities

In addition to the City departments, the reporting entity

Guelph Public Library Board

Guelph Police Services Board
Downtown Guelph Business Association
The Elliott

All interfund assets, liabilities, revenues and expen:
ends March 31, which does not coi
consolidated using the fiscal year %

Proportionately consolidated entitie

The City reports only its share of ass i foperations of any government
partnerships in which it ici . S i ton-Dufferin-Guelph Public

~are not eliminated. Under the modified equity basns
investment in subsidiaries is adjusted to reflect the City’s share

accounting recogni in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise
to the revenues; expen recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services or the creation of an obligation to pay.

Taxes receivable and related revenues

Property tax billings are prepared by the City based on assessment rolls issued by the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation (“MPAC”). Tax rates are established annually by the City Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts the City is required to collect on
behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes. A normal part of the assessment
process is the issuance of supplementary assessment rolls, which provide updated information with
respect to changes in property assessment. Once a suppiementary assessment roll is received, the City
determines the taxes applicable and renders supplementary tax billings.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

Taxes receivable and related revenues (continued)}

Taxation revenues are recorded at the time the tax billings are issued. Assessments and the related
property taxes are subject to appeal. Tax adjustments as a result of appeals are recorded as a
reduction of tax revenue when the result of the appeal process is reasonably certain. The City is entitled
to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes and these revenues are recorded in the period the
interest and penalties are levied. Tax revenue is recorded net of reductions including rebates. Taxes
receivable are reported net of any expense or allowance for doubtfu} accounts.

Reserves and reserve funds

erves and reserves funds for future

Certain amounts, as approved by City Council, are set asi
reserve funds are recorded as an

operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and/or fr
adjustment within accumulated surplus.

Deferred revenue and deferred contributions

Deferred revenues and deferred contribution resent taxes, user cha nd fees, developer

contnbutrons and other grant revenues whic

Tangible capital assets

(i) Tangible capital assets are reco £ost, which | all amounts that are directly attributable
to acquisition, construction, deve 3 ne asset. The cost, less residual vaiue, of

the tangible capital

Buildings
Machinery ang
Vehlcles

resholds, so that individual tangible capital assets of lesser
ts have significant value collectively (pooled assets). Examples

livery purposes is recorded as a tangible capital asset at cost. Any
discount received related to expropriation will be included as part of

(ii)

the asset to

(i) Tangible capltal ~ eived as contributions are recognized at their fair value at the date of
receipt, and correspondmgly recognized as revenue in that period. Similarly, contributions of assets
to a third party are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the tangible capital asset
as of the date of transfer.

(iv) Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of asset are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of accounting (continued)

Employee future benefit obligations

The cost of future benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method prorated on service and assumptions of mortality and termination rates, retirement age and
expected inflation rates.

Past service costs from plan amendments, if any, are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis
over the average remaining service life of active employees at the date of the amendment. Actuarial
gains and losses on the accrued benefit obligation arise from diffefénces between the actual and
expected experience and from changes in the actuarial assum used io determine the accrued
benefit obligation. The excess of the net actuarial gains or ver 10% of the benefit obligation is

amortized over the average remaining service life of activ

Government transfers

Government transfers are recognized in the fina
rise to the transfer occur, providing that the tr.
met, and reasonable estimates of the amoun

Investment income

Investment income earned on aval
period earned. Investment incom
deferred contributions. Investment
increase in accumulated surplus.

Use of estimates

The preparation of

assets and liabil ] it
financial stateme enues and expenses durmg the reporting periods.

es, certain accrued liabilities and obligations
e of tangible capital assets. Actual results

for fiscal period
r Accounting

vernments for the accounting and reporting of government transfers
ent and the recipient government in the financial statements.

activities would be included’in the liability for remediation, establishes when to recognize and how to
measure a liability for remediation and provides guidance on financial statement presentation and
disclosure.

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2015, all governments will be required to adopt
PSAB Section 2601, Foreign Currency Translation, PSAB Section 3450 Financial Instruments and
PSAB Section 1201 Financial Statement Presentation. This standard provides guidance on how to
account for and report on financial instruments and related revenue and expenditures and also provides
guidance on financial statement presentation and disclosure.

The City is currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact of adopting these standards.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°’s)

4,

Adoption of new accounting standards

The City has early adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Handbook (*PSAB”) Section 3510, Tax
Revenue for the December 31, 2011 financial statements that would otherwise be effective for fiscal
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2012. This standard provides guidance to governments on the
accounting and reporting of tax revenue in the financial statements.

The adoption of this standard had no impact on the 2011 opening accumulated surplus but did require
$2,503 of previously reported tax rebate and write-off expenditures in 2010 to be reciassified to be
shown net of tax revenue collected. Additionally, expanded note disclosure has been added to note 4 of
these financial statements.

Restatement of 2010 comparative figures

I Reporting Standards by the City’s
ity’s Investment in Guelph Municipal

During the 2011 year, due to the adoption of International
Government Business Enterprises, a retroactive adjust
Holdings Inc. was required to reflect these new repori

The total impact of correcting these items in the

2010

As
restated
3

11,118 77,871
(2,011) (3.459)
307) (9,107)  (852,414)
57)  (11,118)  (914,075)

Investment in Guelph Municipal Hold
Income from Government Business
Accumulated surplus,

ol boards are comprised of the following:

2011 2010

$ $

61,644 61,725

2 2

61,646 61,727

Requisitions (61,646) (61,727)

Net levy for the ye

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are levies owing to the school board totaling
$307 (2010 accounts receivable - $577).
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

4, Taxation revenue (continued)

b) Taxation revenue by major tax class

Taxes - own Payrne.nts Supplem- Rebates & Write: 2011 Total
purpose in lieu entary taxes offs

$ $ $ $ $

Residential 106,635 12 2,729 (276) 109,100
Mulit-Residential 13,465 - (294) 13,514
Commercial 27,727 4,007 (329) 32,474
Industrial 17,964 17,089
Pipelines 486 489
Farmlands 11 12
Managed Forests 2 2
Other - 1,606
Total tax revenue 166,290 174,286
2010 Total

$

Residential 105,324
Mulit-Resident (56) 14,274
Commercial 510 {490) 30,170
Industrial 585 (1,648) 16,570

4 - 488

- 1 9

- - 1

- - 1,552

3,555 (2,503) 168,388

5. Investments
Investments are reco st. The cost and market values are as follows:

2011 2010

Market Cost  Market Cost

8 $ $ $

Short-term investments 67,029 66,933 49,804 49,785
Long-term investments 48,735 48,301 24,182 23,350
115,764 115,234 73,986 73,135
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

5. Investments (continued)

In 2008, a restructuring plan was implemented to convert frozen short-term asset-backed commercial
paper to long-term notes of various classes with terms matching the maturity of the underlying assets.
As a result of the exchange, the City recorded the new carrying value (increase of $64) but recognized
the highly speculative nature of any ultimate payment of principal at maturity by booking a provision for
impairment. The impairment is recorded net of the cost of the long-term investments and is estimated to
be 36% of the investment cost or $743 (2010 - 49% or $1,143).

6. Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company

The following table provides condensed supplementary financi ation for the Guelph Junction

Railway Company (the “Railway”) for the year ended Decembg

2011 2010
$ $

Financial position
Current assets 657
Property, plant and equipment 6,380
Total assets 7,037

Current liabilities 300

Long-term debt -

Deferred capital contributions 1,015

Total liabilities 1,315

Net assets 5,722
Resulis of opera

Revenues 1,699 1,503

1,471 1,365

228 138

‘eam . | 5,722 5,584

5,950 5722

opt International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS”)
This transition did not result in any changes to the

Related party

nd receives certain revenues on behalf of the Railway for which the
Railway reimburses the eriodically. During the year, these net expenses reimbursed to the City
amounted to $339 (201 260). Included in accounts receivable is an amount owing from the Railway
of $287 related to the reimbursement of these current year net expenditures. Additional payments in
2011 of $50 (2010 - $116) were made to the City to repay the amount owing from prior years. The total
amount owing to the City at year end is $145 (2010 - $195) and is included as part of loans and notes
receivable. : :

The Railway also paid the City $22 (2010 - $22) in office rent and administration fees. These
transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange
amounts.

The City pays ce
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

7. investment in Guelph Municipal Holding Inc. (2010 — Guelph Hydro Inc.)

The City of Guelph owns 100% of Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc.(“GMHI") which owns 100% of the
shares of Guelph Hydro Inc ("GHI"), which in turn owns 100% of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.,
Ecotricity Guelph Inc. and over 99% of Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. During 2011,
GMHI was newly incorporated and the City transfered 100% of its shares of GH! into GMHI as at
December 31, 2011 at a value of $66,753, which approximates market. The following table provides
condensed supplementary financial information for GMHI for the year ended December 31, 2011 and
GHI for the year end December 31, 2010:

2011 2010 2010
Revised IFRS As Previously
Reporting Reported

$ $

Financial position
Current assets

61,966 69,833 73,069

Property, plant and equipment 125,185 101,591

Intangible assets -

Deferred charges -

Future income taxes 9,512

Total assets 184,172

Current liabilities 23,575

Customer deposits and deferred rev 4,090

Long-term debt 65,462

Regulatory liabili 15,315

7,227 8,977

103,553 117,419

48,576 48,576

29,295 18,177

77,871 66,753

155,917 147,316 145,217

127,385 118,131 117,710

25,631 21,683 22,749

1,012 2,680 1,947

Total expenses 154,028 142,494 142,406

Net income 1,889 4,822 2,811

Retained earnings, b 29,295 16,866 16,866

Adjustment due to IFRS transition - 9,107 -

Dividends (1,500) {1,500) {1,500)

Retained earnings, end of year . 29,684 29,295 18,177

During 2011, GMHI was required to adopt IFRS with a date of transition of January 1, 2010. This
transition has resulted in the following adjustments to the City’s 2010 comparative financial statements:
an increase in Investment in GMHI by $11,118, an increase to opening accumulated surplus of $8,107
and an increase in income from Government Business Enterprises of $2,011.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

Investment in Guelph Municipal Holding Inc. (2010 — Guelph Hydro Inc.) (continued)
Related party fransactions

GMHI pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues on behaif of the City related to customer
water billings for which GMHI remits to the City bi-monthly. During the year, these net revenues
received amounted to $41,417 (2010 - $36,914). Amounts owing to the City related to these
transactions total $8,106 (2010 - $6,623) and are included in accounts receivable. During 2010, the
Company repaid 100% of a loan owing to the City of $30,000 and also paid interest on this loan totaling
$1,708, which was included in investment income.

$1,500) and is also reported as part
ourse of business and have been

Dividend income was received from the Company of $1,500 (201
of investment income. These transactions were made in the
recorded at the exchange amounts.

Deferred contributions

The following funds have statutory restrictions a ified as deferred contributions:
Ending
balance
v 2011
$
Dewelopment charges 15,913 17,008
Grants 22,574 6,961
Other (2) 531
38,485 24,500

ited capital expenditures in

e deferred grants include federal gas tax funds,

5, federal public transit funds and Ontario bus

et of restrictions that outlines how the funds can

accordance with the/|
provincial gas tax fun

f 544 (2010 - 1,577) members of its staff. The plan is a defined
mount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based

)
for all plan asset:

RS for 2011 is $8,983 (2010 - $7,642) for current service and is
e Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus.

The amount contribt
reported as an expen

As at December 31, 2011, the City has no obligation under the past service provisions of the OMERS
agreement.

As at December 31, 2011 the OMERS plan is in a deficit position of $7.3 billion (2010 - $4.5 billion),
which will be addressed through temporary contribution rate increases, benefit reductions, and
investment returns.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

(8000°’s)

10.

Employee future benefits

Employee future benefits are future costs of the City to its employees and retirees for benefits earned
but not taken as at December 31, 2011 and consist of the following:

2011 2010

$ $

Workplace Safety and Insurance ("WSIB") 3,549 3,233
Sick leave 10,222 9,409
Post retirement benefits 13,775 13,214
27,546 25,856

a) Liability for Workplace Safety & Insurance ("WSIB”)

employer, the City assumes the liability for any aws : A comprehensive actuariai
valuation of the future liability for WSIB benefit; er 31, 2009 and has been
extrapolated to estimate the liability for the 2 iod. required valuation will

be as of December 31, 2012.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in re as follows

¢ Discountrate 5% (2009 -

e Expected future WSIB payme 52% (2009 - 61%)

o Health care inflation CPi plus 4% (2009 - CPI plus 4%)
¢ WSIB Administration Rate 22% (2009 - 25%)

o lLost time injury : 6 (2009 - 36)

Information about th

2011 2010
$ $
3,949 3,740
712 690
198 188
(706) (669)
4,153 3,949
(604) (716)
3,549 3,233

expenses recognized in the period are as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Current period benefit cost 712 690
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2009 15 15
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2006 97 96
Interest expense 198 188
1,022 989

A reserve in the amount of $2,203 (2010 - $1,526) has been accumulated to fund this liability.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

10.

Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
b) Liability for sick leave

Under the sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate for certain employees and these
employees may become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the City’s employment.

A comprehensive actuarial valuation was completed as of December 31, 2010 and the next required
valuation will be as of December 31, 2013.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s sick leave liabilities are as follows:

4.75% (2009 - 5%)
2% (2009 - 2%)
3.5% per year (2009 - 3.5%)

e Discount rate
e Inflation rate
e Future salaries

Information about the City’s sick leave liability is as fol

2011 2010
$
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of ye 8,863
Current service cost 739
interest 423
Net actuarial loss 2.4 -
Benefits paid {835) : (672)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of ye 12,401 9,353
Unamortized net actuarial gain (loss) (2,179) 56
. 10,222 9,409
Information aboy e period are as follows:
2011 2010
$ $
919 739
168 4)
561 423
1,648 1,158

Health care benefits between the time an employee retires under OMERS,
nt age, up to the age of 65.

The City provides de
or retires at a normal re

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s liabilities are as follows:

¢ Discount rate 4.75% (2009 — 5.0%)

s  Consumer price index 2.0% (2009 - 2.0%) .

s  Prescription Drugs Trend Rate 7.67% reducing 4.0% per year to reach 4.0% per
year starting in 2019 (2009 - no change)

¢ Dental and other Medical Trend Rates 4.0% (2009 — 4.0%)
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31,2011

($000°s)

10.

1.

Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
¢) Post retirement benefits (continued)

Information about the City’s employee future employee benefits are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 14,812 13,335
Current service cost 627 584
Plan amendment - 1,014
Interest 697 629
Benefits paid (886) (750)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 15,250 14,812
Unamortized net actuarial loss (1,475) (1,598)
13,214

Since the prior valuation as at December 31,
transferred from the Province of Ontario to the Ci
inheriting a group of employees wi
the plan amendment in 2010 of

Information about the City’s emplo

2010

$

Current period 584
Cost of plan am 1,014
Amortization of net a¢ 123 123
Interest expense 697 629
1,447 2,350

ported on the consolidated statement of financial position is comprised

2011 2010
$ $
Total debt incurred by the City
including those incurred on behalf of related organizations
and outstanding at the end of the year amount to 122,035 98,009
Less: debt recoverable from school boards (680) {1,730)
Net debt at the end of the year 121,355 97,279
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°’s)

11.  Net debt (continued)

b) The net debt is comprised of the following components:

2011 2010
$ $
Operating line of credit - bearing interest at prime plus 0.25% 580 1,750
Demand loan - interest only at 3.7%, maturing in 2012 10,000 10,000
Debentures - repayable at rates ranging from 0.095% to 6.0%
and maturing from 2014 through 2031 97,601 71,636
Long-term loans - repayable at rates ranging from prime to 6
and maturing from 2015 through 2025 10,601 11,207
Banker's acceptance, interest at 4.87% fixed through
transaction, repayable quarterly, maturing 2015 with
to refinance for an additional ten years, net of tg i 2,573 2,686

97,279

During 2011, the City issued a $46,750 deben ‘
of 3.12%. This debenture was issued to fund $33
$13,050 debenture that matured in.2
entered into a $750 term loan wit

Included in accounts payable and acc
market value of the interest rate swap

Ali net debt is payable.i

sSources:

Developer
other contributions Total
$ $ $
2,452 1,872 12,853
201 1,915 1,708 14,931
2014 ,881 1,961 1,781 12,623
2015 6,705 1,704 1,817 10,226
2016 6,934 1,605 1,853 10,392
Thereafter 41,413 12,920 5,997 60,330
83,970 22,557 14,828 121,355
d) Total charges during the year for net debt are as follows:
2011 2010
$ $
Principal repayments 23,424 9,878
Interest 4,610 4,665
28,034 14,543
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

12.

13.

Obligation under capital lease:

A consolidated entity of the City has financed certain equipment by entering into capital lease
arrangement during 2011. The capital lease repayments are as follows:

2011

$
2012 40
2013 40
2014 39
2015 39
Total minimum lease payments 158
Less amount representing interest at 8.5% (24)

134

Present value of net minimum capital lease payment

Landfill post-closure liability

post-closure costs

s calculated based
041 at a factor of
years from the

The City owns one landfill site. This landfill site*
has been reported on the consolidated statemen
upon the present value of estimated.post-closure c
5.0% (2010 - 5.0%) per annum. F

date of site closure.

2011 is $5,700 (2010 - $6,000).
r31, 2011 as the City is

The esﬁmated expenditures for post-

There are no reserve fi
funding this cost anpy
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

14.

Tangible capital assets

2011
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 38,915 33,015 (3,567) 68,363
Buildings 192,993 63,894 (34) 256,853
Machinery and equipment 106,534 3,472 (14) 109,992
Assets under capital lease - 62 - 162
Vehicles 60,462 ,502 (6,673) 56,291
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water - 250,937
Storm water - 169,823
Transportation - 341,805
Waterworks 12,046 - 195,512
Assets under construction (49,242) 79,542
1,529,280

Accumulated amortization rtization

Land and land improvements

Buildings
Machinery and equi
Assets under capj
Vehicles 82 (6,035) 29,048
Infrastructure
4,491 108,551
2,627 42,146
6,175 179,459
4,904 91,680
37,467 {6,075) 591,735
Balance, end
of year of year
$ $
35,628 64,795
Buildings 138,232 195,555
Machinery and equip 37,479 34,039
Assets under capital leas _ - 130
Vehicles 30,861 27,243
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 142,318 142,386
Storm water ' 124,016 127,677
Transportation 139,411 162,346
Waterworks 96,690 103,832
Assets under construction 128,784 79,542
873,419 937,545

Page 20



City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

14.

Tangible capital assets {continued)

2010
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 37,625 1,290 - 38,915
Buildings 172,466 20,527 - 192,993
Machinery and equipment 92,532 14,462 (460) 106,534
Vehicles 60,517 (3,278) 60,462
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water - 246,378
Storm water - 163,535
Transportation - 312,695
Waterworks - 183,466
Assets under construction - 128,784
3,738) 1,433,762
Balance, end
Accumulated amortization of year
$
Land and land improvements - 3,287
Buildings - 54,761
Machinery and equipment (428) 69,055
Vehicles : (2,570) 29,601
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewel - 104,060
Storm water - 39,519
Transportation - 173,284
W Pk - 86,776
(2,998) 560,343
Balance, end
of year
$
34,599 35,628
Buildings 123,785 138,232
Machinery and* 31,992 37,479
Vehicles 35,012 30,861
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & w 145,172 142,318
Storm water 127,088 124,016
Transportation 125,774 139,411
Waterworks 94,049 96,690
Assets under construction 77,757 128,784
795,228 873,419
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

15.

Accumulated surplus
The accumulated surplus is comprised of the following components:
2011 2010

Reserves set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for employee future benefits 14,594 16,488

for stabilization and contingency 10,522 10,010
for program related purposes 11,609 6,536
Reserves set aside by The Elliott
for building and equipment maintenance - 220
Reserves set aside by Downtown Guelph Business As OC
for contingency 66 99
Reserves set aside by Wellington-Dufferin- Gue
for contingency 184
Total reserves - Schedule 4 33,537
Reserve funds set aside for specifigpurpose by Co
for capital financing purposes 05,685
Reserves set aside by The Elliott
for capital financing purposes - 237
Reserves set aside by Wellington-Duff
ur 572 627
106,269 96,549
143,247 130,086
937,545 873,419
78,260 77,871
5,950 5,722
(26,248) (38,467)
{121,489) {97,279)
(33,121) (31,277)
Landfxl! (5,700) (6,000)
Total 835,197 783,989
Accumulated su 978,444 914,075

In accordance with the policy for reserve funds, interest is earned on the average reserve fund
balance for the year at the average internal rate of return earned during the year. In 2011, $2,493 (2010
- $821) of interest was earned by the reserve funds and is recorded as a decrease in investment income
and an adjustment to the ending accumulated surplus.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

16.  Contributions to other entities

Contributions made to other entities during the year greater than $100 are as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Grand River Conservation Authority 1,395 1,356
Hospice Wellington 200 272
Guelph General Hospital 200 200
MacDonald Stewart Art Centre 175 175
Humane Society 459 414
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 1,529 1,478

3,958 3,895

17.  Expenditures by type

The following is a summary of the current exp lidated Statement of

itures reported on the
Operations and Accumulated Surplus by the type ;

penditu

2010

$ $

Salaries, wages and employee bene 155,223 143,597
Interest on net debt 4,610 4,665
Materials 36,663 29,113
Contracted servj 24,397 23,419
Rents and financig 10,313 10,284
External transfers ™ 49,051 53,583
Amortizatign, of tangible 37,467 40,811
317,724 305,482
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

18.

Government partnerships

The City’s share of 46.2% the results of the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health’s financial

activities for the year and its financial position at December 31 are included in the consolidated financial

statements using proportionate consolidation and include the amounts as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Assets 2,105 2,051
Liabilities 1,389 1,268
Net financial assets 716 783
Tangible capital assets 834 137
Prepaid expenses 43 28
Balance 877 165
Accumulated surplus 948
Revenues 8,047
Expenditures 7,241
Excess of revenue over expense 806
Accumulated surplus, beginning of y 517
Transfer to reserves (13)
Minority interest in {3 (361)
Accumulated surp} 949

During the year,
partnership.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

19. Shared service agreements

Certain programs as mandated by provincial legislation are managed by neighboring municipalities on
behalf of the City and certain programs are also managed by the City on behalf of other municipalities.

The City’s share of revenues and expenditures from social service programs managed by Wellington
County are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Revenues
Social housing 3,001 2,944
Child care 7,254 7,255
Social services 12,774 12,419
23,029 22,618
Expenditures
Social housing 16,817 16,226
Child care 9,371 9,199
Social services 17,219 19,520
43,407 44,945
Net expenditures {20,378) (22,327)

The City’s share of %%), child care 78% (2010 -

66) for the Gity's share of expenditures for the
ility.
srograms managed by the City are as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

3,504 3,214

1,878 1,913

5,382 5,127

Expenditures

Land Ambulance 7,813 6,591
Provincial offences act 1,048 973
8,861 7,564
Net expenditures : (3,479) (2,437)

The City’s share of net expenditures for land ambulance is 61% (2010 - 61%) and provincial offences
act is 53% (2010 — 54%).

The City’s share of the net expenditures for all the above programs, are included in the consolidated

statement of operations and accumulated surplus.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°’s)

20.

21.

Contingencies

a) In 2008, Urbacon Buildings Group Corp. served a Statement of Claim against the City pursuant to
the Construction Lien Act seeking damages in excess of $12,000 and punitive and other damages
totaling over $7,000. The City has filed a Statement of Defense and Counterclaim claiming
damages in the amount of $5,000. A trial date has been set for January 2013.

b) During 2010 charges were laid against the City under the Occupational Health and Safety Act
relating to a 2009 incident. During 2011, two of the three charges have been withdrawn and the
remaining maximum fine that could be imposed under this matter is $625.

c¢) During 2009 and 2010, there were various claims filed against.the City in relation to development
charge disputes. The City has filed a Statement of Defens lation to these matters. The
expected Hearing of Appeal is set for September 2012.

d) During early 2012, the City has been notified of a po totaling $529 related to the

assessment of likely outcome. The City doe
result in a significant loss, claims for which
amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated: : r,. such claims are
provided when reasonably detey

Commitments and guarantees

Council resolutio izi i i f Guelph Community Sports.

b) The City has’
June 18, 2088. ini ver the next five years are as follows:

1,340
939
819
676
688

4,462

otaling $802 resulting from agreements entered into as part of the
1 Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized upon the applicant
' criteria.

c)
Heritage Redevel
meeting all the eligi

d) The City has commitments totaling $3,545 resulting from agreements entered into as part of the
Brownfield Tax Increment Based Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized in the year
of reassessment by MPAC and when all eligibility criteria have been met by the applicant.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

21.

22,

23.

24,

25.

Commitments and guarantees (continued)
e) Other obligations include:
Hospice Wellington

The City has committed grants to Hospice Wellington through 2012 with an outstanding amount of
$200 (2010 - $400) payable annually in instalments of $200. This grant is to assist with capital
renovation costs incurred to open their new location.

Guelph General Hospital

h 2012 with an outstanding amount

The City has committed grants to Guelph General Hospital 1
s grant is o assist with the capital

of $200 (2010 - $400) payable annually in instalments of $
purchase of a new MRI machine.

MacDonald Stewart Arts Centre

The City has committed to operating grants for 20
2010 the City had committed to a capital grant
replacement that was one-time in nature

Other community grants

(2010 - $330).

Subsequent event

Subsequent {o year end, the City an
of costs owing for the period of 2006 to
was no financial impa
costs.

1 een translated to reflect changes in public sector accounting
standards on the i i tement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus by adjusting for

amounts for the debt payment and reserve transfers. Budget figures have not been audited.

Segmented information

The City of Guelph is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of
services to its citizens. For management reporting purposes, the City's operations and activities are
organized and reported on in two groups: Operating Fund and Capital Fund. These funds were created
for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions or limitations. Within the operating fund, the City’s operations are further defined
into the Tax Supported and User Pay/Enterprise categories and then segregated in to five service area
pillars: Community & Social Services, Operations & Transit, Planning & Building and Engineering &
Environment, Corporate & Human Resources, Finance & Enterprise.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000°s)

25,

26.

Segmented information (continued)

Although City services are provided internally by these defined service areas, for financial reporting, the
City has chosen to remain consistent with the Ontario Financial Information Return (FIR) and the nine
functional areas that it prescribes. This will allow comparability between our Schedule of Segment
Disclosure (Schedules 1 and 2 attached) and several schedules on the FIR that require full segment
disclosure of operating expenditures and limited disclosure of operating revenues.

The services that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information are defined by the
compositional requirements of the FIR as follows:

General Government

Office of the Mayor)

e communications, legal, corporate

&

Governance (election management, Council, Council su

Corporate management (Office of the CAOQ, finance,
properties and real estate and information technol

Protection services

perations, buildin d structural inspection,

animal control

Police services, fire services, 911 service
parking enforcement, by-law enforcem

Transportation services

Roadways - including asphal
operations and maintenance

g, traffic

Winter control, street lighting, p
Environmental services

Woater, Wastew,
Health services

Land ambula

Social housing

Planning and zonim ommittee of Adjustment, tourism, economic development, and Downtown
Guelph Business Association operations

Comparative figures

Certain 2010 comparative figures have been reclassified in order to present them in a form comparable
to those for 2011.
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of net debt - Schedule 3

December 31, 2011
('000's)
Bylaw Project description Term Maturity date Interest rates 2011 2010
$ $
Debentures:
18000 Road Projects - Gordon, Stone, Victoria, Ward 1, Clair 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 889
18000 Centennial Pool Reconstruction 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 53
18000 Bus Storage Area Expansion 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 99
18000 Transfer Station & Public Drop Off Facility 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 51
18000 East End Fire Station 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 157
18000 Pride Upgrade 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 16
16732 On behalf of the Elliott 10 15-Nov-11 3.10% to 5.95% - 14,000
16751 Roads - Woolwich: Speedvale to Woodlawn 10 10-Dec-11 2.80% to 6.00% - 378
16751 West End Community Centre 10 10-Dec-11 2.80% to 6.00% - 65
16751 Hanlon West Business Park 10 10-Dec-11 2.80% to 6.00% - 209
16751 Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion 1 10 10-Dec-~11 2.80% to 6.00% - 839
17536 On behalf of the Elliott 10 15-Sep-14 2.75% t0 5.20% 868 1,130
18622 Social Services Building Renovation 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% {0 4.70% 2,004 2,249
18622 Police HQ Renovations 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% to 4.70% 931 1,045
18622 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Cardigan, Clair 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% to 4.70% 3,937 4,417
18622 Bus Storage Area Expansion 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 135 151
18622 Organic Waste Facility - Roof Repairs 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% t0 4.70% 368 413
18105 New City Hall 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 17,323 17,804
18105 New POA Court 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 4,886 5,021
18898 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Eramosa 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 624 693
18898 South End Station 10 25-Nov-19  .085 % to 4.60% 5,467 6,071
18898 New City Hall 10 25-Nov-19 095 % 10 4.60% 1,887 2,095
18898 Land Purchase - Library 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 697 774
18898 Public Drop Off Facility 10 25-Nov-18  .095 % to 4.60% 177 197
18898 Transit Terminal Road Upgrades 10 25-Nov-18 - .095 % to 4.60% 1,531 1,700
18888 Watermain Projects - Laird, Arkell, Scout Camp 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 5,219 5,795
18898 Waste Water Treatment Plant Facility Upgrade 10 25-Nov-19 095 % to 4.60% 4,797 5,325
19294 Organic Waste Facility Composter Rebuild 10 8-Nov-21 1.25% t0 3.70% 28,000 -
19294 Civic Museum Renvovations 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% 10 3.70% 5,700 -
19294 On behalf of the Elliott 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% t0 3.70% 13,050 -
97,601 71,636
Other loans:
The Elliott Line of Credit Demand NA prime + 0.25% 580 1,750
The Elliott Bankers Acceptance - SWAP 10 25-Jun-15 4.87% 2,573 2,686
The Elliot Term Loan 5 31-Mar-15 prime 600 -
Mortgage RBC - Sieeman Centre 10 01-May-17 4,96% 4,204 4,867
Private Mortgages HCBP 10 28-Jun-11 7.50% - 288
CIBC Loan - Sleeman Centre - SWAP 18.8 01-Sep-25 6.38% 5,797 6,052
RBC Interest only loan Demand 31-Dec-12 3.70% 10,000 410,000
Net Debt before the school boards 121,355 97,279
15316 Public School Board 15 01-Nov-11  3.375% to 6.95% - 400
15648 Public Schoo! Board 15 18-Dec-12 4.50% to 6.20% 451 884
15648 Separate School Board 15 18-Dec-12 4.50% to 6.20% 229 446
Less: Receivable from School Boards {680) (1,730}
Total Net Debt 121,355 97,279
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2011
('000's)
Code Description 2011 2010
$ $
Reserves:
For Employee Future Benefits:
100 Sick Leave - Fire 3,531 3,371
101 Sick Leave - Police 3,297 3,339
102 Sick Leave - Library 894 852
103 Sick Leave - CUPE 241 2,724 2,017
209 Vacation Accrual Reserve - 5,123
330 WSIB 2,203 1,526
338 Land Ambulance Severance 345 260
NEW Early Retiree Benefits 1,600 -
14,594 16,488
For Stabilization and Contingency:
131 Employee Benefit Stabilization 2,132 2,726
180 Tax Rate Stabilization 1,894 1,671
181 Water Rate Stabilization 2,114 2,114
182 Waste Water Rate Stabilization 2,242 1,542
198 Operating Contingency 902 602
207 Human Resource Contingency - 322
191 Salary Gapping / HR Contingency 1,238 1,033
10,522 10,010
For Program Related:
184 Insurance 1,328 1,080
119 Affordable Housing 653 581
122 Brownfield Strategy 512 546
188 Building Services 1,285 978
206 Building Operating Maintenance 81 100
192 Heritage Redevelopment 908 673
193 Ontario Municipal Board 4,054 681
194 Downtown Improvements 360 200
195 Election Costs 314 183
196 Joint Job Evaluation Committee 330 206
345 Westminster Woods 35 35
208 Social Housing 300 1,094
197 Human Resource Negotiations 89 59
210 Information Technology Licences 210 100
205 Community Investment Strategy 50 20
NEW Strategic Priorities 1,100 -
11,609 6,536
Total City Reserves 36,725 33,034
Consolidated Entities
Reserves - The Elliott - 220
Reserves - Downtown Guelph Business Association 66 99
Reserves - Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health 187 184
Total Reserves 36,978 33,5637

Page 32



City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2011
('000's)
Code Description 2011 2010
$ $
Reserve Funds:
111 Fire 356 624
113 Transit 219 686
115 Police 268 427
116 Waste Management 1,335 945
118 Computers 459 866
121 Play Equipment 345 397
124 Operations Fleet 3,215 2,594
150 Capital Taxation 2,520 697
151 Capital Parking 1,961 3,589
152 Capital Waterworks 22,469 16,385
153 Capital Wastewater 26,095 22,522
155 Capital Landfill Compensation 134 139
156 Capital DC Exemption 3,158 2,248
157 Capital Library 828 850
158 Capital Police 2,556 2,243
162 Capital Sleeman Centre 9 29
164 Capital Roads 1,396 1,063
165 Capital Stormwater 181 205
166 Capital Park Planning 84 51
167 Capital Policy Planning 60 38
168 Capital Economic Development 71 40
169 Capital Operations 551 363
170 Capital Recreation 103 99
171 Capital Culture 124 (13)
172 Capital Transit 555 275
173 Capital Fire 281 198
175 Capital Corporate Property 14 99
176 Capital Info Services 153 149
177 Capital Museum 41 40
186 Capital Waste Management 493 292
189 Capital GSEC 31 31
340 Capital River Run 195 158
120 POA Relocation 179 172
159 Accessibility 505 393
160 Road Infrastructure 2,993 2,312
161 Public Transit Improvements 594 801
200 Investing Ontario Act 2,154 4,122
201 ISF - City Share Water 958 1,010
202 ISF - City Share Waste Water 1,143 1,161
203 RINC City Share 6 734
331 Road Widening 954 930
190 Building Life Cycle 654 802
353 Waterworks DC Exempt 1,698 915
82,098 71,681
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City of Guelph

Consolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2011
('000's)
Code Description 2011 2010
$ $
Carryforward from previous page 82,098 71,681
354 Wastewater DC Exempt 1,543 764
352 Greenhouse Gas 527 408
341 Locomotive 6167 1 1
355 Greening 81 -
199 City Infrastructure Fund 2,494 6,142
332 Industrial Land 4,254 2,562
350 Transportation Demand Management 21 20
135 Museum Development 58 56
136 McCrae House Development 137 130
137 Moon-McKeigan 13 13
138 Library Bequests 174 170
356 Public Art 203 -
351 Hydro Note 14,093 13,738
105,697 95,685
Consolidated Entities
Reserves - The Elliott - 237
Reserves - Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health 572 627
Total Reserve Funds 106,269 96,549
Total Reserves and Reserve Funds 143,247 130,086
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City of Guelph

Guelph Public Library Board - Schedule 5
Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2011
(000's)
2011 2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual
OPERATING FUND
Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario 167 $ 126 $ 168
Donations - 6 -
Fees and service charges 377 389 305
Sundry revenue 7 53 11
551 574 484
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 5,340 5,278 4,790
Administrative and office 1 1 2
Utilities and taxes 141 120 182
Operating supplies 274 500 112
Repairs and maintenance 344 429 420
Communications 160 163 166
Training 3 1 6
Consulting and professional fees 38 64 314
Rental and leases 813 747 635
Bank and other charges - 6 6
Furniture and equipment 22 41 3
Interest on long-term debt 27 27 25
Amortization - 280 917
7,163 7,670 7,578
Net operating deficit (6,612) (7,096) (7,094)
CAPITAL FUND
Developer contribution revenues - 52 323
Less: Tangible capital asset acquisitions (1,161) (963) (1,306)
Net capital deficit (1,161) 911) (983)
Total combined net deficit (7,773) (8,007) (8,077)
Less: net contributions (to)/from reserves - 139 74)
Less: debt principal repayments 77 (77) (76)
(7,850) (7,945) (8,227)
City of Guelph share of net deficit 7,850 7,945 8,227
Fund balance, end of year - 3 - 8 -
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City of Guelph

Guelph Police Services Board - Schedule 6
Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2011
('000's)
2011 2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual
OPERATING FUND
Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario 1,055 $ 1,170 § 1,148
- Government of Canada - - -
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets 5 61 109
Other fees and recoveries 789 1,024 1,735
1,849 2,255 2,992
Expenses
Salaries and benefits 30,804 30,857 29,370
Operating, admin and office supplies 255 260 216
Banking and other fees 5 4 3
Personnel supplies 163 154 103
Communication 199 183 148
Utilities, taxes and insurance 318 343 363
Professional consulting 870 775 757
Repairs and maintenance 262 196 173
Rental and lease 105 136 152
Fleet 515 537 467
Equipment and furniture 63 67 102
Corporate training and development 429 305 353
Interest on long-term debt 142 142 149
Amortization - 806 799
34,130 34,765 33,155
Net operating deficit (32,281) (32,510) (30,163)
CAPITAL FUND
Revenue
Developer contributions - 448 1,132
Province of Ontario grants - 173 -
Other revenues 60 13 47
60 634 1,179
Expenses
Tangible capital asset acquisitions 2,017 1,800 4,732
Net capital deficit (1,957) (1,166) (3,553)
Total combined net deficit (34,238) (33,676) (33,716)
Add: net contributions from reserves 335 1,217 279
Less: debt principal repayments (406) (406) (398)
(34,309) (32,865) (33,835)
City of Guelph share of net deficit (34,309) (32,865) (33,835

Fund balance, end of year
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De I o I tte Deloitte & Touche LLP
1005 Skyview Drive
Suite 200
Burlington ON L7P 5B1

Canada
Tel: 905-315-6770

Fax: 905-315-6700
www.deloitte.ca

June 11, 2012

Private and confidential

To the Chair and members of the Audit Committee of City of Guelph
Dear Audit Committee Members:

Report on audited annual financial statements

As agreed in our engagement letter dated October 13, 2011, we have performed an audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011,
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (“GAAS”) and expect to issue our
audit report thereon dated June 25, 2012.

This report summarizes our findings during the audit. Our audit has been conducted in accordance with
the Audit Plan that was presented to the Audit Committee members at the meeting on November 14,
2011.

Use of our report
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee, management and

others within City of Guelph and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties. Accordingly, we disclaim any responsibility to any other party who may rely on it.

We would like to express our appreciation for the cooperation we received from the officers and
employees of the City of Guelph with whom we worked to discharge our responsibilities.

We look forward to discussing this report summarizing the outcome of our audit with you and answering
any questions you may have.

Yours very truly,

'jﬁ é /,/W [,‘L,.f’

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Audit scope and findings

This report summarizes the main findings arising from our audit

Audit scope matters

Audit strategy and The audit planning and the preliminary risk assessment activities we conduct enable us to set the scope of
scope our audit and to design procedures tailored to that scope. Refer to our audit plan communicated on
November 14, 2011.

Materiality Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements, inciuding omissions, in the financial statements that,
individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of the
financial statement users. Judgments about materiality are made in the light of surrounding circumstances,
and are affected by our perception of the information needs of the financial statement users, and by the size
or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both. We are responsible for providing reasonable
assurance that your financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement.

Materiality levels are determined on the basis of consolidated results of operations. Our materiality for the
year ending December 31, 2011 was $6,000,000 (2010 — $5,800,000).

Audit risks in accordance with our audit plan, our procedures focused on the following significant risks:
e Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
e Actuarially determined liabilities
o Contingencies
¢ Council and Senior Management expenses
s Estimates
o Infastructure Stimulus Fund
e Payroll
e Procurement process
¢ Reserves and reserve funds
» Revenue/deferred revenue
» Taxation revenue
» Tangible capital asset disposals

We have summarized the results of our audit procedures for each of these risk areas on page 7 and 8 of
this report.

Group audit We are auditors of all entities within the group, with the exception of The Elliott and Guleph Hydro which are
audited by KPMG. No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. in performing the audit, we
were given full and complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation and other
information requested.

Use of the work of As planned, Deloitte and external experts assisted in the audit to the extent we considered necessary:
experts

IT specialists Participated in evaluating internal controls and in using our computerized audit
applications.

Commodity Tax Helped assess the adequacy of the City’s accounting for commodity taxes and

experts related balance sheet accounts.

Actuarial experts Helped assess the adequacy of the employee future benefit liability.

Significant None noted.
difficulties

encountered in

performing the

audit
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Audit scope matters

Audit results in accordance with Canadian GAAS, our audit is designed to enable us to express an opinion on the
faimess of the presentation of the City of Guelph's annual financial statements prepared in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Status of our audit = We expect to be in a position fo render our audit opinion dated June 25, 2012 on the consolidated financial
statements of the City of Guelph following approval of the financial statements by Council and the
completion of the following outstanding procedures:

» Receipt of documentation from KPMG relating to the audit of Guelph Hydro Inc ;
» Receipt of signed management representations fetter;

» Receipt of actuarial confirmation;

» Receipt of legal update to audit report date; and

o Completion of the Engagement Quality Controf review.

Fraud and illegal Based on the procedures we performed as recommended by CAS 240, The Auditor's Responsibilities

acts Relating to Fraud in an Audit of Financial Statements, we are not aware of any illegal acts or fraudulent
events with respect to City of Guelph during the year.

Significant events As part of our audit process, we did not identify any significant events that were not in the normal course of
operations.

Significant Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices have been discussed with management during

accounting policies the current audit period.

We believe management's selection of accounting policies to be appropriate under Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

City of Guelph'’s significant accounting policies are set forth in Note 1 to December 31, 2011 financial
statements.

Management Significant accounting estimates are disclosed in Note 1 to the financial statements.

judgment and

accounting

estimates

Audit adjustments In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all misstatements be cormrected.

and uncorrected Audit adjustments and uncorrected misstatements are summarized in appendices attached to the

misstatements management representation letter.

Adjusted and In accordance with Canadian GAAS, we request that all disclosure deficiencies be corrected.

unadjusted There were no disclosure deficiencies aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to

g:est‘;:cl:;:fl:zees the latest period presented, as all disclosure deficiencies detected in our audit have been corrected by

management.

Disagreements with

No disagreements with management.

management

Consultation with There were no consultations with other accountants relating to accounting to auditing matters that relate to
other accountants the December 31, 2011 consolidated financial statements.

Legal and Our limited procedures did not identify any areas of material non-compliance with the laws and regulations
regulatory by the City of Guelph.

compliance

Representations A draft version of the representations letter to be signed by management is included in Appendix 3.

letter

Conclusion No restrictions have been placed on the scope of our audit. In performing the audit, we were given full and

complete access to the accounting records, supporting documentation and other information requested.

We intend to issue an unmodified audit report on the consolidated financial statements of the City of Gueiph
for the year ended December 31, 2011 once the outstanding items referred to above are satisfactorily
completed and the financial statements are approved by Council.

A draft version of our Auditor’s report is included in Appendix 1.

Other matters ' y

independence

We have developed appropriate safeguards and procedures to eliminate threats to our independence or
to reduce them to an acceptable level.

As required under GAAS, we have reported all relationships and other relevant matters that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and confirmed our
independence to the Audit Committee for the year ended December 31, 2011 in Appendix 2.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.
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Other matters

Quality control QOur firm's quality control process embraces each of the elements identified in the Canadian institute of
Chartered Accountants (“CICA™} Handbook sections covering Canadian standards of quality controf for
firms that perform audits and reviews of financial statements and other assurance engagements.

A detailed description of our Quality Control process is included in the appendices to our independence
confirmation.

Communications As a part of our audit plan, we committed to communicate certain matters to the Audit Committee.
A summary of our communications is provided in appendix 4.
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Audit risks

Our audit plan identified certain areas that we refer to as significant audit risks. There have been no
changes to these risks nor have any additional risks been identified since our previous communication.
The results of our audit work on these risks are set out below:

Risks

Areas of risk

Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities

Our audit response

» Tested disbursements subsequent to

year-end to determine the
reasonableness of accounts payable
and accrued liabilities.

Tested the supporting assumptions for
accruals.

Reviewed the outcome of prior year
estimates and accruals.

Our conclusion

No material misstatements noted.
Accounts payable and accrued
liabilities are reasonable as at
December 31, 2011.

Actuarially determined liabilities

Reviewed actuary report, including
related assumptions.

Ensured appropriate accounting
treatment has been applied.

Reviewed related financial statement
note disclosure for accuracy and
completeness.

Communicated with actuary regarding
our reliance on their report for audit

purposes.

No material misstatements noted.
Actuarially determined liabilities are
reasonable as at December 31, 2011.

Contingencies

We were in contact with the
Municipality's external law firms to
obtain the status of any outstanding
claims and we reviewed the evaluation

of claims to ensure proper recognition.

No material misstatements noted.
Disclosure is complete and accurate.

Council and senior management
expenses

Reviewed a sample of expense reports
for validity and proper approval.

Expenses tested were in line with the
City's expense policies.

Estimates

Tested the supporting assumptions for
estimates.

Reviewed the outcome of prior year
estimates and accruals.

Infastructure stimulus fund

Tested deferred revenue schedule to
determine if monies received should be
reported as revenue or deferred
revenue.

Substantive testing performed on
capital expenditures.

Perform compliance testing on
procurement policy.

Management estimates were
determined to be reasonable for the
year ending December 31, 2011.

Funding spent on projects under ISF is
in line with City of Guelph’s
procurement policy.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.
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Areas of risk Our audit response Our conclusion
Payroll » Focused detail testing on payroll o No material misstatements noted.
expenditures and accruals. Payrolt expense is reasonable for the
« Substantive testing performed on year ending December 31, 2011.
variances.
Procurement process » Performed compliance testing on » Expenses subject to testing for the

procurement policy.

2011 fiscal year were reasonable and
in line with the City’s procurement
policy.

Reserves and reserve funds

o Reviewed Approval of transfers to and
from reserves and reserve funds.

No material misstatements noted.
Reserve and Reserve Funds balance
are reasonable as at December 31,
2011.

Revenue/deferred revenue

= Reviewed the recording of grants,
charges, confributions and other
monies received.

Taxation revenue

» Reviewed the City’s calculation of
taxation for municipal purposes.
Received confirmation of assessment
roll from the Municipal Property
Assessment Corporation (MPAC).

o Ensured that Management's estimate
of allowance for doubtful accounts is
reasonable.

No material misstatements noted.

No material misstatements noted.
Taxation revenue is reasonable for the
year ending December 31, 2611.

Tangible capital asset disposals

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

» Reviewed new Finance policies and
procedures related to disposals.

* Reviewed disposal schedule prepared
by management for reasonability.

Reporting on tangible capital asset
disposals has improved at the City for
the year ending December 31, 2011.
The Finance department has instituted
a new procedure to enhance
communication amongst City
departments.
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Internal control matters

We obtained an understanding of the internal control relevant to our audit. We evaluated the design of
these controls and determined whether they were implemented. We are not, however, required in a non-
integrated audit to determine whether all relevant controls are operating effectively. Although not required
by Canadian GAAS, we may decide that, for a particular engagement, it makes sense to rely on the
effective operation of scme controls to determine the planned substantive procedures we will perform. In
such cases, we would go beyond evaluating the design of relevant controls and determining whether they
have been implemented to also test whether the controls on which we intend to rely are operating
effectively throughout the period of reliance.

In our audit of City of Guelph’s financial statements, we planned to and were able to rely on internal
controls in the following areas:

¢ Budget
e Payroll
e Expenditures

Canadian GAAS requires us to report to the Audit Committee any significant deficiencies that have come

to our attention. There are no significant deficiencies noted as a result of conducting our audit, and we did
provide under separate cover two recommendations that were noted.
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Appendix 1 — Draft version of
our Auditor’s report

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
City of Guelph

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of City of Guelph, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2011, and the consolidated statements
of operations and accumulated surplus, changes in financial assets and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of City of Guelph as at December 31, 2011 and the results of its operations, its changes in net
financial assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

(To be signed Deloitte & Touche LLP)

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
June 25, 2012

Kitchener, Ontario
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Appendix 2 — Independence letter

Deloitte

Deloitte & Touche LLP
4210 King Street East
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada

June 11,2012 Tel: 519-650-7600
Fax: 519-650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Private and confidential

The Chair and Members of the Audit Committee
City of Guelph

Dear Members of the Audit Committee:

We have been engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph (the “City”)
for the year ending December 31, 2011.

Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) require that we communicate in writing with you
regarding our compliance with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence as well as all
relationships and other matters between the Company, our Firm and network firms that, in our
professional judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. We are also required to
communicate the related safeguards that have been applied to eliminate identified threats to independence
or reduce them to an acceptable level.

In determining which relationships to report, these standards require us to consider relevant rules and

related interpretations prescribed by the appropriate provincial institute / ordre and applicable legislation,

covering such matters as:

(a) holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a client;

(b) holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to exert
significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client;

(c) personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired partners,
either directly or indirectly, with a client;

(d) economic dependence on a client; and

(e) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement.

We confirm to you that the engagement team and others in the firm as appropriate, the firm and, when
applicable, network firms have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding independence
matters arising since June 21, 2011, the date of our last letter.
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City of Guelph
June 11, 2012
Page 2

Our firm has provided non-audit services to the City from June 21, 2011 to June 11, 2012. The provision
of these services, in our professional judgement, does not impair our audit independence relationship.

GAAS requires that we confirm our independence to those charged with governance in the context of the
Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. We hereby confirm
that we are independent with respect to the Company within the meaning of the Rules of Professional
Conduct of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario as of June 11, 2012.

This report is intended solely for the use of the audit committee, Council, management, and others within
the City and should not be used for any other purposes.

We look forward to discussing with you the matters addressed in this letter at our upcoming meeting on
June 11, 2012.

Yours very truly,

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
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Appendix 3 — Draft letter of
representation

June 25, 2012

Deloitte & Touche LLP
4210 King StE
Kitchener ON N2P 2G5

Dear Sirs:
Subject: Consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit by Deloitte & Touche LLP (“Deloitte”
or “you”) of the consolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph (the “City” or “we” or “us”) for
the year ended December 31, 2011, (the “Financial Statements”) for the purpose of expressing an opinion
as to whether the Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, results
of operations, and cash flows of the City in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
(“PSAS”).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. An item is
considered material, regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission from or
misstatement in the Financial Statements would influence the decision of a reasonable person relying on
the Financial Statements.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities as set out in the terms of the engagement letter between the City
and Deloitte dated October 13, 2011 for the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance
with PSAS. In particular, the Financial Statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, and
present the financial position of the City as at December 31, 2010 and December 31, 201 1and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with PSAS.

2. In preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with PSAS, management makes judgments and
assumptions about the future and uses estimates. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures
related to estimates are in accordance with PSAS. The City has appropriately disclosed in the
Financial Statements the nature of measurement uncertainties that are material, including all estimates
where it is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the
change could be material to the Financial Statements.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
June 25, 2012
Page 2

Financial statements (continued)
Significant assumptions used in making estimates are reasonable and appropriately reflect
management’s intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf of the entity. The
measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining the
estimates were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with PSAS and
appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action on behalf
of the entity.

There are no changes in management’s method of determining significant estimates in the current
year.

3. With regard to the fair value measurements and disclosures of certain assets, habilities, we believe
that:

a. The measurement methods, including the related assumptions and models, used in determining
fair value were appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied in accordance with PSAS.

b. The completeness and adequacy of the disclosures related to fair values are in accordance with
PSAS.

c. No events have occurred subsequent to December 31, 2011 that require adjustment to the fair
value measurements and disclosures included in the Financial Statements.

d. They appropriately reflect management's intent and ability to carry out specific courses of action
on behalf of the City when relevant to the use of fair value measurements or disclosures.

4. All related party relationships and transactions (including associated amounts receivable and payable)
have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in the Financial Statements in accordance with
the requirements of PSAS.

5. We have completed our review of events after December 31, 2011 and up to the date of this letter.

All events subsequent to the date of the Financial Statements and for which PSAS requires adjustment

or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed. Accounting estimates and disclosures included in the

financial statements that are impacted by subsequent events have been appropriately adjusted.

The Financial Statements are free of material errors and omissions.

Management has completed its assessment of the ability of the City to continue as a going concern

and in making its assessment did not identify any material uncertainties related to events or conditions

that may cast significant doubt upon the City's ability to continue as a going concern, which would
require disclosure in the Financial Statements. In assessing whether the going concern assumption is
appropriate, management took into account all available information about the future, which is at
least, but is not limited to, twelve months from the balance sheet date, their plans for future action and
the feasibility of these plans.

8. We have disclosed to you all known, actual or possible litigation and claims, whether or not they have
been discussed with our lawyers, whose effects should be considered when preparing the Financial
Statements. As appropriate, these items have been disclosed and accounted for in the Financial
Statements in accordance with PSAS.

NS

Information provided
9. We have provided you with:
a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
Financial Statements, such as records, documentation and other matters;
b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and,
c. Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
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Information provided (continued)

10. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the Financial
Statements.

11. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

12. We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the Financial Statements may
be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

13. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of
and that affects the entity and involves:

a. Management;
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
¢. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

14. We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the entity’s Financial Statements and all knowledge of concerns or allegations of potential
errors in the selection of accounting policies or the recording of transactions affecting the City that
have been communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others, whether
written or oral.

15. We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with
laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing the Financial Statements.

16. We have disclosed to you all communications from:

a. taxation authorities concerning assessments or reassessments that could have a material effect on
the Financial Statements; and

b. regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with or potential deficiencies in, financial
reporting requirements. We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-comphance
with the requirements of regulatory or governmental authorities, including their financial
reporting requirements.

17. We have disclosed to you any change in the City’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the current year that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

18. We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware, including guarantees, non-monetary
transactions, transactions for no consideration and participation in a defined benefit plan that shares
risks between group entities.

Independence matters

For purposes of paragraph 19, “Deloitte” shall mean Deloitte & Touche LLP and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited, its member firms and the affiliates of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms.

19. The City has not caused Deloitte’s independence to be impaired by hiring or promoting a former or
current Deloitte partner or professional employee in an accounting role or financial reporting
oversight role that would cause a violation of the Canadian independence rules or other applicable
independence rules. Prior to the City having any substantive employment conversations with a
former or current Deloitte engagement team member the City has held discussions with Deloitte and
obtained approval from the Audit Committee.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
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Work of management’s experts

20. We agree with the work of management’s experts in evaluating the Employee Future Benefits and
have adequately considered the competence and capabilities of the experts in determining amounts
and disclosures used in the Financial Statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give
any, nor cause any, instructions to be given to management’s experts with respect to values or
amounts derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not aware of any matters that have
impacted the independence or objectivity of the experts.

Compliance with contractual agreements

21. We have disclosed to you, and the City has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that
could have a material effect on the Financial Statements in the event of non-compliance, including all
covenants, conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

Title to assets

22. The City has satisfactory title to and control over all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
such assets. We have disclosed to you and in the Financial Statements all assets that have been
pledged as collateral.

Plans or intentions affecting carrying value/classification of assets and liabilities
23. We have disclosed to you all plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or
classification of assets and liabilities reflected in the Financial Statements.

Liabilities and contingencies

24. We have disclosed to you all liabilities, provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets,
including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, and they are appropriately
reflected in the Financial Statements.

Loans and receivables

25. The City is responsible for determining and maintaining the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful
notes, loans, and accounts receivable, as well as estimates used to determine such amounts.
Management believes the allowance is adequate to absorb currently estimated bad debts in the
account balance.

Environmental liabilities/contingencies

26. We have considered the effect of environmental matters on the City and have disclosed to you all
liabilities, provisions or contingencies arising from environmental matters. All liabilities, provisions,
contingencies and commitments arising from environmental matters, and the effect of environmental
matters on the carrying values of the relevant assets are recognized, measured and disclosed, as
appropriate, in the Financial Statements.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
June 25, 2012
Page 5

Employee future benefits

27.

28.

Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been properly recorded and adequately
disclosed in the Financial Statements including those arising under defined benefit and defined
contribution plans as well as termination arrangements. We believe that the actuarial assumptions
and methods used to measure defined benefit plan assets, liabilities and costs for financial accounting
purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

We have disclosed to you any intentions of terminating any of our pension plans, or taking any other
action that could result in an effective termination or reportable event for any of the plans. We have
disclosed to you any occurrences that could result in the termination of any of our pension or multi-
employer plans to which we contribute.

Various matters

29. The following have been properly recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed and
presented in the Financial Statements:
a. economic dependence on another party;
b. losses arising from sale and purchase commitments;
¢. agreements to buy back assets previously sold;
d. provisions for future removal and site restoration costs;
e. financial instruments with significant individual or group concentration of credit risk, and related
maximum credit risk exposure;
f.  sales with recourse provisions;
g. sales incentives, including cash consideration provided to customers and vendor rebates;
h. arrangements with financial institutions involving compensating balances or other arrangements
involving restriction on cash balances and line-of-credit or similar arrangements;
1. all impaired loans receivable;
j. loans that have been restructured to provide a reduction or deferral of interest or principal
payments because of borrower financial difficulties.
Investments
30. The City does not hold any investments in Master Asset Vehicle notes (which replaced third party

non-bank asset backed commercial paper).

Long-lived assets

31

With respect to the City’s long-lived assets, we have recognized and recorded the fair value of all
legal obligations associated with the retirement of those related assets.
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UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

Pre-Tax Cotrecting Entry
Balance Sheet
Retained
Eamings Beg of] ncome
Assels Liabilities Year Other Equity ACs | Statement
Dr {Cr) Dr (Crj br{Cn Dr (Cr) Dr (Cr)
CURRENT YEAR MISSTATEMENTS
Known Misstatements (CY)
Cutoff error for revenue (432,021 432 024
Past disposal of buses expensed in the current year 1,041,160 (1,041,160
Total Known Misstatements (CY) 609,132 [} 0 (602, 139))
Likely Misstatements (CY)
Cutoff error for revenue (77,121 77,121
Total Likely Misstatements (CY) (77,121) 1] o 77,121
Total Known + Likely Current-Year Misstatements (C 532,018 ] 0 (532,018
CARRYOVER EFFECT OF PRIOR YEAR MISSTATEMENTS
Factual Misstatements (PY)
Tangible Capital Asset Disposal Error I 1 (442,126)] 442,126
| i |
[ w2 4212
Total Factual and Likely Misstatements After Tax | 532,018 - {442,126} - (89,892
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Appendix 4 — Communication

requirements

In our audit plan, we committed to communicate certain items to the Audit Committee on a regular basis

or as specified events occur. These items are summarized below.

Required communication ' Comments

1.  Our responsibilities under GAAS. See our audit plan which was
communicated on November 14, 2011.

2. Our audit strategy and scope, including our approach to auditing financial See our audit plan which was

information of components of the group audit and our planned involvement in
work performed by component auditors.

communicated on November 14, 2011.

3. Management judgment and accounting estimates.

No issues noted - see comments on page 2.

4. Financial statement adjustments.

There were no audit adjustments and no
uncorrected misstatements.

5. Uncorrected misstatements and disclosure deficiencies.

There were no audit adjustments and no
uncorrected misstatements.

6. Significant accounting policies.

See Note 1 to the 2011 Financial
statements.

7. Alternative treatments for accounting policies and practices that have been
discussed with management during the current audit period.

No alternative significant accounting
policies were noted.

8.  Our views about significant qualitative aspects of City of Guelph's accounting
practices, including accounting policies, accounting estimates and financial
statement disclosures.

Significant accounting practices — see page
2 of this report.

9.  Our responsibility for other information in documents containing audited

10. Disagreements with management.

financial statements (e.g., MD&A), any procedures performed, and the results.

We will review the annual report when
provided by management.

None.

11. Our views about significant matters that were the subject of consuitation with

other accountants.

There were no consultations with other
accountants relating to accounting or
auditing matters affecting the December 31,
2011 financial statements.

12. Major issues discussed with management prior to our retention.

13. Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit.

14. Material written communications between management and us.

None.

None.

Engagement letter dated October 13, 2011

15. Al relationships between City of Guelph and us that, in our professional
judgment, may reasonably be thought to bear on independence.

See Independence letter - Appendix 2

16. A statement that, in our judgment, our engagement team and others in our firm

as appropriate, our firm itself and, when applicabie, network firms have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

17. lllegal or possibly illegal acts.

18. Fraud or possible fraud identified through the audit process.

See Independence letter - Appendix 2

No fraud, errors or illegal acts noted.

None noted.

19. Significant transactions inconsistent with normal course of business, including

related party transactions.

To be discussed during in-camera session.

None noted.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.
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Required communication Comments

21. Limitations placed on our scope. None.
22. Written representations the auditor is requesting. Draft management's representations letter —
Appendix 3
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Appendix 5 — Standard-setting update
as of April 9, 2012

Public sector accounting standards

Effective date

Final standards

Consequential Amendments Resulting from Section 3450, Financial Instruments

At their meeting on December 15-16, 2011, the Public Sector Accounting Board (‘PSAB"}
approved these amendments to the PSA Handbook, including the withdrawal of Section
PS 3030, Temporary Investments, and amendments to Section PS 3040, Portfolic
Investments. In response to respondents’ feedback, some clarifications to the

Fiscal years beginning
on or after April 1, 2012
for government
organizations, and

April 1, 2015 for

amendments were made in finalizing the changes. governments.

Handbook improvements Fiscal years beginning

At their meeting on December 15-16, 2011, the PSAB approved a series of final on or after April 1, 2012
for government

“Handbook improvement” changes clarifying various Sections of the Public Sector
Accounting Handbook as a result of (i) the issue of new Section PS 3450, Financial
Instruments, and (ii) recent changes to Canadian assurance standards that warrant more
specific guidance on what constitutes the date of completion of financial statements.

organizations, and April
1, 2015 for
governments.

Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards - Government Not-for-Profit
Organizations

The Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards was amended to require that, for
purposes of their financial reporting, government not-for-profit organizations should
adhere to the standards for not-for-profit organizations in the CICA Public Sector
Accounting (PSA) Handbook or the standards in the CICA PSA Handbook without
Sections PS 4200 to PS 4270.

January 1, 2012

Introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards — Government Business
Enterprises

The introduction to Public Sector Accounting Standards was amended to confirm that, for
purposes of their financial reporting, government business enterprises should adhere to
the standards applicable to publicly accountable enterprises in the CICA Handbook —
Accounting Part 1. The government business-type organization category of government
organizations was eliminated and Appendix B was removed.

January 1, 2011

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

Section PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation

The new Section PS 1201 replaces existing Section PS 1200, Financial Statement
Presentation, and includes a new statement of remeasurement gains and losses. The new
statement will report:

s unrealized gains and losses associated with financial instruments in the fair value
category;

e exchange gains and losses associated with monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in a foreign currency that have not been settled;

» amounts reclassified to the statement of operations upon derecognition or settlement;
and other comprehensive income reported when a public sector entity includes the
results of its government business enterprises and government business partnerships
in the summary financial statements.

Government
organizations:

- April 1, 2012
Governments:
- April 1, 2015

Section PS 2100 (Revised), Disclosure of Accounting Policies

PSAS approved an amendment to Section PS 2100, Disclosure of Accounting Policies, to
deal with recent changes to the source of accounting standards applied by various types
of organizations in Canada.

————t

January 1, 2011
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Final standards Effective date

Section PS 2125, First-time Adoption of Public Sector Accounting Standards by
Government Organizations

This new Section establishes recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
standards relating to adoption by a government organization of the CICA Public Sector
Accounting Handbook for the first time.

In July 2011, the PSAB Staff have prepared and issued a Summary Comparison as at
June 30, 2011 between the PSAS Handbook and Part V of the CICA Handbook —
Accounting. The purpose of the document to assist government organizations that are
now required to foliow the PSAB Handbook instead of following Part V of the CICA
Handbook — Accounting.

January 1, 2011

Section PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation

The new Section PS 2601 replaces existing Section PS 2600, Foreign Currency
Transiation.

Major changes from Section PS 2600 include:

« elimination of deferral and amortization of unrealized gains and losses arising from
foreign currency translation before settlement;

o withdrawal of hedge accounting as it is unnecessary under the new treatment of
unrealized gains and losses; and

» separating realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses and reporting
them in different statements.

Government
organizations:

- Aprit 1, 2012
Governments:
- Aprit 1, 2015

Section PS 3260, Liability for Contaminated Sites

This new Section establishes recognition, measurement and disclosure standards for
liabilities relating to contaminated sites of governments and those organizations applying
the CICA Public Sector Accounting Handbook.

April 1, 2014

Section PS 3410 (Revised), Government Transfers

PSAB approved a final standard to replace existing Section PS 3410, which establishes
standards on how governments should account for and report government transfers to
individuals, organizations and other governments from both a transferring government and
a recipient government perspective.

April 1, 2012

Section PS 3450, Financial Instruments

This new accounting standard Section PS 3450 provides comprehensive guidance on the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial instruments, including
derivatives, by government organizations.

Govermnment
organizations:

- Aprit 1, 2012
Governments:
- Aprit 1, 2015

Section PS 3510, Tax Revenue

This new Section establishes recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
standards relating to tax revenue reported in financial statements.

Section PS 3800, Government Assistance

In June 2010, this Section has been withdrawn as a resuit of the adoption of IFRSs by
certain government organizations. Section PS 3800 will remain in effect until the adoption
of IFRSs for fiscal periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011, unless a government
organization has elected early adoption.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

Section PS 4200 - PS 4270, Government Not-for-profit Organizations

The PSAB approved the inclusion of the PS 4200 to PS 4270 series of standards into the
PSA Handbook for use by government organizations applying the standards for not-for-
profit organizations.

April 1, 2012
Withdrawn — January 1,

2011

January 1, 2012
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Proposed Standards

Characteristics of Public Sector Entities

On August 25, 2011, in connection with the PSAB project, Concepts Underlying
Financial Performance {see separate Project item for details) the PSAS’s Conceptual
Framework Task Force has issued their first Consultation Paper, entitled Characteristics
of Public Sector Entities, for comment by October 15, 2011. The Consultation Paper
provides an overview of the key characteristics of public sector entities identified by the
Task Force and seeks input from stakeholders regarding (i) these characteristics and (ii}
their accounting and reporting implications for general purpose financial statements.

Cotriment peflod
ends

October 15, 2011

Financial Instruments — Transitional Provisions

On January 10, 2012, the PSAB issued an ED that proposes to amend Section PS
2601, Foreign Currency Translation, and Section PS 3450, Financial Instruments, to
provide additional transitional guidance to government organizations, including in
particular in respect of accumulated unrealized gains and losses on self-sustaining
foreign operations and related hedges and in respect of accumulated unrealized gains
and losses on securities that were previously classified as available-for-sale.

February 24, 2012

Financial Statements for Government Organizations (formerly Entity Level
Financial Statements)

The objective of this SOP is to obtain comments on the tentative conclusions of the
PSARB prior to the issue of an exposure draft that will provide guidance for deparimental,
ministerial or other governmental entity level general purpose financial statements.

September 28, 2009

IPSASB - Conceptual Framework for General Purpose Financial Reporting by
Public Sector Entities: Presentation in General Purpose Financial Reports

On February 8, 2012 the PSAB has issued for comment the IPSASB’s January 2012
Consuitation Paper, Conceptual Framework for General Purpose Financial Reporting by
Public Sector Entities: Presentation in General Purpose Financial Reports. The
Consuitation Paper explores concepts applicable to presentation of information in
general purpose financial reports. Canadian stakeholders are encouraged to provide
their views to IPSASB.

May 31, 2012

RES—

IPSASB - Recommended Practice Guideline, Reporting on the Long-Term
Sustainability of a Public Sector Entity’s Finances

On November 14, 2011, the IPSASB has issued an ED that proposes a new
Recommended Practice Guideline (RPG), Reporting on the Long-Term Sustainability of
a Public Sector Entity’s Finances. The objective of this project is to provide guidance on
how to present information on a public sector entity’s long-term fiscal sustainability to
supplement information in the general purpose financial statements and meet the
objectives of financial reporting—accountability and decision-making.

The PSAB encourages Canadian stakeholders to provide their views to the IPSASB on
this ED.

February 29, 2012

IPSASB — Reporting Service Performance information

On November 14, 2011, the IPSASB has issued a Consultation Paper (CP), Reporting
Service Performance Information. The primary objective of this CP is to present a
principles-based approach to developing a consistent framework for reporting service
performance information of public sector entities, a framework that focuses on meeting
the needs of intended users.

The PSAB encourages Canadian stakeholders to provide their views to the IPSASB on
this CP.

April 14, 2012

Project Identification Survey (2011)

The PSAB has issued its 2011 Project Identification Survey to seek stakeholder input
into its future project selection process. The document includes an attached list of
possible projects for the consideration of stakeholders.

At its meeting on December 15-16, 2011, the PSAS approved its Work Plan for 2012-13,
which takes into account the responses to the Project Identification Survey. The Work
Plan will now be reviewed by the Accounting Standards Oversight Council. Extra time
was added to each PSAS meeting in 2012 to accommodate the development of its
2013-2016 Strategic Plan. The Board agreed that a draft strategic plan would be
published for comment once developed. The current strategic plan comes to an end on
March 31, 2013.

May 25, 2011

exposure draft regarding the use of appropriations.

PSAS - Use of Appropriations

On February 27, 2012 the PSAB has issued for comment a Statement of Principles that
seeks input on key principles and definitions that the Board expects to include in a future

April 20, 2012

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.
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Comment period

Proposed Standards ends

Related Party Transactions — Definition and Disclosure November 30, 2011

On October 5, 2011, the PSAS has issued for comment an ITC, entitied Refated Party
Transactions — Definition and Disclosure, for comment by November 14, 2011. The ITC
provides details of the key principles and definitions with respect fo accounting for
related party transactions that the Board expects to include in a future exposure draft -
which is planned to be approved for issue by the PSAB in December 2011.

On November 14, 2011, the PSAB advised that the deadline for comments on the ITC
has been extended from November 14, 2011 to November 30, 2011.

Related Party Transactions — Recognition and Measurement November 30, 2011

On October 5, 2011, the PSAB has issued for comment an Issues Paper, entitled
Related Party Transactions — Recognition and Measurement, for comment by November
14, 2011. The Issues Paper seeks views on recognition and measurement of related
party transactions as well as information on how these transactions are currently
accounted for. The Board intends to issue an exposure draft in respect of accounting for
related party transactions - which is planned to be approved for issue by the PSAB in
December 2011.

On November 14, 2011, the PSAB advised that the deadline for comments on the
Issues Paper has been extended from November 14, 2011 to November 30, 2011.

Update of Terminology September 30, 2011

On July 14, 2011, the PSAB has issued an ED that proposes to amend certain
standards and guidelines to clarify their applicability fo various public sector entities.
The PSAB Plans to approve these changes to the PSAS Handbook in December 2011.

At their meeting on December 15-16, 2011, the PSAB reviewed responses received.

Projects Last updated

Amalgamations and Restructuring February 2011

The objective of this project is to issue an accounting standard that addresses the
definition and classification of amalgamation and restructuring activities, the recognition
criteria and accounting treatment of such transactions, the measurement basis of assets
and liabilities involved and the disclosure requirements unique to amalgamation and
restructuring activities.

Appropriations January 2012

The objective of this project is to issue a new accounting standard that addresses
recognition and disclosure of appropriations.

At their meeting on December 15-16, 2011, the PSAB approved a SOP on the use of
appropriations. The PSAB agreed that entities who receive their funding from transfers
of assets would apply the principles in Section PS 3410, Government Transfers. As a
further scope clarification, the SOP emphasizes that the standard only applies to those
entities that are required to or have chosen to issue general purpose financial
statements. The SOP is expected to be issued in February 2012.

Asset Retirement Obligations January 2012

The objective of this project is to issue an accounting standard that addresses the
reporting of legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived tangible capital
assets currently in productive use. Recognition and measurement of the liability will be a
major issue as will be accounting for the related expense. A SOP is planned to be
issued in September 2012.

Assets November 2011
The objective of this project is to issue one or more accounting standards to provide
more detailed guidance with respect to accounting for assets. including contingent
assets and contractual rights.

As of November 2011, the PSAB now expects to approve a SOP in June 2012, an ED in
March 2013 and a final Handbook material in September 2013.
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Last updated

f'rojet;ts

Completeness of the PSAS Handbook

The objective of this project is to identify the accounting topics currently covered in the
CICA Handbook — Accounting that are not addressed in the PSAB Handbook and
consider their relevance for govemments and government organizations. PSAB also
approved the recruitment of an advisory group that will assist staff in the identification and
prioritizing of topics not covered in the PSAB Handbook of relevance to governments and
government organizations.

At its meeting on September 28-30, 2011, the PSAB asked staff to prepare four project
proposals to be considered for the 2012-2013 fiscal year, namely standards projects on
(i} asset retirement obligations; (ii} service concession arrangements; (iii) impairment of
non-financial assets; and (iv) long term fiscal sustainability. The PSAB aiso requested
staff to prepare an analysis to assess the various changes under development or issued
by other standard setters with respect to defined benefit pension accounting and whether
PSAS should consider changing its standards.

October 2011

Concepts Underlying Financial Performance

The objective of this project is to review and amend, if necessary, the conceptual
framework in Sections PS 1000, Financial Statement Concepts, and PS 1100, Financial
Statement Objectives. This review could also affect Section PS 1201, Financial
Statement Presentation.

At their meeting on December 15-16, 2011, the PSAB received a presentation regarding
the Task Force’s August 2011 Consultation Paper detailing the 24 responses received,
the Task Force’s consideration of the issues raised and the proposed disposition. The
Task Force noted that an issues analysis, responding to the major issues raised, will
accompany a second Consultation Paper.

PSAB provided feedback to the Task Force on next steps in the project. A revision to the
timeline is proposed to accommodate additional issues raised in the responses. PSAB
encouraged the Task Force to consider other methods of consuilting with constituents as
well as ways to shorten the proposed timeline, while recognizing that a conceptual
framework project is a significant undertaking. Previously the PSAB had expected to
approve a SOP in December 2012, an ED in December 2013 and a final Handbook
material in December 2014.

Related Party Transactions

The objective of this project is to issue a new accounting standard that defines a related
party in the context of government and government organizations, describes the
disclosure required for related parties and related party transactions and addresses
recognition and disclosure of appropriations.

As of December 2011, the PSAB expects to issue a SOP in Q1/2012, an ED in Q3/2012
and final Handbook material in Q4/2012.

November 2011

June 2011

Revenue
The objective of this project is to address accounting and financial reporting issues
related to revenue recognition.

As of November 2011, the PSAB now expects to approve a SOP in March 2012, an ED in
September 2012 and final Handbook material in March 2013

November 261 1

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

Review of the Not-for-profit Standards in the PSAS Handbook

The objective of this project is to review the not-for-profit standards, Sections PS 4200 to
PS 4270, that were recently included into the PSAB Handbook for completeness and for
any issues related to their integration with the rest of the PSAB Handbook,

May 2011
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Appendix 6 — Deloitte resources
a click away

At Deloitte, we are committed to excellence in the provision of professional services and advice, always
focusing on client service. To this end, we have developed numerous resources, which contain relevant
and timely information for our clients and are accessible by our clients. Included below is an overview of
these resources. These resources are available through the Deloitte Portal (www.deloitte.com/ca/portal).

Other resources

Canadian resources

Audience

Description and frequency

Centre for Corporate Governance
www.corpgov.deloitte.ca

o Audit Committee members
e Board members

e CEO/CFO

¢ Internal auditor

o [Legal counsel

Web site specifically designed to help board
members with their responsibilities.

It provides the latest information on
regulatory and legislative developments,
accounting and financial reporting, board
roles and responsibilities, and best
practices.

DeloitteLINK
www.deloitte.com/ca/DeloitteLINK

Deloitte Learning Academy
www.deloittelearningacademy.ca/

Deloitte Update
www.deloitte.com/ca/update

Directors’ Series
www.deloitte.com/ca/DirectorsSeries

Integrity in the Spotlight

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.

e CFO Weekly e-newsletter that helps the finance

+ VP Finance _teﬁm .lo stay on top of standard-setting
initiatives.

e Controller

» Financial reporting team

¢ CFO A range of courses targeted to accounting

e V-P Finance professionals which can be selected a la

o Internal auditor carte, bundled into a specific learning

e Controller program, or delivered as a full start-to-finish

o Financial reporting team suite. Our current offerings inciude

e CFO

e V-P Finance

s Controller

¢ Financial reporting team

e Audit Committee members
o CEO/CFO

¢ Internal auditor

e Legal counsel

International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS); Accounting Standards for Private
Enterprises (ASPE); and Public Sector
Standards (PSAS).

Learning webcasts offered throughout the
year featuring Deloitte professionals
discussing critical issues that affect your
business.

Live satellite broadcasts to locations across

the country conducted four or five times per
year. They provide Canadian corporate
directors with an opportunity to keep up with
their learning requirements in a time of
frequent change and new demands.

o Audit Committee members
« CEO/CFO

¢ Internal auditor

» Legal counsel

Second edition of a book on Audit
Committee effectiveness, co-authored by
retired Deloitte partner Jim Goodfellow and
Maureen Sabia, chair of Canadian Tire. The
book is a useful tool for discussions with
your Audit Committee.
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Other resources

On the Agenda Audit Committee members Bi-monthiy e-newsietter that advises
CEQICEO directors about recent developments
} affecting their responsibilities, including the
Internal auditor points of view of Deloitte professionals.
L egal counsel
Standard-Setting Activities Digest CFO Monthly online updates on recent
www.deloitte.com/ca/standards V-P Finance KSR W S SECER
5 - comprehensive list of standard-setting

Financial reporting feam

organizations.

© Deloitte & Touche LLP and affiliated entities.
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Waterloo ON N2J 5A3

Canada

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Trustees

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Elliott, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at March 31, 2011, the statements of operations and deficit and cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian generaily accepted accounting principles, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order {o design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. -

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
The Elliott as at March 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

Kns 447
it

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

June 28, 2011
Waterloo, Canada



THE ELLIOTT

Statement of Financial Position

March 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010

2011 2010
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ - $ 260
Accounts receivable 118,924 193,915
Prepaid expenses 62,561 59,868
Trust funds heid for residents 1,301 22,699
182,786 276,742
Buildings and equipment (note 3) 22,226,264 23,885,892
Equipment under capital leases 129,436 -
$ 22,538,486 $ 24,162,634
Liabilities, Deferred Contributions and Net Assets (Deficit)
Current liabilities:
Bank indebtedness : $ 401,312 $ -
Operating line of credit (note 4) 580,000 1,750,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 999,808 829,756
Deferred revenue 42,558 4,964
Trust funds held for residents 1,301 22,699
Current portion of long-term debt 631,835 457,166
Current portion obligations under capital leases 39,552 -
2,696,366 3,064,585
Long-term debt (note 5) 22,358,075 22,386,429
Deferred capital contributions (note 6) 657,035 725,034
Obligations under capital leases (note 7) 94,173 -
Fair value of interest rate swap contract 153,601 166,150
Net assets (deficit):
Unrestricted (3,420,764) (2,636,360)
Internally restricted (note 8) - 456,796
(3,420,764) (2,179,564)
Commitments (note 9)
$ 22,538,486 $ 24,162,634
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
On behalf of the Board:
Trustee Trustee




THE ELLIOTT

Statement of Operations and Deficit

Year ended March 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010

2011 2010
Revenue:
Accommodation:
Basic $ 6,948,079 $ 6,574,480
Preferred 340,875 313,374
Suite re-leasing (note 10) 170,675 178,295
Subsidy - Ontario Ministry of Health
and Long-Term Care 3,952,219 3,261,820
Alternate level of care transitional revenue - 629,800
Community centre rental 31,228 31,534
Cable television fees 92,760 89,886
Other revenue 267,055 217,493
Donations 32,830 6,537
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (note 6) 67,989 53,479
11,903,720 11,356,698
Expenses:
Wages and salaries 6,184,853 6,138,228
Employee benefits 1,228,840 1,096,670
Supplies 275,545 288,675
Meals and nourishments 647,745 606,514
Repairs and replacements 624,128 430,223
Travel 3,547 1,524
Professional development 17,546 17,263
Computer and software 88,118 32,608
Utilities 574,298 539,550
insurance 36,592 35,686
Telephone and communications 38,604 20,826
Medical director 22,246 13,693
Professional fees 47,841 24,035
Waste removal 17,505 16,182
Grounds maintenance and landscaping 24,847 27,130
Elevator maintenance 42,578 38,110
Office and general 18,004 12,282
Marketing and promotion 19,855 13,972
Municipal taxes 163,053 160,874
Cable television 88,171 87,114
Other 5,277 17,735
Interest 1,258,670 1,262,019
Accretion of deferred financing costs 3,481 3,481
Amortization of buildings and equipment 1,726,125 1,708,343
Fair value adjustment on interest rate swap (12,549) (265,281)
13,144,920 12,327,456
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (1,241,200) (970,758)
Deficit, beginning of year (2,179,564) (1,208,806)
Deficit, end of year $ (3,420,764) $ (2,179,564)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THE ELLIOTT

Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended March 31, 2011, with comparative figures for 2010

2011 2010
Cash provided by (used in):
Operations:
Deficiency of revenue over expenses (1,241,200) (970,758)
ltems not involving cash:
Amortization of buildings and equipment 1,728,309 1,712,507
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (67,999) (563,479)
Accretion of deferred financing costs 3,481 3,481
Gain on disposal of equipment (2,184) (4,164)
Change in fair value of interest rate swap (12,549) (265,281)
Change in non-cash working capital balances
arising from operating activities:
Accounts receivable 74,991 (24,936)
Prepaid expenses (2,693) 4,102
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 170,052 (199,622)
Deferred revenue 37,594 1,955
687,802 203,805
Financing:
Increase (decrease) in operating line of credit (1,170,000) 380,000
Repayments of long-term debt (607,166) (434,366)
Advance of long-term debt 750,000 -
Principal repayments on capital lease (28,070) -
Capital contributions received - 14,521
(1,055,236) (39,845)
Investments:
Purchase of buildings and equipment (36,322) (135,028)
Proceeds on disposal 2,184 4,164
(34,138) (130,864)
Decrease (increase) in bank indebtedness (401,572) 33,096
Cash (bank indebtedness), beginning of year 260 (32,836)
Cash (bank indebtedness), end of year (401,312) 260

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements

Year ended March 31, 2011

The Elliott is incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario and its principal business activity is
the provision of sheltered care and services for seniors.

1. Significant accounting policies:

C))

(b)

(c)

Basis of presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles and they include the operations of:

Long-term care residence - reflects the activities associated with the provision of care in the
full nursing arrangements of the long-term care facility.

Life lease suites - reflects the activities associated with the operation of the life lease suites.

Retirement suites - reflects the activities associated with the operation of the retirement
facility.

Revenue recognition:

The Elliott follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions which include donations
and government grants.

Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Externally restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are recognized. Contributions restricted for the purchase of buildings and
equipment are deferred and amortized into revenue on a straight-line basis, at a rate
corresponding with the amortization rate of the related buildings and equipment.

Revenue from suite re-leasing, preferred accommodation, interest, as well as income from
parking and other ancillary operations, is recognized when the goods are sold or the service
is provided.

Buildings and equipment:

Purchased buildings and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed buildings and
equipment are recorded at fair value at the date of contribution. Amortization is recorded
over the estimated useful lives of the assets on a straight-line basis at various useful lives
between 5 and 40 years.



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2011

1. Significant accounting policies {continued):

(d)

(e)

{f)

(@)

(h)

Financing costs:

Financing costs are netted against the related financial liability and accreted to expense
using the effective interest rate method over the term of the liability.

Contributed services:

A substantial number of volunteers contribute a significant amount of their time each year.
Because of the difficulty of determining the fair value, contributed services are not recognized
in the financial statements.

Financial instruments:

The Elliott has classified cash, bank indebtedness, operating line of credit and its derivative
instruments as held-for-trading which are measured at fair value with changes in the fair
value reported in earnings.

Accounts receivable are classified as loans and receivables, which are measured at
amortized cost. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and long-term debt are classified as
other financial liabilities, which are measured at amortized cost.

Derivative financial instruments:

Derivative financial instruments are utilized by The Elliott in the management of its interest
rate exposures. The Elliott's policy is not to utilize derivative financial instruments for trading
or speculative purposes. The Elliott enters into interest rate swaps in order to reduce the
impact of fluctuating interest rates on one of its long-term debts. The swap agreement
requires periodic exchange of payments without the exchange of the notional principal
amount on which the payments are based. Interest expense on the debt is adjusted to
include the payments made or received under the interest rate swaps.

Use of estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the year. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions
include the carrying amount of buildings and equipment, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and valuation allowances for receivables. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2011

2. Future accounting standards:

The Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) and the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) have
issued new accounting standards for private not-for-profit organizations (other NPOs) and
Government not-for-profit organizations (Government NPOs), respectively. Management has
assessed that the Elliott is a Government NPO.

These standards are effective for fiscal years commencing on or after January 1, 2012. The
Elliott is currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact of adopting these changes for
the year ending March 31, 2013.

3. Buildings and equipment:

2011 2010

Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Buildings $ 34,571,394 $ 12,704,209 $ 21,867,185 $ 23,449,934
Machinery and equipment 2,421,941 2,062,862 359,079 435,958

Vehicles 32,250 32,250 - -
37,025,585 14,799,321 22,226,264 23,885,892

Equipment under capital leases:
Equipment under capital
leases 161,795 32,359 129,436 -

$ 37,187,380 §$ 14,831,680 $ 22,355,700 $ 23,885,892

The above buildings and equipment do not include those assets related to the life lease suites
building and equipment other than the cost of the security system and common area renovations.
The terms and conditions of suite—leasing transfer the responsibility and stewardship of the
individual suites to the residents occupying the suites.

4. Operating line of credit:

The operating line of credit bears interest at bank prime (2010 - bank prime plus 0.25%).



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2011

5. Long-term debt:

2011 2010
5.06% mortgage held by the City of Guelph, payable in monthly
installments of $112,777 principal and interest, maturing
December 25, 2037 $ 19,816,896 $ 20,158,062
Term loan, bearing interest at bank prime, payable in annual
installments of $150,000 plus interest, repayable in full March
31,2015 600,000 -
Banker's acceptance, with interest of 4.87% per annum fixed
through a swap transaction, quarterly payments of interest
and principal, maturing June 25, 2015 with an option to
refinance for an additional ten years 2,667,000 2,783,000
_ ) : 23,083,896 22,941,082
Current portion of fong-term debt 631,835 457,166
22,452,061 22,483,896
Transaction costs 93,986 97,467

- $ 22,358,075 $ 22,386,429

Principal repayments are due as follows:

2012 $ 631,835
2013 658,419
2014 684,966
2015 714,525
2016 2,567,149
Thereafter 17,827,002

$ 23,083,896

Interest expense on fong-term debt for the year amounted to $1,169,574 (2010 - $1,201,492).



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2011

6. Deferred capital contributions:

Deferred contributions represent the unamortized amounts of donations and grants received for
the purchase of buildings and equipment. The amortization of contributions is recorded as
revenue in the statement of operations:

2011 2010

Balance, beginning of year $ 725,034 $ 763,992
Less amounts amortized to revenue during the year (67,999) (63,479)

- 14,521

Capital contributions received

$ 657,035 $ 725,034

7. Obligations under capital leases:

The Elliott has financed phone equipment by entering into a capital lease arrangement. Capital
lease repayments are due as follows:

2011

2012 $ 39,5652
2013 39,552
2014 39,552
2015 39,552
Total minimum lease payments 158,208
Less amount representing interest at 8.5% 24,483
Present value of net minimum capital lease payments 133,725
Current portion of obligations under capital lease 39,552
3 94,173

Interest of $11,482 relating to the capital lease obligations have been included in interest expense.

8. Internally restricted net assets:

In prior years the Board of Trustees had internally restricted $456,796 of unrestricted net assets to
fund buildings and equipment. In the current year the Board of Trustees unrestricted this amount.



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2011

9. Commitments:

The Elliott is committed to a minimum annual lease payment under outstanding operating leases

as follows:

2012 $ 4,984
2013 3,903
2014 3,903
2015 3,683
2016 1,221

10. Suite re-leasing fees:

The Elliott provides a service of coordinating the re-leasing of the life lease suites. A fee is
charged for this service at 10% of the selling price of the re-leased units.

2011 2010
Suite re-leasing revenue $ 1,713,600 $ 1,789,800
Suite re-leasing costs 1,542,925 1,611,505

$ 170,675 $ 178,295

11. Supplemental cash flow information:

2011 2010
Cash paid for interest $ 1,209,460 $ 1,236,119
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Acquisition of equipment
through capital leases 161,795 -




THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2011

12. Financial instruments:

(a)

(b)

(b)

Fair value:

The carrying values of accounts receivable, bank indebtedness, operating line of credit and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair vaiue due to the relatively
short periods to maturity of these items.

The carrying value of the mortgage approximates the fair value as the terms and conditions
of the borrowing arrangement are comparable to current market terms and conditions for
similar items.

The fair value of the interest rate swap contracts is estimated by obtaining quotes from The
Elliott's bank for the same or similar instruments.

Associated risks:
(i) Interest rate risk:

interest rate risk refers to the adverse consequences of interest rate changes on The
Elliott’s cash flows, financial position and income.

Associated risks (continued):
() Interest rate risk (continued):

The Elliott uses variable interest rate loans to partially fund its operations. To manage
its exposure to fluctuating interest rates, The Elliott enters into interest rate swap
contracts to fix its interest rates for specific periods. As at March 31, 2011, The Elliott
has entered into an interest rate swap contract to fix its interest rates on $2,667,000
(2010 - $2,783,000) of its potential fluctuating rate loans. The Elliott's obligation as at
March 31, 2011, with relation to this contract, is $153,601 (2010 - $166,150).

(i) Creditrisk:
Credit risk is the risk that counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The Elliott is
exposed to credit risk through its collection of patient and resident receivables. The

Elliott is not exposed to a concentration of credit risk from its accounts receivable due to
the number and diversity of patient and resident accounts.

10



THE ELLIOTT

Notes to Financial Statements, continued

Year ended March 31, 2011

13.

14.

Net asset management:

The main objective of The Elliott when managing its net assets is to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide sheltered care and services for
seniors.

The Elliott sets the sufficiency of net assets to maintain the service needs of the community. It
makes adjustments to its net assets, through appropriation to or from internally restricted funds, to
respond to potential changes in economic or operating conditions.

In order to maintain a sufficient net asset structure, management looks forward to future needs
and will make the necessary adjustments to its working capital to meet these needs.

The long-term debt agreement requires The Elliott to comply with certain financial and non-
financial covenants. The Elliott is in compliance with each of these covenants.

Comparative figures:

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the financial statement
presentation adopted in the current year.

11
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Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Executive Summary

Overview and Status

The purpose’ of this Audit Findings Report is to assist the Board of Trustees in your review of
the financial statements of The Elliott.

We have completed the audit of the financial statements with the exception of the following
remaining procedures:

e signed representation letter

e receipt of legal letters

e receipt of debt confirmation from the City of Guelph

e completing our discussions with the Audit Committee

e obtaining evidence of the Board of Trustees’ approval of the financial statements.

We will update the Board of Trustees on any significant matters arising from the completion of
the above procedures, as additional procedures or adjustments to the financial statements may be
necessary.

Our audit report will be dated no earlier than the date on which we have obtained sufficient
appropriate audit evidence on which to base our audit opinion on the financial statements,
including evidence that:

¢ all the statements that comprise the financial statements, including the related notes, have
been prepared

o the Board of Trustees has approved the financial statements.

Topics to Discuss

Below are topics identified from the audit that we have highlighted for discussion at the Audit
Committee meeting. We believe these topics need to be brought to your attention, and we look
forward to discussing our findings with you:

e Significant Audit, Accounting and Reporting Matters
e Significant Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

e Misstatements and Control Deficiencies

! This Audit Findings Report should not be used for any other purpose. KPMG shall have no responsibility or hability
for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as this Audit Findings Report has not been prepared for.
and is not intended for. and should not be used by, any third party or any other purpose.

N 3



Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Significant Audit, Accounting and Reporting Matters

The following are the significant audit, accounting and reporting matters arising from the audit:

Significant Risks and Non- Results / Effect on the Misstatements
Routine Transactions Audit and Control
Deficiencies

Going Concern e KPMQG obtained ¢ No misstatements
e The Elliott has incurred a loss of manAgEMSHE'S or coptrol-

$1 28 it currentveae which has representation of the deficiencies

. A ability of the Elliott to identified.

increased over the prior year. . :

continue as a going

e During the year there were positive concern.

cash flows from operations but was
offset by negative cash flows from
financing due to large debt
repayments.

s Going concern
assessment will continue
to be monitored each
year.

b baar 4




Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Refinancing of Debt

In June 2010 The Elliott refinanced
its debt with RBC. RBC as part of
this refinancing required the
Corporation of the City of Guelph to
Guarantee $5,063,000.

The new financing arrangement
reduced the previous interest rate
from bank prime plus .25% to bank
prime.

As part of the refinancing a non-
revolving term loan was advanced.

The non-revolving term loan has a
fixed repayment schedule.

The banking agreement
states that the Bank may
in the event of default
terminate or demand
payment of the facilities —
this is an adverse change
clause.

Emerging Issues
Committee Abstract - /22
Balance Sheet
Classification of Callable
Debt Obligations and
Debt Obligations
Expected to be
Refinanced states” that if
it is unlikely that the
creditor historically has
not demanded repayment
of loans containing
similar “Adverse Change”
clauses and the debtor is
in strong financial
condition), absent any
other violations, the
debtor would classify the
debt obligation in
accordance with the
repayment terms of the
loan agreement”

The non-revolving term
loan has been classified as
long-term with the next
fiscal year payments
being classified as current
debt.

No misstatements
or control
deficiencies
identified.

nIana




Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Significant Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

The following are the significant qualitative aspects of accounting practices that we will discuss:

Significant e There were no significant changes in accounting policies during
Accounting Policies the year.

Significant e There were no significant accounting estimates during the year.
Accounting

Estimates

Ina 5



Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Misstatements

Audit Misstatements - ldentification

e During the course of our audit we did not identify any uncorrected audit misstatements.

Corrected Audit Misstatements
e During the course of the audit we did indentify one corrected audit misstatements.

e Refer to Management's representation and the Summary of Corrected Audit Misstatements in
Appendix 2.

%Ina 7



Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Control Deficiencies

Background

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all control deficiencies that might be significant
deficiencies and therefore, there can be no assurance that all significant deficiencies and other
control deficiencies have been identified.

Our awareness of control deficiencies varies with each audit and is influenced by the nature,
timing, and extent of audit procedures performed, as well as other factors.

Identification

We did not identify any control deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies in
internal control.

%N



Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Appendices

Appendix 1 - Independence Letter
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KPMG LLP
Charntered Accountants

PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL

Audit Committee

The Elliott

170 Metcalfe St
Guelph, ON NIE 4Y3

June 22, 2011

Dear Audit Committee:

We have been engaged to express an opinion on the financial statements of The Elliott ("the Entity")
as at and for the period ended March 31, 2011,

Professional standards specify that we communicate to you in writing, at least annually, all
relationships between the Entity (and its related entities) and our firm, that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our independence.

In determining which relationships to report, we are required to consider relevant rules and related
interpretations prescribed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario and any applicable

legislation or regulation, covering such matters as:

a) provision of services in addition to the audit engagement
b) other relationships such as:
e holding a financial interest, either directly or indirectly, in a cliemt
= holding a position, either directly or indirectly, that gives the right or responsibility to
exert significant influence over the financial or accounting policies of a client
»  personal or business relationships of immediate family, close relatives, partners or retired
partners, either directly or indirectly, with a client
e  cconomic dependence on a client,

We have prepared the following comments to facilitate our discussion with you regarding
independence matters arising since the date of our last letter.



”EH! I'he Ellion
June 22,2011

PROVISION OF SERVICES

The following summarizes the professional services rendered by us to the Entity (and its related
entities) for the period ended March 31, 2011.

Description of Service

Audit
*  Audit of the Entity’s financial statements.
e Audit of the 2009 Long-Term Care Report.

All other
o Indirect tax services

OTHER RELATIONSHIPS

We are not aware of any relationships between our firm and the Entity (and its related entities) that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence during the period from April 1, 2010 to

June 22, 2011.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

Professional standards require that we confirm our independence to you in the context of the
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence.

Accordingly, we hereby confirm that we are independent with respect to the Entity (and its related
entities) within the meaning of the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Ontario as of June 22, 2011.

OTHER MATTERS

This letter is confidential and intended solely for use by those charged with governance in carrying
out and discharging their responsibilities and should not be used for any other purposes.

KPMG shall have no responsibility for loss or damages or claims, if any, to or by any third party as
this letter has not been prepared for, and is not intended for, and should not be used by, any third

party for any other purpose.

Yours very truly,

L & 227
s

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

itk
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Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Appendix 2 - Management Representation Letter
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KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

115 King Street South, 2nd floor
Waterloo, Ontario N2J 5A3
Canada

June 28, 2011

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the financial statements (hereinafter referred to as "financial statements™)

of The Elliott ("the Entity") as at and for the period ended March 31, 2011.

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as
set out in Attachment I to this letter.

We confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

GENERAL:

1)  We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter
dated April 6, 2011, for:

a) the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

b) providing you with all relevant information and access.

¢) such internal control as management determined is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

CITor.

d) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:

2)  We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or
maintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which management is aware.
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FRAUD & NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS:

3)  We have disclosed to you:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

the results of our assessment of the risks that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that
affects the Entity and involves: management, employees who have significant roles in
internal control, or others, where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the
Entity’s financial statements, communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators, or others.

all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations, including all aspects of contractual agreements, whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.

all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered
when preparing the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES:

4) There are no:

a)

b)

other liabilities that are required to be recognized and no other contingent assets or
continent liabilities that are required to be disclosed in the financial statements in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, including liabilities or
contingent liabilities arising from illegal acts or possible illegal acts, or possible
violations of human rights legislation.

other environmental matters that may have an impact on the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

5)  All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant
financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements
have been adjusted or disclosed.

RELATED PARTIES:

6)  We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware and all related party relationships and
transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework.
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ESTIMATES:

7)  Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.

NON-SEC REGISTRANTS OR NON-REPORTING ISSUERS:

8)  We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any
applicable Canadian securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002). We also
confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the consolidated
financial statements of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer
audited by any member of the KPMG organization

MISSTATEMENTS:

9)  We approve the corrected misstatements 1dentified by you during the audit described in
Attachment I1.

Yours very truly,

THE ELLIOTT

By: Mr. Trevor Lee, CEO

By: Ms. Diana Hillier, Director of Finance

cc: Audit Committee
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Attachment I — Definitions
MATERIALITY

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements. Judgments about matenality are made in light of surrounding
circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.

FRAUD & ERROR

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts
or disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is ofien accompanied by false
or misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have
been pledged without proper authorization.

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an
amount or a disclosure.

RELATED PARTIES

In accordance with CICA Part V- Pre-Changeover Accounting Standards related party is defined
as:

e when one party has the ability to exercise, directly or indirectly, control, joint control or
significant influence over the other. Two or more parties are related when they are subject to
common control, joint control, or common significant influence. Related parties also include
management and immediate family members.

In accordance with CICA Part V- Pre-Changeover Accounting Standards a related party
transaction is defined as:

e a transfer of economic resources or obligations between related parties, or the provision of
services by one party to a related party, regardless of whether any consideration is exchanged.
The parties to the transaction are related prior to the transaction. When the relationship arises as
a result of the transaction, the transaction is not one between related parties.
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Appendix 3 — Definitions

Terminology

Definition

Deficiency in Internal
Control

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation
of a control does not allow management or employees, in the
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect misstatements on a timely basis. A deficiency in design
exists when (a) a control necessary to meet the control objective is
mussing; or (b) an existing control is not properly designed so that,
even if the control operates as designed, the control objective
would not be met. A deficiency in operation exists when a properly
designed control does not operate as designed or the person
performing the control does not possess the necessary authority or
competence to perform the control effectively.

Significant Deficiency
in Internal Control

A significant deficiency in internal control is a deficiency or
combination of deficiencies in internal control that. in the auditor’s
professional judgment, is of sufficient importance to merit the
attention of those charged with governance.

nIna




Audit Findings Report to the Audit Committee

Appendix 4 - KPMG's Audit Committee Resources

o  Focus on Financial Reporting — 2010 Annual Update
http://www kpmg.com/Ca/en/IssuesAndInsights/ArticlesPublications/Pages/FOCUS-ON-
FINANCIAL-REPORTING-2010-ANNUAL-UPDATE aspx

o Audit Committee Update, Issue 2010-01, Audit Committee Institute
http://www kpmg.ca/auditcommitiee/update. html

e Audit Committee Roundtables held each spring and fall, Audit Committee Institute
http://www kpmg.ca/auditcommittee/roundtables.himl

e Shaping the Canadian Audit Committee Agenda (2006 edition), Audit Committee Institute
http://www kpmg.ca/auditcommitiee/shaping.html

o Accountability e-Lert — periodic electronic newsletter. Subscribe at
www.kpme.ca/accountability

e  Audit Committee Institute Web site — www.kpme_ca/auditcommitiee
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p = Deloitte & Touche LLP
e' OI E@ 4210 King Street East
) ) Kitchener ON N2P 2G5
Canada
Tel: 519-650-7600

Fax: 519-650-7601
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of the Board of Health,
Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health,
which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2011, and the statements of operations and surplus,
cash flows and changes in net financial assets for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu timited



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health as at December 31, 2011, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting Standards.

Dl

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
May 2, 2012
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Statement of operations and surplus

Total mandatory and related programs
year ended December 31, 2011

Budget Actual Actual
2011 2011 2010
(Note 8)
$ $ $
Municipal and provincial funding
Province of Ontario 13,515,562 13,362,484 11,430,857
City of Guelph 2,590,515 2,590,516 2,245,939
County of Wellington 1,839,155 1,839,155 1,695,952
County of Dufferin 1,177,506 1,177,507 1,020,881
Grant - 100% - MOHLTC 657,892 518,881 1,183,749
19,780,630 19,488,543 17,477,378
Other revenue
Interest 5,000 30,186 15,097
Miscellaneous (one-time) - - 1
5,000 30,186 15,098
Total revenue (Schedule 2) 19,785,630 19,518,729 17,492 476
Expenses
Salaries and wages 11,762,599 11,460,767 10,274,131
Benefits 3,033,941 2,599,946 2,419,498
Staff and volunteer fraining and recognition 143,229 97,261 106,894
Board of Heaith 20,300 21,015 22,456
Travel 328,327 313,226 284,198
Building occupancy 1,546,305 2,003,965 887,144
Office expenses, printing and postage 132,765 131,921 110,767
Purchased program services 1,196,997 1,489,068 1,068,038
Program materials and supplies 917,325 831,806 371,308
Equipment 236,581 301,519 137,690
Communication costs 170,519 152,619 146,698
One time and capital projects 657,892 692,902 1,241,252
Expenditure recoveries (Schedule 1) (361,150) {435,545) (396,220)
Amortization - 632,468 455413
Capital purchases (included in expenses above) - (2,274,191) (1,045,859)
Total expenses (Schedule 2) 19,785,630 18,018,747 16,083,408
Excess of revenue over expenses - 1,499,982 1,409,068
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year - 2,930,274 1,549,800
Net interest and transfers in reserves - 19,734 (28,594)
Accumulated surplus, end of year {(Note 5) - 4,449,990 2,930,274

Approved by the Board of Directors on May 2, 2012

Director

Director

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 3



Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Statement of changes in net financial assets
year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010

$ $

Excess of revenue over expenses 1,499,982 1,408,068
Amortization of tangible capital assets 632,468 455,413
Change in prepaid expenses (31,532) (46,021)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (2,274,191) (1,045,859)
Other (transfer to reserve) 19,734 (28,594)
{Decrease) increase in net financial assets (153,539) 744,007
Net financial assets, beginning of year 1,703,288 959,281
Net financial assets, end of year 1,549,749 1,703,288

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Balance sheet

as at December 31, 2011
2011 2010
$ $
Assets
Current assets
Cash 4,194,670 3,704,390
Accounts receivable 279,891 378,427
Due from Province of Ontario 81,303 376,133
4,555,864 4,458,950
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 1,489,062 1,117,219
Employee benefits payable (Note 6) 1,213,187 1,045,454
Deferred revenue 165,509 323,867
Trust liability (Note 3) 126,450 216,440
Due to programs (Note 4) 11,907 52,682
3,006,115 2,755,662
Net financial assets 1,549,749 1,703,288
Non financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 3) 2,808,140 1,166,417
Prepaid expenses 92,101 60,569
2,900,241 1,226,986
Accumulated surplus (Note 5) 4,449,990 2,930,274

Approved by the Board of Directors on May 2, 2012

Director

Director

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 5



Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenditures 1,499,982 1,409,068
Non cash charges to operations
Amortization 632,468 455,413
Net change in non-cash working capital items related to operations 632,021 239,827
2,764,471 2,104,308
Acquisition of tangible capital assets {2,274,191) (1,045,859)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 490,280 1,058,449
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 3,704,390 2,645,941
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 4,194,670 3,704,390

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2011

1. Description of business

The Board of Health for the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Health Unit (“Public Health”) has been created
by statute under the Health Protection and Promotion Act (HPPA) and is by statute an autonomous
Board of Health. The Board of Health is comprised of municipal members representing each of the
obligated municipalities of the County of Wellington (3), the County of Dufferin (2) and the City of Guelph
{3) and 5 Provincial appointees. As stated in the agency’s Mission statement, Public Health works to
improve the health of communities and individuals in Wellington, Dufferin and Guelph through

promotion, protection and prevention.

Public Health operates Health programs in accordance with the Mandatory and Related Programs as set
out by the Province of Ontario. They also deliver several additional initiatives within Wellington, Dufferin
and Guelph including; Healthy Babies Healthy Children, Preschool Speech and Language, Healthy
Communities, Smoke Free Ontario and Canadian Prenatal Nutrition Program.

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards, and reflect the following policies:

Basis of accounting

a) The operations reported in the financial statements reflect only the programs funded by the Counties
of Wellington and Dufferin, the City of Guelph and the Province of Ontario. For programs funded by
other entities, revenues and expenditures are netted and disclosed separately on the balance sheet.
These programs include Smoke Free Ontario, Healthy Communities, CPNP, Preschool Speech and
Language and Healthy Babies Healthy Children Program.

b) The operations of Public Health general programs are funded by the Counties of Wellington and
Dufferin, the City of Guelph and the Province of Ontario. Each year the amount of expenditure is
based upon budgeted approvals and is funded accordingly. Funding amounts not received at year-
end are recorded as receivable. Funding amounts in excess of actual expenditures incurred during
the year are recorded as payable.

Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting except as noted in these
financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian Public Sector Accounting
Standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant
estimates used within these financial statements include accrued liabilities. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

Revenue recognition

Public Health recognizes revenue from municipal funding sources when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists. Revenue generated through various programs is recognized when cash is received.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2011

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 30 years
Building improvements 15 years
Equipment 5 years
Technology & communications 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years

One-half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal.

3. Trust liability

Public Health periodically receives funding advances from various sources for certain programs or
portions of programs. Public Health does not run these programs and operates solely as a bank account

for these programs.

2011 2010
$ $
County of Dufferin - SSILCC 82,062 134,799
Teen Dental - NCB (Wellington) 14,000 12,569
In motion 7,493 11,807
Growing Great Kids 3,620 8,566
F&CS - Nobody’s Perfect 3,211 3,211
Infection Connection Workshop 3,145 4,001
Hearing (Wee Talk) 2,255 2,865
Reduce Tanning (Odette Cancer Centre) 2,180 3,030
CINOT Pilot 1,610 1,610
Children’s Report Card 1,400 26,537
CCO (Nutrition & Phys. Act Prog) 1,397 1,397
SNAC 1,336 2,169
Teen Dental - NCB (Dufferin) 887 887
Due to Community Food Advisors 784 616
ASRTS 557 557
Mennonite Community Donations 400 -
Shirley’s Garden 112 112
Staff Social Fund 1 1
Healthy Communities - 4,704
The Comfortable Kitchen - 752
Boys and Girls Club - (3,750)
126,450 216,440
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2011
4. Due to programs
2011 2010
$ $
Due to CPNP 10,072 8,122
Due to Preschool Speech and Language 7,485 44 560
Due from Healthy Communities (5,650) -
_ 11,907 52,682
5. Accumulated surplus and reserves

Accumulated surplus consists of individual fund surplus and reserves as follows:

2011 2010
$ $

Surplus
Invested in tangible capital assets 2,808,140 1,166,417
Reserves for capital improvements 1,641,850 1,763,857

4,449,990 2,930,274

This reserve was established by the Board fo offset the costs of future capital improvements.

2011 2010

$ $

Balance, beginning of year 1,763,857 973,829
interest earned on reserve 19,734 6,158
Transfer from reserve for H1N1 surplus - (34,752)
Transfer and tangible capital asset reconciliation (141,741) 818,622
Balance, end of year 1,641,850 1,763,857

The reserve for Capital improvement is made up of three separate reserves. In 2007 the Board decided
to divide the reserve for capital improvement as follows into 3 separate reserve funds: one for
technology, one for facilities, and one for contingencies. In the current year the balances are: reserve
fund - technology in the amount of $267,552 (2010 - $264,472), reserve fund - facilities in the amount of
$969,699 (2010 - $1,099,444), and reserve for contingencies in the amount of $404,599 (2010 -
$399,941).

6. Employee benefits payable

2011 2010

$ $

Sick leave benefits payable 55,939 59,360
Vacation time payable 1,105,502 941,239
Compensation time payable 51,746 44 855
: 1,213,187 1,045,454
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2011

10.

Employee benefits payable (continued)
Sick leave benefits payable

Under the sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate and employees may become
entitled to a cash payment based on the salary in effect when they leave Public Health’s employment.
This plan applies to employees hired prior to January 1, 1982. The balance is reviewed at each year-end

using new salary rates.

The liability for these accumulated days, to the extent that they have vested and could be taken in cash
by an employee upon termination, amounted to $55,939 (2010 - $59,360) at the end of the year.

Vacation time payable

The provisions of the employee’s vacation plan allow the accumulation of vacation credits for use in
future periods. The approximate value of the credits as at December 31, 2011 is $1,105,502 (2010 -

$941,239).
Compensation time payable

Hours earned by employees that are not paid or taken are compensation time. Upon termination of
employment, any hours of compensation time that an employee has earned, but not taken, is payable at
their wage rate. The approximate value of the time as at December 31, 2011 is $51,746 (2009 -
$44,855).

Pension agreements

Public Health makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees’ Retirement System (“OMERS”),
which is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of approximately 174 members of its staff.

The plan is a defined benefit plan that specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by
the employees based upon length of service and rates of pay.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2011 was $981,884 (2010 - $827,120).

Budget figures

The budgeted figures, which are presented for comparison purposes, are unaudited.

Lease commitments

Public Health has leased premises under a variety of leases of which the longest expires on April 30,
2061. The minimum lease payments over the next five years are as follows:

$

2012 559,045
2013 442,260
2014 384,806
2015 321,870
2016 347,242
2,055,223

Credit facility

At December 31, 2011 Public Health has an unsecured line of credit of $500,000, bearing interest at
bank prime rate of 3.00% (2010 - 3.00%), of which all remained unused at year-end.
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Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health

Schedule of expenditure recoveries - Schedule 1
year ended December 31, 2011

Budget Actual Actual

2011 2011 2010

$ $ $

Contraceptive sales 87,000 73,309 81,078
File searches 1,000 2,180 975
Food safety courses 14,000 11,977 9,410
Guelph sexuality conference - 10,000 10,000
HPV vaccinations 20,400 23,367 28,798
Meningococcal immunizations 15,300 16,184 27,676
Other 1,000 8,160 1,025
Prenatal and breastfeeding fees 38,450 33,312 37,860
TB skin tests 4,000 5,300 6,782
Vaccines (Gardasil) 10,000 16,180 10,500
Travel clinic fees 125,000 171,395 134,121
H1N1 immunizations - - 2,150
Universal influenza immunizations 45,000 64,181 45,845
361,150 435,545 396,220

The attached notes form part of these financial statements.
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Deloitte & Touche LLP
1005 Skyview Drive
Suite 200

Burlington ON L7P 5B1
Canada

Tel: 905-315-6770
Fax: 905-315-8700
.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of
Downtown Guelph Business Association

town Guelph Business Association,
nd the statements of
, and a summary of

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Do
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December
operations, changes in net financial assets an ash flows for the year
significant accounting policies and other eXplanatory.information.

Management's Responsibility for the Finangcial ¢

emen

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair entation of thege financial statements in
accordance with Canadian publig_sector accounting tandards andf 1 sueh internal control as
management determines is4 es\s%\@ enable the preparaflon of ﬁnan ia] statements that are free from
material misstatement, ether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsiéty\SQ
Our responsibility is to express an opin n\;hese inancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordan w1thkﬁx genepally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we com; quiretngnts and’plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurapte about whether the financial s temen are free from material misstatement.

In making those risk a
and fair presentati 10 of thé financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, bu&?\t*f%rth purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's

assessment 4\'{2:1 s of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

internal control. An audibdalsoincludes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁment and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Downtown Guelph Business Association as at December 31, 2011 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sectora/gunting standards.

Other matter

oo
Budget figures are provided for comparative purposes and have not beeg’subject to atdit procedures.
Accordingly, we do not express any opinion on the budget figures.

Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

DATE \ (
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Downtown Guelph Business Association
Statement of financial position

as at December 31, 2011
2011 2010
$ $
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 107,644 82,545
Investments (Note 6) 016 42,016
Accounts receivable ( 19,857

N /\19747\& 144,418

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 122,943 552
Unclaimed gift certificates 16,655 15,655

139,598 58,207

Net financial assets 57,878 86,211
Non-financial assets
Prepaid expenses - 7,962 13,042
Tangible capital assets, net (Schedule A) 29,819 -
Accumuiated surplus (Note 5) )95,659 99,253
Approved by the Board \\
Director
/ AN N\
/"™, Dirsctor

N/

Page 3



Downtown Guelph Business Association

Statement of operations
year ended December 31, 2011

Budget Actual Actual
2011 2011 2010
$ $
Revenues
City of Guelph
Tax levies 427,000 398,391
Carden Street promotion -
Other 29,000 1,381
Grants 141,650 74,6 -
Sponsorships 4,500 -
Partner contribution 2,950 -
Events income -
Interest and other income gfz/\b\ 3,645 3,652
827,300 / - 730,415 403,424
Expenses \
Wages and benefits 239,508 202,184 166,204
Bookkeeping services 4,600 4,550 5,558
Advertising 114,0[9%\}40,060 62,463
Carden Street promotion - 164,935 -
Rink contribution 40,000 40,000
Revitalization 20,574 11,021
Special projects 13,773 13,373
Rent N 28,415 27,664
Special events 85,588 33,345
Consultant - planne \ \ 5,000 8,135 11,787
Member commumc fon 7,000 3,570 7,637
Equipment rental 4,000 2,466 6,145
Telephone and fax 5,500 3,446 5,147
Training and development 4,000 1,770 3,612
Miscellaneous \ 3,700 1,868 3,588
Office s ph 4,000 2,558 3,148
Legaland professnenal 4,000 3,300 3,300
Offite and administrati 1,500 5,934 2,110
2,500 3,606 1,687
intenanee 3,000 3,212 2,150
utte - - 1,042
Bank charges 100 542 255
Insurance P\\ 25 24 23
Amortization - 3,499 -
581,296 734,009 411,259
Annual surplus (deficit) \/ 46,004 (3,594) (7,835)
Opening accumulated surplus 99,253 99,253 107,088
Ending accumulated surplus 145,257 95,659 998,253
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Downtown Guelph Business Association

Statement of changes in net financial assets
year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $

Annual deficit (}94) (7,835)
Acquisition of prepaid expense - (6, 375)
Use of prepaid expense 080
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (33 318)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3 499
Change in net financial assets 8)333) (14, 210)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 86 21 00,421
Net financial assets, end of year 57,878 8\6\21 1

M\/
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Downtown Guelph Business Association

Statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2011

2010
$
Operating activities
Annual deficit (7,835)
ltem not affecting cash - amortization -
Changes in non-cash working capital components
Accounts receivable 4,243
Prepaid expenses (6,375)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 36,688
Gift certificates 740
/| 58,417 \, 33,481
NS
Investing activities /
Purchase of tangible capital assets (33,318) -
Decrease in investment - 20,940
N N\, (33,318) 20,940
Change in cash and cash equivalents {\ 25,099 54,401
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 82,545 28,144

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ./ 107,644 82 545

WY

RN N

ALV

T

D
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Downtown Guelph Business Association
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2011

1. Description of the business

The Downtown Guelph Business Association (the “Association”) was credted by theCity of Guelph, to
promote the downtown businesses to the public in order to allow the d,zf\/Nntown arda to thrive. The
Association acts on behalf of its members, who are the various busiesses that are located in the
downtown area of Guelph.

2, Accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared by managerhent in“accordance with Canadi
sector accounting standards established by the Public Sector Acgbunting Board of the Canadii
Institute of Chartered Accountants, and reflect the foliéwing poliCies:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with/maturities of three months or

less from the date of acquisition.
Investments

Investments are accounted for at cos{
Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which, | ounts that are directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or be g\fme t\pf e asset. gible capital assets received as
contributions are recorded at their fair value at zb\e daté of recejpt. The tost, less residual value, of the
tangible capital assets | a‘m@%ed ona straight—%’ge basis yér i timated useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fixturegs Syears
Computer equipment 3 :?rs
One half of the anpual a@ion islapplied to assets purghased within the year.

Gift certificates

The Association issues gi

oughout the community, which are recorded as a liability until

available and mieasurable. Expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting which
recognizes.gxpendityres as they are incurred and measurable as a result of a receipt of goods or
services andthe creation of & legal obligation to pay.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the*financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported periods. Significant
estimates used within these financial statements include gift certificates. Actual results could differ from
those estimates and assumptions.
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Downtown Guelph Business Association
Notes to the financial statements
December 31, 2011

3. Commitments /

The Association is committed to payments for premises and certain office’equip
commitments over the next four years as foliows:

ment, and other financial

2012
2013
2014
2015 N 19468
N4 242,032
~
4, Reserve for contingency

This reserve, which was established by Association to offset future chatiges within the property tax
allocation from the City of Guelph and,t0 meg&tthe Association’s commitments {Note 3), amounted to

$65,840 (2010 - $99,253) at the end &f the year.

5. Accumulated surplus \\
Consists of hY />

Reserves (Note 4 . \ ' 65,840 99,253

Investment in tarigible capital a§§ets 29,819 -

Z 3 N 95,659 99,253

Excess cash not neede the regutar.gperations ofithe Association has been invested in one year
cashable guaranteed investment c&ﬁ% . The GIC’s have an annual interest rate of 0.85%

on Mg h 12,2912 and October 19, 2012, respectively.

2011 2010

6. Investments

hich aré subject to credit risk. The carrying amount of financial assets on the balance

sheet represents e / ssociation's maximum credit exposure at the balance sheet date.

y a chaftered bank. The credit risk on receivables is limited as the amounts owing
veriiment entities.

GIC’s guarantee
are from other city
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Downtown Guelph Business Association
Notes to the financial statements

December 31, 2011
7. Financial instruments {continued)
Fair value

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, inygstments, an
and accrued liabilities is approximately equal to their carrying values'due to thejr shortterm maturity.

8. Comparative figures

Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified ¢ conferm to current year preseptation:

(\\
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Downtown Guelph Business Association

Schedule of tangible capital assets - Schedule A
year ended December 31, 2011

Computer Furniture
equipment and fixtures 2011 2010
$ $ / $ $
Cost /
Beginning of year - - -
Add: additions during the year 2,512 30,866 33,3 -
End of year 2,512 30,806 083,318 \, -
Accumulated amortization
Beginning of year - A - - .
Add: amortization during the year 419 080 3,499 -
End of year 41,., /3,080 3,499 ’-

Net book value 2093 ., M S 29,819 -

NS
QN
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2011 Unconsolidated
Financial Statement
Highlights

Presented to Audit Committee by Finance
June 11, 2012



Agenda

1. Overview

2. Statement of Financial Position

3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
4. Statement of Cash Flows
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Overview:

 These statements provide Council and the
public a full picture of the financial position of
the organization

* Provide a basis for many of the corporate
financial ratio’s that the City monitors annually

 They Include all the assets and liabilities of the
City and provide explanations in the notes for
more complex items



3 uel m

PSAB Standards:

®* These unconsolidated statements have been prepared in accordance the
Public Sector Accounting Board Standards (except they exclude the
consolidated entities as required by the standards)

» These statements are not audited

* Provides for consistency and comparability of reporting
between all governments and their agencies

 Ensures completeness and transparency of financial
information for all stakeholders



Agenda

1. General Concepts

3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
4. Statement of Cash Flows



Statement of Financial Position

Assets:

e Cash and investments
» Taxes receivable
 Tangible capital assets

Liabilities:
* Net debt
« Employee future benefits

300
250 +~
200 +~
150
100

50

3 Year Net Financial Asset

Trend

($millions)

2009

2010

2011

® Financial Assets
® Financial Liabilities
® Net Financial Assets



Cash and Investments

2011 City of Guelph

Ratio Target Actual Result
Cash + Investments vs.
Reserves + Reserve Funds 1:1 1.03 (]
$147 o145
 Debt issuance 5116 s cnetang
Investment
o Capital spending levels
W Reserves
- - dR
« Increased investment holdings Punds e




Taxes Recelvable

BMA 2010 2011 City of
Ratio Target Average Guelph Actual Result
Taxes receivable as a
% of unweighted BMA Average 6% 3.4% @
assessment




Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible Capital Asset Components

Land & Land
Assets under Improvements,

Construction, $64,332 (2010 -
$79,544 (2010 - $35,629)
$128,784)
Buildings and
Leaseholds,
$173,427 (2010 -
$114,780)

Machinery and

Equipment, $33,536
(2010 - $36,906 )
Vehicles, $27,243

(2010 - $30,861)

Infrastructure,
$536,242 (2010 -
$502,436)



Tangible Capital Assets — (continued)

2011 Capital Spending Summary

ISF and RINC Projects - $22.1M

Organic Waste Facility - $17.1M

Roads and related infrastructure - $14.5M
Vehicles and equipment - $11.8M

Hanlon Business Park - $6.4M

Civic Museum - $6.1M

Civic Square and Downtown Realm - $5.7M
Parks and Trails - $2.2M

South End Emergency Services Station - $1.1M
Other - $8.1M

10
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Net debt

2011 Significant Debt Transactions

 Issued a debenture in November 2011 totalling $46,750
at a low interest rate of 3.12%

« $28M for the Organic Waste Facility
e $5.7M for the new Civic Museum

« $13.1M for refinancing a maturing debenture on
behalf of The Elliot

 Total interest paid on debt for 2011 $4.3M (2010 —
$4.6M)

e Paid down debt principal of $8.9M (2010 — $9.7M)

11



__Guélph

Net debt ratios

Ratio Target 2010 BMA | 2011 City of Result
Average Guelph Actual

Debt to reserves / 1:1 1.4 .8
reserve funds C

Debt per $100,000
unweighted tax BMA Average $571 $896 (
assessment

Debt interest as a
% of own BMA Average 1.6% 1.6%
revenues C

12



__Guélph

Employee Future Benefits

Reserve Target 2011 Target | 2011 Reserve Result
Balance Balance

959% of the

Sick leave Sick Leave $9,711,000 $10,446,000 C
Liability
50% of the

WSIB WSIB Liability |$1,774,500 $2,203,000 C
959% of the

Land Ambulance | Severance $747,500 $345,500

Severance Liability (

Retiree Benefits Minimum = $2,000,000 $1,600,000 (
$2,000,000

13



Agenda

1. General Concepts
2. Statement of Financial Position

4. Statement of Cash Flows
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Reconciliation of PSAB surplus to operating surplus

Ending Surplus - PSAB

Capital related items:
Add: Amortization of tangible capital assets
Less: Revenues related to tangible capital assets
Add: Other items related to capital

Debt related and other items:
Add: Items related to non-cash transactions
Less: Items related to debt financing

Reserve related items:
Less: Operating fund transfers to reserves
Add: Operating fund transfers from reserves

Ending Surplus - Tax supported
Ending Surplus - User pay

Difference

$ 62,489
35,664
(52,363)
12,586 (4,113)
1,200
(6,314) (5,114)
(51,507)
5,120 (46,387)
$ 6,875
2,571
4,304
$ 6,875

15



2011 Revenues:

Licenses, permits, POA,
Sales, recoveries and other fines Gain on disposal of
donations 2% (2010 - 2%) tangible capital assets
3% (2010 - 3%) 1% (2010 - 0%)

Investment income
1% (2010 - 1%)

Contributions
23% (2010 - 27%)

Contributed subdivision
assets
3% (2010 - 0%)

Taxation
49% (2010 - 49%)

User charges
18% (2010 - 17%) 16



2011 Expenses:

160.00

140.00

$Millions

120.00

100.00

80.00

60.00

40.00

20.00

0.00

Expenditures by Type

Salaries, wages Interest on long  Materials
and employee term debt
benefits

Contracted
services

Rents and
financial
expenses

External
transfers

Amortization

2010

®2011
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2011 Expenses:

Recreation and cultural
services
11% (2010 - 10%)

Planning and development
2% (2010 - 2%) General government

7% (2010 - 8%)

Protection services

Social housing 219% (2010 - 20%)

6% (2010 - 6%)

N

Social and family services
9% (2010- 11%)

Health services
5% (2010 - 5%)
Environmental services

219% (2010 - 21%)

Transportation services
18% (2010 - 17%)

18
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Reserves and Reserve Funds

Ratio Target Result $

Result

Capital reserve fund
contributions vs Minimum = 1:1 1.4
depreciation expense

C

Capital reserve fund

contributions vs. net 2% - 3% 5.6%

tangible capital asset
value

Operating reserves vs.

total operating 5% - 10% 3.98%

expenditures excluding
amortization

19



Agenda

1. General Concepts
2. Statement of Financial Position
3. Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

20



Statement of Cash Flows

» Total cash generated from operations:
$90,061 (2010 - $95,390)

» Total cash used in capital and investing
activities: $126,515 (2010 - $105,563)

e Total cash generated by /(used in) financing
activities: $25,965 (2010 - $(4,269))

21



Conclusion

Overall the financial statements highlight that
2011 was a successful year and we have
strong financial ratios

 Paid down $8.9m of debt principal (net of
the debt issuance)

 Invested $94.9m in tangible capital assets

e Increased the reserves by $13.7m

 Invested $41.9m of surplus funds to
generate income

22



COMMITTEE Guélph
REPORT =

Making a Difference

TO Audit Committee

SERVICE AREA Finance and Enterprise
DATE June 11, 2012

SUBJECT 2011 Unconsolidated Financial Statement Review
REPORT NUMBER FIN-12-27

SUMMARY

Purpose of Report:
The purpose of this report is to:
a) To present the 2011 City of Guelph unconsolidated financial statements; and
b) To review the City of Guelph 2011 financial highlights including results of
corporate benchmarks for debt and reserves; and
¢) To provide a reconciliation from the operating surplus to the financial
statement surplus that is presented in accordance with PSAB standards

Committee Action:
THAT the Report FIN-12-27 dated June 11, 2012 entitled “2011 Unconsolidated
Financial Statement Review” be received.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Report FIN-12-27 dated June 11, 2012 entitled “2011 Unconsolidated
Financial Statement Review” be received.

BACKGROUND

Annually, City Council is required to review and approve the City of Guelph Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements as required by the Municipal Act. Historically,
the financial statement review was performed at Audit Committee on these
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the presentation of the 2010 Audited Financial Statements in June 2011,
Audit Committee members requested through resolution that starting for the 2011
financial year, the unconsolidated financial statements be presented in addition to
the consolidated financial statements as it would provide more transparent and
relevant information for Council members.

The unconsolidated statements exclude the operations of the The Elliot, The Guelph
Downtown BIA and 46.2% of the Wellington-Dufferin-Guelph Public Health Unit.

Page 1 of 12 CITY OF GUELPH COMMITTEE REPORT




Given this direction, staff have prepared three reports for the current year:

1) FIN-12-27 — Review of the City 2011 unconsolidated financial statements
and financial position

2) FIN-12-28 — 2011 Audited Consolidated Financial Statements and
External Post Audit Report

3) FIN-12-29 — Closed Meeting Report — Deloitte Letter of Recommendation
— 2011 Audit Results

The first report on the unconsolidated financial statements provides a year end
summary of only the City of Guelph operations.

The second and third reports for the audited consolidated financial statements are
focused on the external audit results and financial items affecting the consolidated
reporting entity.

REPORT

Throughout this report, please refer to Appendix A for references to the City’s
unconsolidated financial statements. These statements include only the City of
Guelph’s operations (including Guelph Police Services Board and Guelph Public
Library Board) and have not been audited.

These financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that
recommendations as proposed in FIN-12-25 “2011 Year End Variance Report and
Operating Surplus Allocation”, FIN-12-26 “Employee Compensation Reserve
Review”, and FIN-12-32 “2011 Operating Reserve Review and Reallocation” are
approved by Council as presented. These financial statements will change if those
recommendations are amended.

Statement of Financial Position — The Statement of Financial Position is a
summary of the City’s assets and liabilities as well as the ending accumulated
surplus which includes the reserves and reserve funds.

The City’s net financial position is a key indicator of its overall fiscal condition and
the City’s ability to pay its debts. It is calculated as the difference between the
financial assets and the liabilities. In 2011, the City is in a net financial asset
position of $63m which is consistent with the prior year. This position is considered
to be positive and financially stable as it shows that the City’s assets are increasing
at the same pace as its liabilities.

Highlights:
¢ Increase of $31.6m in cash and investment holdings— the target measure of

cash and investment holdings is a 1:1 ratio with the City’s reserve and
reserve fund balances. In 2011 the City was successful in attaining a
positive ratio on this indicator which is a noteworthy improvement over 2010.
This improvement can be attributed to a new cash flow management
modeling process that was implemented by finance during 2011 as well as an
identified need to issue debt to replenish funds spent on capital in 2010.

Page 2 of 12 CITY OF GUELPH COMMITTEE REPORT



Cash and Investment vs Reserves and Reserve Funds
(in Smillions)

$147 $142

$129
$116

[ Cash and
Investment

M Reserves and
Reserve Funds

¢ Increase of $24.7m in net debt — During 2011, the City issued a debenture
totaling $46.7m to fund the capital investment of the Organic Waste Facility
and the Civic Museum as well as to refinance a debenture issued on behalf of
The Elliot that matured in 2011. This was offset by debt principal
repayments of $21.9m. The City continues to have strong debt ratios
including debt to total reserves, debt outstanding per $100,000 of un-
weighted assessment and debt interest as a % of own source revenue.

2010 2011 City of
Ratio Target BMA* Guelph Result
Average Actual
Debt to
reserves / 1:1 1.4 .8 ()
reserve funds
Debt per
$100,000 un- BMA
weighted tax Average $571 $896 ¢
assessment
Debt interest BMA
as a % of own Average 1.6% 1.6% ()
revenues

*BMA is a consulting firm that prepares an annual comparative analysis of
municipal Financial Information Returns for a group of participating
municipalities.

¢ Increase of $64.9m in tangible capital assets — During 2011, the City spent
$94.9m on capital investment and picked up $9.9m of contributed
subdivision assets. These additions were offset by depreciation expense of
$35.6m and net disposals of $4.3m. Capital spending decreased by $24.1m
compared to 2010 due to the Infrastructure Stimulus Funding Program
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ending, as well as a number of major infrastructure projects including the
Organic Waste Facility, Civic Museum and the Clair Road Emergency Services
Station reaching completion. Even with this spending decline, capital
investment was still above the average annual $70m that would normally be
expected.

Tangible Capital Asset Components

Land & Land
Improvements,

$64,332 (2010 -
$35,629)
Buildings and
Leaseholds,
$173,427 (2010 -
$114,780)

Machinery and
Equipment, $33,536

(2010 - $36,906 )

Assets under
Construction,
$79,544 (2010 -
$128,784)

Infrastructure,
$536,242 (2010 -
$502,436) Vehicles, $27,243

(2010 - $30,861)

¢ Taxes receivable — the City continues to have a very favorable taxes
receivable balance as a percentage of unweighted. This ratio indicates the
ability of the community to pay their taxes and can be a valuable indicator
for revenue planning at the City. The 2010 BMA average for municipalities
in the southwestern region was 6% and the City’s 2011 position is in a strong
3.4% position. Our low rate is a direct result of the daily efforts of our tax
revenue department and is supported through a strong tax policy.

Overall, this Statement of Financial Position highlights that corporately we have
maintained a strong fiscal position with the appropriate level of liquid assets to
support our reserves and current liabilities.

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

The Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus reflects, above all else, that
the City ended in a net surplus position for 2011 of $62.5m (2010 - $61.3m). It
also details the significant components of revenues and expenses and shows these
components as compared to the approved council budget.
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Due to these financial statements being prepared in accordance with the PSAB
standards, the net surplus reported differs from the surplus reported by staff in
report FIN-12-25 “2011 Year End Variance Report and Operating Surplus
Allocation”. It is important to emphasize that both surplus numbers are computed
on the same underlying data; they are just presented in a different format based on
the needs of cash-based operating and capital budgeting versus the needs of
accrual-based financial reporting.

The following is the reconciliation between the ending PSAB surplus of $62.5m to
the ending 2011 tax supported and user pay surplus’ of $6.875m:

Ending Surplus - PSAB $ 62,489

Capital related items:

Add: Amortization of tangible capital assets 35,664
Less: Revenues related to tangible capital assets (52,363)
Add: Other items related to capital 12,586 (4,113)

Debt related and other items:
Add: Items related to non-cash transactions 1,200
Less: Items related to debt financing (6,314) (5,114)

Reserve related items:

Less: Operating fund transfers to reserves (51,507)
Add: Operating fund transfers from reserves 5,120 (46,387)
$ 6,875
Ending Surplus - Tax supported 2,571
Ending Surplus - User pay 4,304
$ 6,875
Difference -

Final 2011 Tax Supported and User Pay Surplus - $6.875m

The final operating surplus as compared to the approved Council budget for 2011 is
detailed as follows (brackets indicate a favourable variance):
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Total Annual Actual Actual
Budget for Expenditures Variance at Variance at
Year 2011 to Dec 31,2011 Dec 31,2011 Dec 31, 2011

($000) ($000) ($000) (%)

Tax Supported

City Departments $ 88,000 § 87,383 § (617) (0.7%)

General Revenues and Expenses $ (153,087) $ (152,760) $ 326 0.2%

Sub-Total City Departments and Finandng $ (65,087) $ (65,377) $ (291) (0.4%)

Local Boards $ 39,365 § 38,707 $ (658) (1.7%)

Grants, Outside Boards and Agendes $ 25,722 § 24,099 § (1,623) (6.3%)

Total Local and External Boards $ 65,087 § 62,806 § (2,281) (3.5%)
Total Tax Supported 0 $ (2,571) $ (2,571)  (1.7%)
User Pay

Water $ - $ (1,476) $ (1,476) (7.7%)

Wastewater $ - $ (2,828) $ (2,828)  (12.7%)
Total User Pay $ - 3 (4,304) $ (4,304)  (10.5%)
Total City Surplus $ 0 s (6,875) $ (6,875) 0.0%

Overall, the City departments have delivered a surplus within 0.4% of the Council
approved budget. Achieving a City Department variance of less than 1% of budget
is an indication of strong financial management and effective mitigation of risks.

Water and wastewater’s surplus of 10.5% is due to consumption levels being
difficult to predict particularly on the non-residential side. This volatility can lead
to large favourable and unfavourable variances in any given year. In addition, as
part of the water and wastewater long-term financial plan, there is an indentified
need to address the capital infrastructure gap through the use of these surpluses.

Included in report FIN-12-25 “2011 Year End Variance Report and Operating
Surplus Allocation” are staff’'s recommendations on how this surplus should be
utilized and which reserves it should be directed.

Revenue

The following chart shows the main sources of funding for City operations for both
2011 and 2010:
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400,000

i Income from Government
350,000 Business Enterprises

i Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible
300,000 - capital assets

i Licences, permits, POA, other
250,000 - fines

i Sales, recoveries and donations
200,000 - _ .

i Investment income
150,000 - H Contributions
100,000 - i Contributed subdivision assets

50,000 - M User charges
M Taxation
2011 2010

-50,000

Tax revenue continues to be the largest source of income for the City followed by
contribution revenues and user charges.

Contribution Revenue - As shown on the Statement of Operations and Accumulated
Surplus, contribution revenues consist of revenues from the Federal and Provincial
Governments, other municipalities and developers. From 2010, contributions have
decreased from 27% of total revenue to 23% mostly due to the completion of the
Infrastructure Stimulus Funding program that was created by upper levels of
government in 2008/2009 to stimulate the economy during the downturn. In total
for 2011, $13m is included in revenue relating to these grants compared to $27m
in 2010. The contribution revenue also includes developer contributions that were
used to fund growth related capital expenditures incurred during the year. These
revenues decreased slightly from $17m in 2010 to $15.9m in 2011, which is again
reflective of the completion of a number of significant capital projects that were
started during 2010.

User charges — user charges revenues have increased by $6.2m or 10% over the
prior year. The main driver of this increase was from water and wastewater user
fees which generated $4.3m more revenue than in 2010, due both to increased
rates and higher than average consumption.
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Expenses

City expenses year over year by major type can be seen as follows:

Expenditures by Type
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Year over year total expenditures have increased by $10.7m, with the majority of
this increase focused on salaries, wages and benefits. Salaries, wages and benefits
continue to be the most significant component of the City’s operating costs and
have increased by $10.5m over the prior year. This is due to multiple reasons
including increased wages in accordance with the collective agreements, increased
cost of employee benefits (OMERS, medical and dental, accumulated sick leave and
retiree benefits) and additional FTE’s hired during 2011.

The City’s expenditures by functional area can be seen below. Compared to 2010
the City has been consistent in the amount of resources directed to each of these
service areas. Any significant deviation year over year could indicate a shift in
service priorities by Council.

Page 8 of 12 CITY OF GUELPH COMMITTEE REPORT



Expenses (continued)

Planning and

. development
cultural services 2% (2010 - 2%) General government
11% (2010 - 10%) | 7% (2010 - 8%)

Recreation and

Protection services

Social housing 21% (2010 - 20%)

6% (2010 - 6%)
Social and family
services
9% (2010- 11%)

Health services
5% (2010 - 5%)
Environmental

services
21% (2010 - 21%)

Transportation
services
18% (2010 - 17%)

For additional details on the revenues and expenses of the City please refer to
Schedules 1 and 2 to the Financial Statements for a full breakdown by functional
area. For more information on what services are included in each of the
categories, refer to Note 23 to the financial statements.

Accumulated Surplus

Accumulated Surplus is the excess of the City’s total assets over their total
liabilities. A full break down of the Accumulated Surplus can be found in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

It should be noted that the reserves and reserve fund balances as presented in the
financial statements (and below) include the recommendations from reports FIN-
12-25, FIN-12-26 and FIN-12-32 that have not yet been approved by Council. If
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Council alters any of the recommendations, the financial statements and the below
benchmark results will be affected.

The most significant components of the accumulated surplus are the City’s reserves
and reserve funds. A complete breakdown of these reserves can be found in
Schedule 4 to the financial statements. Compared to 2010, the City increased their
reserves by $13.7m, of which $6.875m related to the allocation of the 2011 year
end surplus.

In order to effectively manage the fiscal preparedness of the City, the following
benchmarks are used to monitor reserve levels and reserve contributions. Any
significant deviations from the targeted benchmarks are addressed through the
next fiscal year’s budget taking into consideration other City priorities.

o Capital Reserve Funds - the capital reserve fund contributions should at a
minimum be equal to the current year amortization of tangible capital assets.
Additionally, the contributions to capital reserves should be in the range of
2% — 3% of net tangible asset value.

Capital Current year Net tangible
reserve fund | depreciation Result capital asset Result
contributions expense value
$51,144,500 | $35,664,000 ¢ $914,324,000 ¢
(5.6%)

Based on this analysis, the minimum funding requirements of these capital
reserves were met but it should be noted that the minimum target is based

on historic cost and not replacement cost.

The City is currently undergoing

a collaborative review with a number of departments relating to capital asset

management and determining the best practice for funding future

replacement and addressing the City’s infrastructure deficit. From this
review better information on capital reserve targets will be available and how
the City should best benchmark this funding.

Employee Benefit Reserves — the employee benefit reserves consist of four

components and the benchmarks have been determined based on the
associated liability or need. The liabilities that these reserve benchmarks are
based are detailed in note 10 to the financial statements and are actuarially

determined.
Reserve Target 2011 Target | 2011 Actual Result
Balance Balance
95% of the
Sick leave Sick Leave $9,711,000 $10,446,000 ¢
Liability
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50% of the
WSIB WSIB $1,774,500 $2,203,000 (
Liability
Land 95% of the
Ambulance Severance $747,500 $345,500 (
Severance Liability
Minimum =
Retiree $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $1,600,000 (
Benefits

The above funding shortfalls are being addressed through the budget process
taking into consideration the other priorities of the City.

e Stabilization and Contingency Reserves — the benchmark for the operating

contingency reserves is 5% - 10% of the City’s gross expenditures excluding
amortization expense. This level would be sufficient to manage any impact
of another economic decline, natural disaster or other significant unplanned

expenditure.

Operating reserve Expenditures
balance 2011 excluding 2011 Result Result
amortization
2011
$10,522,000 $264,321,000 3.98% (

The above funding shortfall is being addressed through the budget process
taking into consideration the other priorities of the City.

e Program Related Operating Reserves — while certain program related

reserves such as the Insurance and Ontario Municipal Board have suggested
funding targets, these reserves are funded based on an as needed basis
through the budget process.

Statement of Cash Flow

This statement provides a condensed summary of how cash was generated during
the year and where it was subsequently spent. This statement’s purpose is to
reconcile the ending surplus as shown on the Statement of Operations and
Accumulated Surplus back to the ending cash on hand at the end of the fiscal year

(as shown on the Statement of Financial Position).

The first section highlights the cash earned from normal operations and starts with
the net surplus of $62m and adds/subtracts out items that were non-cash in
nature. During 2011, the City generated $90m in cash from operations (compared

to $95m in 2010).
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In the next two sections, capital and investing activities and financing activities
show how the City used its cash (or generated more cash) during 2011. From a
capital and investing perspective, the City spent $94.9m on capital acquisitions,
received $10.1m in the sale of capital property and invested $41.9m of surplus
funds. During 2011, the City sold 79 acres of the Hanlon Business Park that it has
been developing since 2009 and this accounts for the majority of the $10.1m sale
figure. From a financing perspective, the City issued a debenture resulting in a
cash influx of $46.7m which was offset by debt principal payments of $21.9m.

Overall, the City’s cash position did drop from 2010 by $10.5m but this is offset by

the increase in the investment portfolio by $41.9m, showing the City is effectively
leveraging surplus funds for income generation.

CORPORATE STRATEGIC PLAN
5.3 Open, accountable and transparent conduct of municipal business

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
None noted. These statements are for internal use only and are not audited.

DEPARTMENTAL CONSULTATION
None noted.

COMMUNICATIONS

None noted.

ATTACHMENTS

Appendix A: 2011 Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Original Signed by: Original Signed by:
Prepared By: Recommended By:
Tara Johnston Sue Aram

Senior Corporate Analyst, Financial Reporting  Acting Treasurer
519-822-1260 x2084 519-822-1260 x2300
tara.johnston@guelph.ca susan.aram@guelph.ca
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City of Guelph
Unconsolidated statement of financial position
as at December 31, 2011

('000's)
2011 2010
$ $
Financial assets
Cash 31,451 41,940
Investments (Note 5) 115,192 73,093
Taxes receivable 7,940 7,481
Accounts receivable 34,172 39,380
Developer agreement receivables 88 1,004
Loans and notes receivable 20,949 21,216
Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Inc. (Note 6) 5,950 5,722
Investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. (Note 7) 78,260 77,871
294,002 267,707
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 39,388 41,672
Accrued interest payable 794 777
Vacation and other employee benefits payable 5,015 4,940
Other deferred revenue 10,215 9,324
Deferred contributions (Note 8) 24,500 23,294
Employee future benefits (Note 10) 27,546 25,856
Net debt (Note 11) 117,602 92,843
Landfill post-closure liability (Note 12) 5,700 6,000
230,760 204,706
Net financial assets 63,242 63,001
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 13) 914,324 849,396
Inventory 2,162 2,452
Prepaid expenses 451 357
916,937 852,205
Contingencies (Note 18)
Commitments and guarantees (Note 19)
Subsequent event (Note 20)
Accumulated surplus (Note 14) 980,179 915,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph
Unconsolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus
year ended December 31, 2011

('000's)
2011 2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 22)
$ $ $
Revenues
Taxation
Property taxation (Note 4) 175,980 174,286 168,388
Property taxation - Downtown Guelph Business Association 412 412 412
Penalties and interest on taxes 1,428 1,590 1,480
177,820 176,288 170,280
User charges 63,854 66,743 60,547
Contributed subdivision assets - 9,901 -
Contributions
Government of Canada 6,681 13,540 20,444
Province of Ontario 33,664 44,450 48,153
Municipal 3,065 3,346 7,328
Developers 13,688 16,556 17,873
Other 2,979 4,561 760
123,931 159,097 155,105
Other
Investment income 2,430 3,548 5,189
Donations 221 586 923
Sales of equipment, publications 3,358 5,210 4,073
Recoveries 2,498 3,829 4,434
Licences and permits 3,022 3,049 3,107
Provincial Offenses Act revenues 3,565 3,652 3,675
Other fines 800 745 752
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 5,149 5,853 (419)
Income from Government Business Enterprises - 617 3,459
21,043 27,089 25,193
Total revenues 322,794 362,474 350,578
Expenses
General government 20,447 19,868 23,979
Protection services 62,497 62,882 58,285
Transportation services 50,458 53,818 49,759
Environmental services 59,924 63,266 59,961
Health services 14,995 15,664 13,628
Social and family services 29,231 28,067 32,703
Social housing 18,013 17,235 16,753
Recreation and cultural services 32,342 33,347 28,673
Planning and development 4,808 5,838 5,461
Total expenses 292,715 299,985 289,202
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 30,079 62,489 61,376
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 915,206 915,206 843,889
Adjustments (Note 3) - - 9,107
Add: Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 1,340 2,484 834
Accumulated surplus, end of year 946,625 980,179 915,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph
Unconsolidated statement of changes in net financial assets
year ended December 31, 2011

('000's)
2011 2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 22)

$ $
Excess of revenue over expenses for the year 30,079 62,489 61,376
Amortization of tangible capital assets 37,336 35,664 39,050
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (66,087) (94,905) (119,493)
(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - (5,853) 419
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 5,149 10,067 324
Contributed subdivision assets - (9,901) -
Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 1,340 2,484 834
Change in inventory - 290 237
Change in prepaid expenses - (94) 34
Increase (decrease) in net financial assets for the year 7,817 241 (17,219)
Net financial assets, beginning of year 63,001 63,001 80,220
Net financial assets, end of year 70,818 63,242 63,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph
Unconsolidated statement of cash flows
year ended December 31, 2011

('000's)
2011 2010
$ $
Operating activities
Excess of revenues over expenses for the year 62,489 61,376
Items not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets 35,664 39,050
(Gain) loss on disposal of tangible capital assets (5,853) 419
Contributed subdivision assets (9,901) -
Allowance on asset backed investment (155) 565
Loss on interest rate swap contracts 427 127
Income from Government Business Enterprises (617) (3,459)
Employee future benefit expenses 1,690 2,374
Landfill post-closure recovery (300) (600)
Interest on / transfers to reserves and reserve funds 2,484 834
Changes in non-cash working capital:
Taxes receivable (459) 167
Accounts receivable 5,208 (18,967)
Developer agreement receivables 916 (546)
Inventory 290 237
Prepaid expenses (94) 34
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,711) 12,652
Accrued interest payable 17 (64)
Vacation and other employee benefits payable 75 (152)
Other deferred revenue 891 1,343
Cash provided by operating 90,061 95,390
Capital and investing activities
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (94,905) (119,493)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 10,067 324
Change in loans and notes receivable 267 29,383
Net investment acquisitions (41,944) (14,826)
Cash used by capital and investing (126,515) (104,612)
Financing activities
Proceeds from debt issuance 46,750 -
Repayment of debt principal (21,991) (9,771)
Net change in deferred contributions 1,206 5,502
Cash provided (used) by financing 25,965 (4,269)
Decrease in cash for the year (10,489) (13,491)
Cash, beginning of year 41,940 55,431
Cash, end of year 31,451 41,940

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

1. Significant accounting policies

The unconsolidated financial statements of the City of Guelph (the “City”) have been prepared by
management in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the City are as follows:

Reporting entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the financial assets, liabilities, operating revenues and
expenses and changes in investment in tangible capital assets of the reporting entity. The reporting
entity is comprised of those City functions or entities which have been determined to comprise a part of
the aggregate City operations based upon control exercised by the City, except for the City’s
government businesses which are accounted for on the modified equity basis of accounting.

Modified equity basis entities

The investments in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. (previously Guelph Hydro Inc.) and Guelph Junction
Railway Company are accounted for on a modified equity basis, consistent with the generally accepted
accounting principles for the treatment of government business enterprises. Under the modified equity
basis, the business enterprise’s accounting principles are not adjusted to conform to those of the City,
and inter-organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated. Under the modified equity basis
of accounting, the carrying value of the investment in subsidiaries is adjusted to reflect the City’s share
of the net asset change of the investee.

Basis of accounting

Accrual basis of accounting

Revenue and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The accrual basis of
accounting recognizes revenues in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave rise
to the revenues; expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of
goods or services or the creation of an obligation to pay.

Taxes receivable and related revenues

Property tax billings are prepared by the City based on assessment rolls issued by the Municipal
Property Assessment Corporation (“MPAC”). Tax rates are established annually by the City Council,
incorporating amounts to be raised for local services and amounts the City is required to collect on
behalf of the Province of Ontario in respect of education taxes. A normal part of the assessment
process is the issuance of supplementary assessment rolls, which provide updated information with
respect to changes in property assessment. Once a supplementary assessment roll is received, the City
determines the taxes applicable and renders supplementary tax billings. Taxation revenues are
recorded at the time the tax billings are issued. Assessments and the related property taxes are subject
to appeal. Tax adjustments as a result of appeals are recorded as a reduction of tax revenue when the
result of the appeal process is reasonably certain. The City is entitled to collect interest and penalties on
overdue taxes and these revenues are recorded in the period the interest and penalties are levied. Tax
revenue is recorded net of reductions including rebates. Taxes receivable are reported net of any
expense or allowance for doubtful accounts.

Reserves and reserve funds

Certain amounts, as approved by City Council, are set aside in reserves and reserves funds for future
operating and capital purposes. Transfers to and/or from reserves and reserve funds are recorded as an
adjustment within accumulated surplus.

Deferred revenue and deferred contributions

Deferred revenues and deferred contributions represent taxes, user charges, fees, developer
contributions and other grant revenues, which have been collected but for which the related services or
expenditures have yet to be performed. These revenues have certain restrictions and will be recognized
in the fiscal year the services or expenditures are performed.

Page 5



City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

Tangible capital assets

(i) Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes all amounts that are directly attributable
to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual value, of
the tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated lives as follows:

Land improvements - 20 to 75 years
Buildings - 10to 75 years
Machinery and equipment - 3to 25 years
Vehicles -5to 15 years
Sanitary sewers infrastructure - 50 to 80 years
Storm sewer infrastructure - 15 to 80 years
Transportation infrastructure - 20 to 80 years
Waterworks infrastructure -5to0 80 years

The City has various capitalization thresholds, so that individual tangible capital assets of lesser
value are expensed, unless the assets have significant value collectively (pooled assets). Examples
of pools are desktop and laptop computers, police equipment, traffic signals, streetlights, and fire
equipment.

(i) Land purchased for service delivery purposes is recorded as a tangible capital asset at cost. Any
land cost premium incurred or discount received related to expropriation will be included as part of
the asset to be constructed and amortized over its’ useful life.

(iif) Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recognized at their fair value at the date of
receipt, and correspondingly recognized as contributed revenue in that period. Similarly,
contributions of assets to a third party are recorded as an expense equal to the net book value of the
tangible capital asset as of the date of transfer.

(iv) Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which transfer substantially all of the
benefits and risks incidental to ownership of asset are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease payments are charged to
expenses as incurred.

Employee future benefit obligations

The cost of future benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected benefit
method prorated on service and assumptions of mortality and termination rates, retirement age and
expected inflation rates.

Past service costs from plan amendments, if any, are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis
over the average remaining service life of active employees at the date of the amendment. Actuarial
gains and losses on the accrued benefit obligation arise from differences between the actual and
expected experience and from changes in the actuarial assumptions used to determine the accrued
benefit obligation. The excess of the net actuarial gains or losses over 10% of the benefit obligation is
amortized over the average remaining service life of active employees.

Government transfers

Government transfers are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which the events giving
rise to the transfer occur, providing that the transfers are authorized, any eligibility criteria have been
met, and reasonable estimates of the amounts can be made.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of accounting (continued)

Investment income

Investment income earned on available funds and loans receivable are reported as revenue in the
period earned. Investment income earned on deferred contributions is recorded as an increase to
deferred contributions. Investment income earned on reserves and reserve funds are recorded as an
increase in accumulated surplus.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.
Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include valuation allowance for asset
backed investments, valuation allowances for receivables, certain accrued liabilities and obligations
related to employee future benefits and the carrying value of tangible capital assets. Actual results
could differ from these estimates.

Future accounting changes

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2012, all governments will be required to adopt
Public Sector Accounting Board Handbook (“PSAB”) Section 3410 Government Transfers. This
standard provides guidance to governments for the accounting and reporting of government transfers
from both the transferring government and the recipient government in the financial statements.

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2014, all governments will be required to adopt
PSAB Section 3260, Liability for Contaminated Sites. This standard provides guidance on how to
account for and report a liability associated with the remediation of contaminated sites, defines which
activities would be included in the liability for remediation, establishes when to recognize and how to
measure a liability for remediation and provides guidance on financial statement presentation and
disclosure.

Effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1, 2015, all governments will be required to adopt
PSAB Section 2601, Foreign Currency Translation, PSAB Section 3450 Financial Instruments and
PSAB Section 1201 Financial Statement Presentation. This standard provides guidance on how to
account for and report on financial instruments and related revenue and expenditures and also provides
guidance on financial statement presentation and disclosure.

The City is currently in the process of evaluating the potential impact of adopting these standards.

2. Adoption of new accounting standards

The City has early adopted Public Sector Accounting Board Handbook (“PSAB”) Section 3510, Tax
Revenue for the December 31, 2011 financial statements that would otherwise be effective for fiscal
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2012. This standard provides guidance to governments on the
accounting and reporting of tax revenue in the financial statements.

The adoption of this standard had no impact on the 2011 opening accumulated surplus but did require
$2,503 of previously reported tax rebate and write-off expenditures in 2010 to be reclassified to be
shown net of tax revenue collected. Additionally, expanded note disclosure has been added to note 4 of
these financial statements.
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($000’s)

3. Restatement of 2010 comparative figures

During the 2011 year, due to the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards by the City’s
Government Business Enterprises, a retroactive adjustment to the City’s Investment in Guelph Municipal
Holdings Inc. was required to reflect these new reporting standards.

The total impact of correcting these items in the 2010 comparative figures is as follows:

2010

As previously As

reported  Adjustment restated

$ $ $

Investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. 66,753 11,118 77,871
Income from Government Business Enterprises (1,448) (2,011) (3,459)
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year (843,307) (9,107) (852,414)
Accumulated surplus, end of year (902,957) (11,118) (914,075)

4. Taxation revenue
a) Taxation collected on behalf of school boards

The net taxation levies collected on behalf of the school boards are comprised of the following:

2011 2010
$ $
Taxation 61,644 61,725
Payments in lieu 2 2
61,646 61,727

Requisitions (61,646) (61,727)

Net levy for the year - -

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities are levies owing to the school board totaling
$307 (2010 accounts receivable - $577).
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($000’s)

4, Taxation revenue (continued)

b) Taxation revenue by major tax class

Taxes - own Payments Supplem- Rebates & Write:

e 2011 Total
purpose inlieu  entary taxes offs
$ $ $ $ $
Residential 106,635 12 2,729 (276) 109,100
Mulit-Residential 13,465 - 343 (294) 13,514
Commercial 27,7127 4,007 1,069 (329) 32,474
Industrial 17,964 129 316 (1,320) 17,089
Pipelines 486 3 - 489
Farmlands 11 1 - 12
Managed Forests 2 - - - 2
Other - 1,606 - - 1,606
Total tax revenue 166,290 5,754 4,461 (2,219) 174,286
Taxes - own Payment§ in Supplem- Rebates & Write: 2010 Total
purpose lieu entary taxes offs
$ $ $ $ $
Residential 103,164 14 2,456 (310) 105,324
Mulit-Residential 14,330 - - (56) 14,274
Commercial 26,392 3,758 510 (490) 30,170
Industrial 17,456 177 585 (1,648) 16,570
Pipelines 484 - 4 - 488
Farmlands 8 - - 1 9
Managed Forests 1 - - - 1
Other 1,552 - 1,552
Total tax revenue 161,835 5,501 3,555 (2,503) 168,388
Investments

Investments are recorded at cost. The cost and market values are as follows:
2011 2010
Market Cost  Market Cost
$ $ $ $
Short-term investments 67,029 66,891 49,804 49,743
Long-term investments 48,735 48,301 24,182 23,350
115,764 115,192 73,986 73,093
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($000’s)

5. Investments (continued)

In 2009, a restructuring plan was implemented to convert frozen short-term asset-backed commercial
paper to long-term notes of various classes with terms matching the maturity of the underlying assets.
As a result of the exchange, the City recorded the new carrying value (increase of $64) but recognized
the highly speculative nature of any ultimate payment of principal at maturity by booking a provision for
impairment. The impairment is recorded net of the cost of the long-term investments and is estimated to
be 36% of the investment cost or $743 (2010 - 49% or $1,143).

6. Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for the Guelph Junction
Railway Company (the “Railway”) for the year ended December 31:

2011 2010
$ $
Financial position

Current assets 1,591 657
Property, plant and equipment 6,855 6,380
Total assets 8,446 7,037
Current liabilities 843 300
Long-term debt 678 -
Deferred capital contributions 975 1,015
Total liabilities 2,496 1,315
Net assets 5,950 5,722

Results of operations
Revenues 1,699 1,503
Operating expenses 1,471 1,365
Net income 228 138
Retained earnings, beginning of year 5,722 5,584
Retained earnings, end of year 5,950 5,722

During 2011, the Railway was required to adopt International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) with
a date of transition of January 1, 2010. This transition did not result in any changes to the previously
reported 2010 comparative figures.

Related party transactions

The City pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues on behalf of the Railway for which the
Railway reimburses the City periodically. During the year, these net expenses reimbursed to the City
amounted to $339 (2010 - $260). Included in accounts receivable is an amount owing from the Railway
of $287 related to the reimbursement of these current year net expenditures. Additional payments in
2011 of $50 (2010 - $116) were made to the City to repay the amount owing from prior years. The total
amount owing to the City at year end is $145 (2010 - $195) and is included as part of loans and notes
receivable.

The Railway also paid the City $22 (2010 - $22) in office rent and administration fees. These
transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been recorded at the exchange
amounts.
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7. Investment in Guelph Municipal Holding Inc. (2010 — Guelph Hydro Inc.)

The City of Guelph owns 100% of Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc.(*GMHI”) which owns 100% of the
shares of Guelph Hydro Inc (“GHI”), which in turn owns 100% of Guelph Hydro Electric Systems Inc.,
Ecotricity Guelph Inc. and over 99% of Wellington Electric Distribution Company Inc. During 2011,
GMHI was newly incorporated and the City rolled 100% of its shares of GHI into GMHI as at December
31, 2011 at a value of $66,753 which approximates market. The following table provides condensed
supplementary financial information for GMHI for the year ended December 31, 2011 and GHI for the
year end December 31, 2010:

2011 2010 2010
Revised IFRS As Previously
Reporting Reported
$ $ $
Financial position
Current assets 61,966 69,833 73,069
Property, plant and equipment 125,185 104,725 101,591
Intangible assets 275 - -
Deferred charges 40 31 -
Future income taxes 5,993 6,835 9,512
Total assets 193,459 181,424 184,172
Current liabilities 28,516 24,256 23,575
Customer deposits and deferred revenue 13,723 6,608 4,090
Long-term debt 65,350 65,462 65,462
Regulatory liabilities - - 15,315
Employee future benefits 7,610 7,227 8,977
Total liabilities 115,199 103,553 117,419
Total shareholder's equity 48,576 48,576 48,576
Net assets 29,684 29,295 18,177
Total investment 78,260 77,871 66,753
Results of operations

Revenues 155,917 147,316 145,217
Cost of sales 127,385 118,131 117,710
Operating expenses 25,631 21,683 22,749
Income taxes 1,012 2,680 1,947
Total expenses 154,028 142,494 142,406
Net income 1,889 4,822 2,811
Retained earnings, beginning of year 29,295 16,866 16,866
Adjustment due to IFRS transition - 9,107 -

Dividends (1,500) (1,500) (1,500)
Retained earnings, end of year 29,684 29,295 18,177

During 2011, GMHI was required to adopt IFRS with a date of transition of January 1, 2010. This
transition has resulted in the following adjustments to the City’s 2010 comparative financial statements:
an increase in Investment in GMHI by $11,118, an increase to opening accumulated surplus of $9,107
and an increase in income from Government Business Enterprises of $2,011.
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7. Investment in Guelph Municipal Holding Inc. (2010 — Guelph Hydro Inc.) (continued)
Related party transactions

GMHI pays certain expenses and receives certain revenues on behalf of the City related to customer
water billings for which GMHI remits to the City bi-monthly. During the year, these net revenues
received amounted to $41,417 (2010 - $36,914). Amounts owing to the City related to these
transactions total $8,106 (2010 - $6,623) and are included in accounts receivable. During 2010, the
Company repaid 100% of a loan owing to the City of $30,000 and also paid interest on this loan totaling
$1,708, which was included in investment income.

Dividend income was received from the Company of $1,500 (2010 - $1,500) and is also reported as part
of investment income. These transactions were made in the normal course of business and have been
recorded at the exchange amounts.

8. Deferred contributions

The following funds have statutory restrictions and as such are classified as deferred contributions:

Beginning Ending

balance 2011 2011 balance

2011 Inflows Outflows 2011

$ $ $ $

Development charges 16,845 16,076 15,913 17,008
Grants 6,113 23,422 22,574 6,961
Other 336 193 (2) 531
23,294 39,691 38,485 24,500

The development charges are restricted for use to fund growth related capital expenditures in
accordance with the Development Charges Act. The deferred grants include federal gas tax funds,
provincial gas tax funds, infrastructure stimulus funds, federal public transit funds and Ontario bus
replacement funds. Each of the grants has a specified set of restrictions that outlines how the funds can
be utilized.

9. Pension agreement

The City makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement Fund (OMERS) which is a
multi-employer plan, on behalf of the 1,644 (2010 - 1,577) members of its staff. The plan is a defined
benefit plan which specifies the amount of the retirement benefit to be received by the employees based
on the length of service and rates of pay. The multi-employer plan is valued on a current market basis
for all plan assets.

The amount contributed to OMERS for 2011 is $8,983 (2010 - $7,642) for current service and is
reported as an expense on the Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus.

As at December 31, 2011, the City has no obligation under the past service provisions of the OMERS
agreement.

As at December 31, 2011 the OMERS plan is in a deficit position of $7.3 billion (2010 - $4.5 billion),
which will be addressed through temporary contribution rate increases, benefit reductions, and
investment returns.
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10.

Employee future benefits

Employee future benefits are future costs of the City to its employees and retirees for benefits earned

but not taken as at December 31, 2011 and consist of the following:

2011 2010

$ $

Workplace Safety and Insurance ("WSIB") 3,549 3,233
Sick leave 10,222 9,409
Post retirement benefits 13,775 13,214
27,546 25,856

a) Liability for Workplace Safety & Insurance (“WSIB”)

The City is a Schedule Il employer under the Workplace Safety and Insurance Act. As a Schedule Il
employer, the City assumes the liability for any award made under the Act. A comprehensive actuarial
valuation of the future liability for WSIB benefits was conducted as at December 31, 2009 and has been
extrapolated to estimate the liability for the 2010 through 2012 period. The next required valuation will

be as of December 31, 2012.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s WSIB liabilities are as follows:

e Discount rate 5% (2009 - 5%)

e Expected future WSIB payments per lost time injury 52% (2009 - 61%)

e Health care inflation CPI plus 4% (2009 - CPI plus 4%)
e WSIB Administration Rate 22% (2009 - 25%)

e Lost time injury count 46 (2009 - 36)

Information about the City’s WSIB liability is as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 3,949 3,740
Current service cost 712 690
Interest 198 188
Benefits paid (706) (669)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 4,153 3,949
Unamortized net actuarial loss (604) (716)
3,549 3,233
Information about the City’s WSIB expenses recognized in the period are as follows:
2011 2010
$ $
Current period benefit cost 712 690
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2009 15 15
Amortization of net actuarial loss from December 31, 2006 97 96
Interest expense 198 188
1,022 989

A reserve in the amount of $2,203 (2010 - $1,526) has been accumulated to fund this liability.
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10.

Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
b) Liability for sick leave

Under the sick leave benefit plan, unused sick leave can accumulate for certain employees and these
employees may become entitled to a cash payment when they leave the City’s employment.

A comprehensive actuarial valuation was completed as of December 31, 2010 and the next required
valuation will be as of December 31, 2013.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s sick leave liabilities are as follows:

e Discount rate 4.75% (2009 - 5%)
¢ Inflation rate 2% (2009 - 2%)
e Future salaries 3.5% per year (2009 — 3.5%)

Information about the City’s sick leave liability is as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 9,353 8,863

Current service cost 919 739

Interest 561 423
Net actuarial loss 2,403 -

Benefits paid (835) (672)

Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 12,401 9,353

Unamortized net actuarial gain (loss) (2,179) 56

10,222 9,409

Information about the City’s sick leave expenditures recognized in the period are as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Current period benefit cost 919 739
Amortization of net actuarial (gain) loss 168 4)
Interest expense 561 423
1,648 1,158

A reserve in the amount of $10,446 (2010 - $9,579) has been accumulated to fund this liability.

c) Post retirement benefits

The City provides dental and health care benefits between the time an employee retires under OMERS,
or retires at a normal retirement age, up to the age of 65.

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted in estimating the City’s liabilities are as follows:

e Discount rate 4.75% (2009 — 5.0%)

e Consumer price index 2.0% (2009 - 2.0%)

e Prescription Drugs Trend Rate 7.67% reducing 4.0% per year to reach 4.0% per
year starting in 2019 (2009 — no change)

e Dental and other Medical Trend Rates 4.0% (2009 — 4.0%)
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10. Employee future benefits and other liabilities (continued)
c) Post retirement benefits (continued)

Information about the City’s employee future employee benefits are as follows

2011 2010

$ $

Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year 14,812 13,335
Current service cost 627 584
Plan amendment - 1,014
Interest 697 629
Benefits paid (886) (750)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year 15,250 14,812
Unamortized net actuarial loss (1,475) (1,598)
13,775 13,214

Since the prior valuation as at December 31, 2006, the operations of the Land Ambulance were

transferred from the Province of Ontario to the City. This transfer of responsibility resulted in the City
inheriting a group of employees with certain contractual obligations and the impact of this is reflected in

the plan amendment in 2010 of $1,014.

Information about the City’s employee future benefit expenses recognized in the period are as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Current period benefit cost 627 584
Cost of plan amendment - 1,014
Amortization of net actuarial loss 123 123
Interest expense 697 629
1,447 2,350

A comprehensive actuarial valuation was completed as of December 31, 2010 and the next required

valuation will be as of December 31, 2013.

There is currently a reserve of $1,946 (2010 — $260) set up to fund this liability.

11. Net debt

a) The balance of the net debt reported on the consolidated statement of financial position is comprised

of the following:

2011 2010
$ $
Total debt incurred by the City
including those incurred on behalf of related organizations
and outstanding at the end of the year amount to 118,282 94,573
Less: debt recoverable from school boards (680) (1,730)
Net debt at the end of the year 117,602 92,843
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11. Net debt (continued)

b) The net debt is comprised of the following components:

2011 2010

$ $

Demand loan - interest only at 3.7%, maturing in 2012 10,000 10,000

Debentures - repayable at rates ranging from 0.095% to 6.0%

and maturing from 2014 through 2031 97,601 71,636
Long-term loans - repayable at rates ranging from prime to 6.38%

and maturing from 2015 through 2025 10,001 11,207

117,602 92,843

During 2011, the City issued a $46,750 debenture, repayable over 10 years at a coupon rate of 3.12%.
This debenture was issued to fund $33,700 of capital projects as well as to refinance a $13,050

debenture that matured in 2011.

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities is $1,792 (2010 - $1,366) representing the fair

market value of the interest rate swap facility.

All net debt is payable in Canadian dollars. See schedule 3 for further details.

c) The net debt is repayable in the following periods and will be funded through the following revenue

sources:
General taxation User pay and De_velc_)per Total
other contributions
$ $ $ $
2012 8,729 1,618 1,672 12,019
2013 11,308 1,654 1,708 14,670
2014 8,881 1,691 1,781 12,353
2015 6,705 1,423 1,817 9,945
2016 6,934 1,460 1,853 10,247
Thereafter 41,413 10,958 5,997 58,368
83,970 18,804 14,828 117,602
d) Total charges during the year for net debt are as follows:
2011 2010
$ $
Principal repayments 21,991 9,771
Interest 4,350 4,665
26,341 14,436
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12.  Landfill post-closure liability

The City owns one landfill site. This landfill site was closed in 2003. The liability for post-closure costs
has been reported on the consolidated statement of financial position. The liability was calculated based
upon the present value of estimated post-closure costs discounted to December 31, 2011 at a factor of
5.0% (2010 - 5.0%) per annum. Post-closure care is estimated to be required for 35 years from the
date of site closure.

The estimated expenditures for post-closure care as at December 31, 2011 is $5,700 (2010 - $6,000).

There are no reserve funds established to fund this liability as at December 31, 2011, as the City is
funding this cost annually through the budget process.
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13. Tangible capital assets

2011
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 38,916 32,551 (3,567) 67,900
Buildings 158,419 63,632 (35) 222,016
Machinery and equipment 103,886 3,359 (14) 107,231
Vehicles 60,429 2,501 (6,672) 56,258
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 246,379 4,559 - 250,938
Storm water 163,535 6,288 - 169,823
Transportation 312,695 29,110 - 341,805
Waterworks 183,466 12,046 - 195,512
Assets under construction 128,784 (49,240) - 79,544
1,396,509 104,806 (10,288) 1,491,027
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Accumulated amortization of year  Amortization Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 3,287 283 2 3,568
Buildings 43,639 4,979 (29) 48,589
Machinery and equipment 66,980 6,723 (8) 73,695
Vehicles 29,568 5,482 (6,035) 29,015
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 104,060 4,491 108,551
Storm water 39,519 2,627 42,146
Transportation 173,284 6,175 179,459
Waterworks 86,776 4,904 91,680
547,113 35,664 (6,074) 576,703
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book value of year of year
$ $
Land and land improvements 35,629 64,332
Buildings 114,780 173,427
Machinery and equipment 36,906 33,536
Vehicles 30,861 27,243
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 142,319 142,387
Storm water 124,016 127,677
Transportation 139,411 162,346
Waterworks 96,690 103,832
Assets under construction 128,784 79,544
849,396 914,324
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13. Tangible capital assets (continued)

2010
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Cost of year Additions Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 37,626 1,290 - 38,916
Buildings 137,905 20,514 - 158,419
Machinery and equipment 90,120 14,226 (460) 103,886
Vehicles 60,484 3,223 (3,278) 60,429
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 244,946 1,433 - 246,379
Storm water 162,892 643 - 163,535
Transportation 293,296 19,399 - 312,695
Waterworks 175,728 7,738 - 183,466
Assets under construction 77,757 51,027 - 128,784
1,280,754 119,493 (3,738) 1,396,509
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Accumulated amortization of year Amortization Disposals of year
$ $ $ $
Land and land improvements 3,026 261 - 3,287
Buildings 39,144 4,495 - 43,639
Machinery and equipment 58,637 8,767 (424) 66,980
Vehicles 25,472 6,666 (2,570) 29,568
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 99,773 4,287 - 104,060
Storm water 35,804 3,715 - 39,519
Transportation 167,522 5,762 - 173,284
Waterworks 81,679 5,097 - 86,776
511,057 39,050 (2,994) 547,113
Balance, beginning Balance, end
Net book value of year of year
$ $
Land and land improvements 34,599 35,629
Buildings 123,785 114,780
Machinery and equipment 31,992 36,906
Vehicles 35,012 30,861
Infrastructure
Sanitary sewers & waste water 145,172 142,319
Storm water 127,088 124,016
Transportation 125,774 139,411
Waterworks 94,049 96,690
Assets under construction 77,757 128,784
795,228 849,396
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14.

15.

Accumulated surplus

The accumulated surplus is comprised of the following components:

2011 2010
$ $
Reserves set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for employee future benefits 14,594 16,488
for stabilization and contingency 10,522 10,010
for program related purposes 11,609 6,536
Total reserves - Schedule 4 36,725 33,034
Reserve funds set aside for specific purpose by Council:
for capital financing purposes - Schedule 4 105,697 95,685
Total reserves and reserve funds 142,422 128,719
Invested in tangible capital assets 914,324 849,396
Investment in Guelph Municipal Holdings Inc. 78,260 77,871
Investment in Guelph Junction Railway Company 5,950 5,722
Operating fund (4,914) (16,863)
Unfunded liabilities
Net debt (117,602) (92,843)
Employee future benefits and related liabilities (32,561) (30,796)
Landfill post closure liability (5,700) (6,000)
Total 837,757 786,487
Accumulated surplus 980,179 915,206

In accordance with the City’s policy for reserve funds, interest is earned on the average reserve fund
balance for the year at the average internal rate of return earned during the year. In 2011, $2,484 (2010
- $834) of interest was earned by the reserve funds and is recorded as a decrease in investment income

and an adjustment to the ending accumulated surplus.

Contributions to other entities

Contributions made to other entities during the year greater than $100 are as follows:

2011 2010

$ $

Grand River Conservation Authority 1,395 1,356
Hospice Wellington 200 272
Guelph General Hospital 200 200
MacDonald Stewart Art Centre 175 175
Humane Society 459 414
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation 1,529 1,478
3,958 3,895
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16.

17.

Expenditures by type

The following is a summary of the current expenditures reported on the Consolidated Statement of

Operations and Accumulated Surplus by the type of expenditures:

2011 2010

$ $

Salaries, wages and employee benefits 141,111 130,539
Interest on net debt 4,350 4,665
Materials 34,302 26,665
Contracted services 22,795 23,531
Rents and financial expenses 9,709 8,534
External transfers 52,054 56,218
Amortization of tangible capital assets 35,664 39,050
299,985 289,202

Shared service agreements

Certain programs as mandated by provincial legislation are managed by neighboring municipalities on
behalf of the City and certain programs are also managed by the City on behalf of other municipalities.

The City’'s share of revenues and expenditures from social service programs managed by Wellington

County are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Revenues

Social housing 3,001 2,944
Child care 7,254 7,255
Social services 12,774 12,419
23,029 22,618

Expenditures
Social housing 16,817 16,226
Child care 9,371 9,199
Social services 17,219 19,520
43,407 44,945
Net expenditures (20,378) (22,327)

The City’'s share of net expenditures for social housing is 86% (2010 - 87%), child care 78% (2010 —

79%) and social services 74% (2010 — 74%).

Additionally, the City paid the County $166 (2010 - $166) for the City’s share of expenditures for the

operation of Wellington Terrace, a long-term care facility.
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17.

18.

19.

Shared service agreements (continued)

The City’'s share of revenues and expenditures from programs managed by the City are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Revenues

Land Ambulance 3,504 3,214
Provincial offences act 1,878 1,913
5,382 5,127

Expenditures
Land Ambulance 7,813 6,591
Provincial offences act 1,048 973
8,861 7,564
Net expenditures (3,479) (2,437)

The City’'s share of net expenditures for land ambulance is 61% (2010 - 61%) and provincial offences
act is 53% (2010 — 54%).

The City’'s share of the net expenditures for all the above programs, are included in the consolidated
statement of operations and accumulated surplus.

Contingencies

a)

b)

d)

e)

In 2008, Urbacon Buildings Group Corp. served a Statement of Claim against the City pursuant to
the Construction Lien Act seeking damages in excess of $12,000 and punitive and other damages
totaling over $7,000. The City has filed a Statement of Defense and Counterclaim claiming
damages in the amount of $5,000. A trial date has been set for January 2013.

During 2010 charges were laid against the City under the Occupational Health and Safety Act
relating to a 2009 incident. During 2011, two of the three charges have been dropped and the
remaining maximum fine that could be imposed under this matter is $500.

During 2009 and 2010, there were various Claims filed against the City in relation to development
charge disputes. The City has filed a Statement of Defense in relation to these matters. The
expected board hearing is in late 2012.

During early 2012, the City has been notified of a potential claim totaling $529 related to the
construction of Guelph Civic Museum. No further details are known at this time.

From time to time, the City may be involved in other claims in the normal course of business.
Management assesses such claims and where considered likely to be material exposure and, where
the amount of the claim is quantifiable, provisions for loss are made based on management’'s
assessment of likely outcome. The City does not provide for claims that are considered unlikely to
result in a significant loss, claims for which the outcome is not determinable or claims where the
amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated. Any settlements or awards under such claims are
provided when reasonably determinable.

Commitments and guarantees

a)

The City has guaranteed a non-revolving facility for Guelph Community Sports which is supported by
Council resolution authorizing provision of such guarantee in favour of Guelph Community Sports.
The City believes that this guarantee will not have any significant unfavorable impact on its financial
position and consequently no provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

19.

20.

b)

c)

d)

e)

Commitments and guarantees (continued)

The City has commitments under a variety of leases and agreements of which the longest expires on
June 18, 2088. The minimum lease payments over the next five years are as follows:
$
2012 735
2013 452
2014 389
2015 348
2016 340
2,264

The City has commitments totaling $802 resulting from agreements entered into as part of the
Heritage Redevelopment Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized upon the applicant
meeting all the eligibility criteria.

The City has commitments totaling $3,545 resulting from agreements entered into as part of the
Brownfield Tax Increment Based Grant Program. Grant expenditures will be recognized in the year
of reassessment by MPAC and when all eligibility criteria have been met by the applicant.

Other obligations include:

Hospice Wellington

The City has committed grants to Hospice Wellington through 2012 with an outstanding amount of
$200 (2010 - $400) payable annually in instalments of $200. This grant is to assist with capital
renovation costs incurred to open their new location.

Guelph General Hospital

The City has committed grants to Guelph General Hospital through 2012 with an outstanding amount
of $200 (2010 - $400) payable annually in instalments of $200. This grant is to assist with the capital
purchase of a new MRI machine.

MacDonald Stewart Arts Centre

The City has committed to operating grants for 2012 totalling $174 (2010 - $168). Additionally, in
2010 the City had committed to a capital grant of $20 to MacDonald Stewart Arts Centre for soffit
replacement that was one-time in nature and paid in 2011.

Other community grants

The City has committed to providing various grants to organizations in the community totalling $312
(2010 - $330).

Subsequent event

Subsequent to year end, the City and County of Wellington settled a dispute relating to the City’s share
of costs owing for the period of 2006 to 2010 in relation to the operation of Wellington Terrace. There
was no financial impact on the 2011 financial position as the City had previously provided for these
costs.
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City of Guelph

Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

21.

22.

23.

Local Immigration Partnership

Included in the Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus are the activities of the Local
Immigration Partnership Program (LIPP) which is a federally funded program for the purpose of creating
a more welcoming community for immigrants by focusing efforts on employment services, English
language training, community integration/inclusion and community services/programs. During 2011, the
City of Guelph received $243 (2010 - $324) of funding from Citizenship and Immigration Canada related
to the operation this program.

Budget figures

Budgets are established to set tax rates or to finance projects which may be carried out over one or
more years. Budget figures have been translated to reflect changes in PSAB standards on the
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus by adjusting for amortization of
tangible capital assets, including the consolidated entities and excluding budgeted amounts for the debt
principal repayment and reserve transfers. Budget figures have not been audited.

Segmented information

The City of Guelph is a diversified municipal government institution that provides a wide range of
services to its citizens. For management reporting purposes, the City’s operations and activities are
organized and reported on in two groups: Operating Fund and Capital Fund. These funds were created
for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain certain objectives in accordance with special
regulations, restrictions or limitations. Within the operating fund, the City’s operations are further defined
into the Tax Supported and User Pay/Enterprise categories and then segregated in to five service area
pillars: Community & Social Services, Operations & Transit, Planning & Building and Engineering &
Environment, Corporate & Human Resources, Finance & Enterprise.

Although City services are provided internally by these defined service areas, for financial reporting, the
City has chosen to remain consistent with the Ontario Financial Information Return (FIR) and the nine
functional areas that it prescribes. This will allow comparability between our Schedule of Segment
Disclosure (Schedules 1 and 2 attached) and several schedules on the FIR that already require full
segment disclosure of operating expenditures and limited disclosure of current operating revenues.

The services that have been separately disclosed in the segmented information are defined by the
compositional requirements of the FIR as follows:

General Government
Governance (election management, Council, Council support, Office of the Mayor)

Corporate management (Office of the CAO, finance, corporate communications, legal, corporate
properties and real estate and information technology)

Protection services
Police services, fire services, 911 service, court operations, building and structural inspection,
parking enforcement, by-law enforcement and animal control

Transportation services

Roadways — including asphalt resurfacing and crack sealing, line painting, sweeping, traffic
operations and maintenance of roadside areas, culverts and bridges.

Winter control, street lighting, parking and public transit
Environmental services

Water, Wastewater, storm sewers, and solid waste collection, disposal and recycling
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Notes to the unconsolidated financial statements
December 31, 2011

($000’s)

23. Segmented information (continued)
Health services
Land ambulance operations
Social housing
Social housing program costs
Social and family services

General assistance (Ontario Works) and childcare programs, and contributions to Wellington
Terrace

Recreation and cultural services

Parks, recreational facilities, recreational programs, libraries, museums, River Run Centre,
Sleeman Centre and other cultural services

Planning and development services

Planning and zoning, Committee of Adjustment, tourism and economic development

24. Comparative figures

Certain 2010 comparative figures have been reclassified in order to present them in a form comparable
to those for 2011.

Page 25



City of Guelph

Unconsolidated schedule of segment disclosure - Schedule 1

year ended December 31, 2011

(Unaudited)

General Protection Transportation Environmental Health  Social & Family Social Recreation &  Planning and
Government Services Services Services Services Services Housing Cultural Services  Development Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 176,288 - - - - - - - - 176,288
User charges 295 845 12,140 46,465 1 203 6,008 786 66,743
Contributed subdivision assets 9,901 - - - - - - - - 9,901
Contributions (95) 3,080 23,887 15,473 8,905 20,484 3,001 7,559 159 82,453
Other
Investment income 3,501 - - 47 - - - - - 3,548
Donations - 23 23 - - - - 535 5 586
Sales of equipment, publications - 14 8 3,879 - 86 - 1,218 5 5,210
Recoveries 103 243 1,997 130 9 98 - 1,049 200 3,829
Licences and permits 265 2,707 - 77 - - - - - 3,049
Provincial offences act - 3,652 - - - - - - - 3,652
Other fines - - 745 - - - - - - 745
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 372 52 (519) (6) (29) - - - 5,983 5,853
Income from Government Business Enterprises 617 - - - - - - - - 617
191,247 10,616 38,281 66,065 8,886 20,871 3,001 16,369 7,138 362,474
Expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 11,061 54,162 26,731 17,164 10,282 558 - 17,868 3,285 141,111
Interest on net debt 2,170 254 292 542 5 - - 660 427 4,350
Materials 1,513 1,835 13,938 11,767 545 222 - 4,361 121 34,302
Contracted services 4,343 2,563 3,128 7,776 394 138 484 2,639 1,330 22,795
Rents and financial expenses 2,970 193 1,077 4,117 203 100 - 1,041 8 9,709
External transfers 2,050 1,189 57 1,486 2,591 26,895 16,730 586 470 52,054
Internal charges (6,975) 1,180 (2,764) 5,104 1,335 43 1 1,932 144 -
Amortization of tangible capital assets 2,736 1,506 11,316 15,310 352 111 20 4,260 53 35,664
19,868 62,882 53,775 63,266 15,707 28,067 17,235 33,347 5,838 299,985
Excess of revenues over expenses
(expenses over revenues) 171,379 (52,266) (15,494) 2,799 (6,821) (7,196) (14,234) (16,978) 1,300 62,489
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City of Guelph

Unconsolidated schedule of segment disclosure - Schedule 2

year ended December 31, 2010

(Unaudited)
General Protection  Transportation  Environmental Health Social and Family Social Recreation and  Planning and
Government Services Services Services Services Services Housing Cultural Services Development Total
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Revenues
Taxation 170,280 - - - - - - - - 170,280
User charges 274 804 10,746 42,141 1 202 - 5,743 636 60,547
Contributions 367 7,419 24,530 21,172 9,891 19,953 2,944 8,179 103 94,558
Other
Investment income 5,142 - - 47 - - - - - 5,189
Donations 17 - 2 - - - 904 0 923
Sales of equipment, publications 1 23 17 2,737 - 86 - 1,205 4 4,073
Recoveries 402 711 1,445 558 - 198 - 774 346 4,434
Licences and permits 260 2,819 - 28 - - - - - 3,107
Provincial offences act - 3,675 - - - - - - - 3,675
Other fines - - 752 - - - - - - 752
Gain (loss) on disposal of tangible capital assets 10 104 (505) - (28) - - - - (419)
Income from Government Business Enterprises 3,459 - - - - - - - - 3,459
180,195 15,572 36,985 66,685 9,864 20,439 2,944 16,805 1,089 350,578
Expenses
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 11,155 50,268 24,417 15,387 9,255 503 - 16,433 3,121 130,539
Interest on net debt 2,333 272 358 485 5 - - 741 471 4,665
Materials 1,312 1,571 10,371 9,109 513 204 - 3,480 105 26,665
Contracted services 3,743 2,281 3,739 9,383 316 109 480 2,270 1,210 23,531
Rents and financial expenses 3,247 452 751 2,962 222 - - 885 15 8,534
External transfers 2,010 1,212 68 1,357 2,496 31,884 16,272 470 449 56,218
Internal charges (5,890) 1,159 (2,984) 5,216 655 3 1 1,750 90 -
Amortization of tangible capital assets 6,069 1,070 13,039 16,062 166 - - 2,644 - 39,050
23,979 58,285 49,759 59,961 13,628 32,703 16,753 28,673 5,461 289,202
Excess of revenues over expenses
(expenses over revenues) 156,216 (42,713) (12,774) 6,724 (3,764) (12,264)  (13,809) (11,868) (4,372) 61,376
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City of Guelph

Unconsolidated schedule of net debt - Schedule 3

December 31, 2011

('000's)
Bylaw Project description Term Maturity date Interest rates 2011 2010
$ $
Debentures:
18000 Road Projects - Gordon, Stone, Victoria, Ward 1, Clair 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 889
18000 Centennial Pool Reconstruction 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 53
18000 Bus Storage Area Expansion 5 20-Apr-11  4.25% to 4.45% - 99
18000 Transfer Station & Public Drop Off Facility 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 51
18000 East End Fire Station 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 157
18000 Pride Upgrade 5 20-Apr-11 4.25% to 4.45% - 16
16732 On behalf of the Elliott 10 15-Nov-11  3.10% to 5.95% - 14,000
16751 Roads - Woolwich: Speedvale to Woodlawn 10 10-Dec-11 2.80% to 6.00% - 378
16751 West End Community Centre 10 10-Dec-11  2.80% to 6.00% - 65
16751 Hanlon West Business Park 10 10-Dec-11 2.80% to 6.00% - 209
16751 Waste Water Treatment Plant Expansion 1 10 10-Dec-11 ~ 2.80% to 6.00% - 839
17536 On behalf of the Elliott 10 15-Sep-14  2.75% to 5.20% 868 1,130
18622 Social Services Building Renovation 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% to 4.70% 2,004 2,249
18622 Police HQ Renovations 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% to 4.70% 931 1,045
18622 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Cardigan, Clair 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% to 4.70% 3,937 4,417
18622 Bus Storage Area Expansion 10 25-Sep-18  3.25% to 4.70% 135 151
18622 Organic Waste Facility - Roof Repairs 10 25-Sep-18 3.25% to 4.70% 368 413
18105 New City Hall 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 17,323 17,804
18105 New POA Court 25 28-Aug-31 5.237% 4,886 5,021
18898 Road Projects - Gordon, Victoria, Eramosa 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 624 693
18898 South End Station 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 5,467 6,071
18898 New City Hall 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 1,887 2,095
18898 Land Purchase - Library 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 697 774
18898 Public Drop Off Facility 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 177 197
18898 Transit Terminal Road Upgrades 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 1,531 1,700
18898 Watermain Projects - Laird, Arkell, Scout Camp 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 5,219 5,795
18898 Waste Water Treatment Plant Facility Upgrade 10 25-Nov-19  .095 % to 4.60% 4,797 5,325
19294 Organic Waste Facility Composter Rebuild 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% to 3.70% 28,000 -
19294 Civic Museum Renvovations 10 9-Nov-21 1.25% to 3.70% 5,700 -
19294 On behalf of the Elliott 10 9-Nov-21  1.25% to 3.70% 13,050 -
97,601 71,636
Other loans:
Mortgage RBC - Sleeman Centre 10 01-May-17 4.96% 4,204 4,867
Private Mortgages HCBP 10 28-Jun-11 7.50% - 288
CIBC Loan - Sleeman Centre - SWAP 18.8 01-Sep-25 6.38% 5,797 6,052
RBC Interest only loan Demand 31-Dec-12 3.70% 10,000 10,000
Net Debt before the school boards 117,602 92,843
15316 Public School Board 15 01-Nov-11  3.375% to 6.95% - 400
15648 Public School Board 15 18-Dec-12 4.50% to 6.20% 451 884
15648 Separate School Board 15 18-Dec-12  4.50% to 6.20% 229 446
Less: Receivable from School Boards (680) (1,730)
Recoverable from School Boards - -
Total Net Debt 117,602 92,843
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City of Guelph
Unconsolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4
December 31, 2011

('000's)
Code Description 2011 2010
$ $
Reserves:
For Employee Future Benefits:
100 Sick Leave - Fire 3,531 3,371
101 Sick Leave - Police 3,297 3,339
102 Sick Leave - Library 894 852
103 Sick Leave - CUPE 241 2,724 2,017
209 Vacation Accrual Reserve - 5,123
330 WSIB 2,203 1,526
338 Land Ambulance Severance 345 260
NEW Early Retiree Benefits 1,600 -
14,594 16,488
For Stabilization and Contingency:
131 Employee Benefit Stabilization 2,132 2,726
180 Tax Rate Stabilization 1,894 1,671
181 Water Rate Stabilization 2,114 2,114
182 Waste Water Rate Stabilization 2,242 1,542
198 Operating Contingency 902 602
207 Human Resource Contingency - 322
191 Salary Gapping / HR Contingency 1,238 1,033
10,522 10,010
For Program Related:
184 Insurance 1,328 1,080
119 Affordable Housing 653 581
122 Brownfield Strategy 512 546
188 Building Services 1,285 978
206 Building Operating Maintenance 81 100
192 Heritage Redevelopment 908 673
193 Ontario Municipal Board 4,054 681
194 Downtown Improvements 360 200
195 Election Costs 314 183
196 Joint Job Evaluation Committee 330 206
345 Westminster Woods 35 35
208 Social Housing 300 1,094
197 Human Resource Negotiations 89 59
210 Information Technology Licences 210 100
205 Community Investment Strategy 50 20
NEW Strategic Priorities 1,100 -
11,609 6,536
Total Reserves 36,725 33,034
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City of Guelph

Unconsolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2011

('000's)
Code Description 2011 2010
$ $
Reserve Funds:

111 Fire 356 624
113 Transit 219 686
115 Police 268 427
116 Waste Management 1,335 945
118 Computers 459 866
121 Play Equipment 345 397
124 Operations Fleet 3,215 2,594
150 Capital Taxation 2,520 697
151 Capital Parking 1,961 3,589
152 Capital Waterworks 22,469 16,385
153 Capital Wastewater 26,095 22,522
155 Capital Landfill Compensation 134 139
156 Capital DC Exemption 3,158 2,248
157 Capital Library 828 850
158 Capital Police 2,556 2,243
162 Capital Sleeman Centre 9 29
164 Capital Roads 1,396 1,063
165 Capital Stormwater 181 205
166 Capital Park Planning 84 51
167 Capital Policy Planning 60 38
168 Capital Economic Development 71 40
169 Capital Operations 551 363
170 Capital Recreation 103 99
171 Capital Culture 124 (13)
172 Capital Transit 555 275
173 Capital Fire 281 198
175 Capital Corporate Property 14 99
176 Capital Info Services 153 149
177 Capital Museum 41 40
186 Capital Waste Management 493 292
189 Capital GSEC 31 31
340 Capital River Run 195 158
120 POA Relocation 179 172
159 Accessibility 505 393
160 Road Infrastructure 2,993 2,312
161 Public Transit Improvements 594 801
200 Investing Ontario Act 2,154 4,122
201 ISF - City Share Water 958 1,010
202 ISF - City Share Waste Water 1,143 1,161
203 RINC City Share 6 734
331 Road Widening 954 930
190 Building Life Cycle 654 802
353 Waterworks DC Exempt 1,698 915
82,098 71,681
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City of Guelph

Unconsolidated schedule of reserves and reserve funds - Schedule 4

December 31, 2011

('000's)

Code Description 2011 2010
$ $
Carryforward from prior 82,098 71,681
354 Wastewater DC Exempt 1,543 764
352 Greenhouse Gas 527 408
341 Locomotive 6167 1 1

355 Greening 81 -
199 City Infrastructure Fund 2,494 6,142
332 Industrial Land 4,254 2,562
350 Transportation Demand Management 21 20
135 Museum Development 58 56
136 McCrae House Development 137 130
137 Moon-McKeigan 13 13
138 Library Bequests 174 170

356 Public Art 203 -
351 Hydro Note 14,093 13,738
Total Reserve Funds 105,697 95,685
Total Reserves and Reserve Funds 142,422 128,719
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City of Guelph

Guelph Public Library Board - Schedule 5
Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2011

('000's)

OPERATING FUND

Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario
Donations
Fees and service charges
Sundry revenue

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Administrative and office
Utilities and taxes
Operating supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Communications
Training
Consulting and professional fees
Rental and leases
Bank and other charges
Furniture and equipment
Interest on long-term debt
Amortization

Net operating deficit

CAPITAL FUND

Developer contribution revenues

Less: Tangible capital asset acquisitions
Net capital deficit

Total combined net deficit

Less: net contributions (to)/from reserves

Less: debt principal repayments

City of Guelph share of net deficit
Fund balance, end of year

2011 2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual

167 $ 126 $ 168

- 6 -
377 389 305
7 53 11
551 574 484
5,340 5,278 4,790
1 1 2
141 120 182
274 500 112
344 429 420
160 163 166
3 14 6
38 64 314
813 747 635
- 6 6
22 41 3
27 27 25
- 280 917
7,163 7,670 7,578
(6,612) (7,096) (7,094)
- 52 323
(1,161) (963) (1,306)
(1,161) (911) (983)
(7,773) (8,007) (8,077)
- 139 (74)
(77) (77) (76)
(7,850) (7,945) (8,227)
7,850 7,945 8,227

- $

$
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City of Guelph
Guelph Police Services Board - Schedule 6
Statement of Revenue and Expense

December 31, 2011
('000's)

OPERATING FUND
Revenue
Grant - Province of Ontario
- Government of Canada
Gain on sale of tangible capital assets
Other fees and recoveries

Expenses
Salaries and benefits
Operating, admin and office supplies
Banking and other fees
Personnel supplies
Communication
Utilities, taxes and insurance
Professional consulting
Repairs and maintenance
Rental and lease
Fleet
Equipment and furniture
Corporate training and development
Interest on long-term debt
Amortization

Net operating deficit

CAPITAL FUND

Revenue
Developer contributions
Province of Ontario grants
Other revenues

Expenses

Tangible capital asset acquisitions
Net capital deficit
Total combined net deficit
Add: net contributions from reserves
Less: debt principal repayments

City of Guelph share of net deficit

FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR

2011 2011 2010
Budget Actual Actual

1,055 $ 1,170 $ 1,148
5 61 109

789 1,024 1,735
1,849 2,255 2,992
30,804 30,857 29,370
255 260 216

5 4 3

163 154 103

199 183 148
318 343 363
870 775 757
262 196 173
105 136 152
515 537 467

63 67 102

429 305 353
142 142 149

- 806 799
34,130 34,765 33,155
(32,281) (32,510) (30,163)
- 448 1,132

- 173 -

60 13 47

60 634 1,179
2,017 1,800 4,732
(1,957) (1,166) (3,553)
(34,238) (33,676) (33,716)
335 1,217 279
(406) (406) (398)
(34,309) (32,865) (33,835)
(34,309) (32,865) (33,835)
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